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MR
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

OPERATING PERFORMANCE DATA ReEREFAHE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“5-tf TR “Z-1fF “T-mE “T-cF
For the year ended 31 December RMB *000 RMB 000 Change RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
HETZA=t-RLER AEETR ANEETL # NEETFT ANEETL NEETT
Revenue WA 16,306,375 13,647,737 19.5% 10,574,854 10,470,321 8,228,533
Gross profit EH 2,439,959 2,645,143 -1.8% 1,905,832 1,294,214 1,583,383
Proft for the year ERaH 1,174,725 1,201,073 -2.2% 588,968 306,721 1,126,027
Profitatributableto R E(ET]
shareholders 1,151,862 1,187,531 -3.0% 590,826 306,721 1,125,890
Earnings per share BREA
—Basic —E% RMBARM1.26T RMBARE133T 53% RMBAR®OSTT RMBAR®035T RVMBARE12IT
— Diluted —83 RMBARH126% RMBARE1.33T 53% RMBAREOSTT RMBAR®03BT RVBARE12T
FINANCIAL POSITION DATA B RN BB
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-tf IBE Z3-nf Z2-IE —2-cF
As at 31 December RMB '000 RMB 000 Change RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
M=A=1+-H AEETR AREFT # NEETFT NEEFT NEETFT
Total assets £2E 15,534,431 15,284,349 1.6% 11,401,097 9,138,546 8,944,315
Non-current assets E QY 7,813,552 7,142,65 94% 5,173,867 4,753,644 4,389,588
Current assets RYEE 77120879 8,141,693 5.2% 5,627,230 4,384,902 4,554,727
Total liabilties ek 9,558,718 10,092,905 -5.3% 7,462,528 5,683,914 5,563,897
Current liabilities nHaE 6,420,730 7,419,903 -13.5% 4,625,335 2,490,947 2,685,985
Non-current liabilties EE = 3,137,988 2,673,002 17.4% 2,837,193 3,192,967 2817912
Net current assets TOEEFE 1,300,149 72,790 80.1% 1,001,895 1,893,955 1,868,742
Net assets EEFE 5,975,713 5,191,444 15.1% 3,938,569 3,938,569 3,380,418
Equiyatiibutableto  REME(LER
shareholders 5,910,127 5,148,721 14.8% 3,911,155 3,454,632 3,380,418
FINANCIAL INDICATORS MBER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
BEt-A=t+-HILEE “E-tf 2§ ZE-nFf E-mE C—Z-=F
Inventory turnover days FEREXRE 87 79 73 77 100
Trade and bill receivables ~ fEIRE 5 R ZE A
turnover days FEXE 36 35 40 39 39
Trade and bill payables ENESREEHRR
turnover days BEXH 78 87 82 72 78
Current ratio ME & 1.2 1.1 1.2 18 1.7
Net debt to equity ratio BRFEERLE
(Note 1) (i3] 0.68 0.80 0.48 0.54 0.55
Return on equity (Note 2)  BREIRE (f1i£2) 21% 26% 16% % 38%
Note 1: Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash [ 1: BESFABNEBLENRASRRSS
equivalents and pledged bank deposits over equity BV KRB IEIRRITERGR AR R EL R
attributable to shareholders at each year end. FTHEGH -

Note 2: Based on each year’s profit attributable to A2 RESFOREEMGEF R IAZY BEEF
shareholders over the average of the equity MRERRRE (LS 2 FHEGTEEL -
attributable to shareholders at the beginning and
ending of the financial year.
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ERENRRE

CORPORATE PROFILE AND STRUCTURE

Texhong Galaxy Technology Limited
RIFRARHEBR QA

CORPORATE PROFILE

Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) (stock code: 2678) is
one of the largest cotton textile manufacturers in the
People’s Republic of China (“China” or the “PRC”) and is
a leading textile enterprise focusing on manufacturing
high value-added core-spun textile products. The Group
is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution
of quality yarn, grey fabrics, garment fabrics as well as
garments, especially high value-added core-spun yarn.
Since 1997, the Group has grown rapidly and has over
3,000 customers in China and overseas, with its sales
network spanning across the PRC, Vietnam, North
America, Europe, Brazil, Turkey, Bangladesh, Japan and
South Korea. With its sales headquarter established in
Shanghai, the Group has production bases in the PRC,
Vietnam, Cambodia and Nicaragua respectively, with
major production facilities comprising about 3.03 million
spindles and 1,283 looms.

EEN

K EBER AR ([AAR] - EREM
BRAmB I AEE]) (BRDFES - 2678) =
REARKEFE([FE])KRKAORLS R
ERZ— ERPBEELHNSHINER S
BEREELE AEENTEEKARE
MIHEEEYER - B  BmRARE S LE
BEILEAEASHRNENERRY R B
—NNEFHR AEBEKLEERR B
EiBiBE3,000ARANINES - HEBIKEBNT
H-#E BN -BR-+EH-Z
A BARKmEE . AEEU LB AEER
o RHRE - BE RIEERENNLS 5
REEEEM  FELEEXREBEIEAL303
B 121,283 A -
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CORPORATE PROFILE AND STRUCTURE

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

3R

Texhong Textile Group Limited
(Stock Code on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 2678)
AF

RIS EEER:
(FEBBRFTIRAPRS © 2678)

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
T ; Texhong Sunray
fexhong Textle Texhong Textile Vietnam International Texhong Texhong Global
vestipent TVN Investment Holdings Limited Investment Holdings ibvestmen:
Limited T El T ] s Investment Ltd. imited _
AL ARAR R IR x S et
ARAE e pope ARAA ARAT
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
. Texhong Shandong
Texhong Textile Texhong Textile TVN (Renze) Tf;:f"égK":;‘"‘g")'e Investment
Nantong Ltd. (HongKong) Ltd | 1 (i) Lta. Limited o) (Hong Kong)
RAL AR RALAHHR(FE) TN (£3%) RAGHE(EE) Limited
ARAF ARAT BRAT BRERAD RILLFRERE (FE)
ARAF
100% 100% 100%
100% 10%] 90% 100% 100% 5% | 90% 5% 100% 100% 100%
Texhong
Texhong
; Sunray Macao Texhong Galax Uruguay
iTexhong Textile: Texhong Yinlong |  Texhong Yinlong | Texhond Renze Texhong Renze | Sunray Trading | Billon Wealthy Commercial Ho.di"gi Limited ingapore. Investment
\nvestment Lid. Technology Ltd. Textile Ltd. e stock oot | (Hong Kong) Ltd. | Trading Limited | Offshore Ltd. RATRALR iesing i
R R R RATRFG SRR EFEe HHES (F78) HEE STEAPIE ARAR el FABRE
: C 3 g = 5 . Ld. HHRAT
REERAT BRATF BHERAF ERAT ROBRAT ARARA BRAF gﬁz% RERRLF
100% | 100% 100%
" " Texhong Galaxy ’
0% 0% Investment | Texhong Textie | TXPng Textie
Limited Turkey Tekstil | oo N
Texhong RAETRE Limited Sirketi A
Tan Cang BRAF o
Logistics Joint Shelink Limited
Stock Company JEHBRAF
R 100%
BRHLR
Texhong Galaxy
Technology
Limited
RATRARHE
ARAF
48% 100%
Foshan Ruhong
Nantong Textile Texhong (China) Peiislcoti
Group Co., Ltd Investment i
TBBRER Co, Lt T
MG RL(
BRAR AR
49% 51% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Texhong Textile Shanghai Shanghai Xuzhou Texhong Shanghai Hongan Textile Zhejiang Changzhou Shandong
(China) Hongyue Trading | TexhongTrading | | Inteligence Textie | Hongrun Textile (Huaian) Texhong Textile |  Texhong Textile Texhong Textile
Co., Ltd. 0., Ltd. 0., Ltd, o, Lt ., Lid. Co, Ltd o, ., Ltd. o, Ltd.
RATG (P E) LFEUEHES EERHICES BNRABLE EEEES MRGHEA(ER) TR 8% MRS58 IR KA et
BRAT BRAF HRAF GERERATE BRAF BRAF HRAR BHRAF HRAT
100%
) 48% 45% 49% 27% | 49% 49% 80% 49% 49% | 5% 49%
Dongxing
Texhong Textile
S35 ) ChangZhou
. Jiangsu Century | Xuzhou Century | Xuzhou Texhong | Xuzhou Texhong | Taizhou Century | Taizhou Texhong | o oo | Nantong Century | Xuzhou Texhong “Texhong Nantong
RAKILGH Texhong Textile | Texhong Textile | Times Textile Yinfeng Textle | Texhong Textlle | Yintai Textie | 32004 1SXNOR1  ‘Texhong Textile | Yinlian Textie Grand Texile |  Texhong Yinhai
ARAR 0., Co, L o, Ltd ., o., Ltd Co,, Ltd NS o, 0., Lt Co.. Ltd Industrial Co., Ltd
ST AR R BN AR R HRMRAER TRMRARE ML RIL BINRARE ARAE Rt R R RN KA AN R 38 K AL
HEARAT SEARAT SEARAT SRARRT HEAERAR HEARAT SEARAT SRARRT GHERAE EXERAT
52% 55% 51% 73% 51% 51% 20% 51% I 51% 95% 51%
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100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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P AL HRAF RARAD HIRAE BRA
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” g United ”
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i i RABLHE: ZEA emARLA | ALEEEE | nefing Con L e
FRER) G | ROEHRE EutmAS ARAE ERERA ol -
ARAR (@) ARAR
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100% | 100% 80% 100% 100% 100% 45% 100%
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.| Texhong Denim B4 Lanyan Texiile Hongyan Hongyan Hongyan Harvest Bright
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FAT AR5 Printing Limited Lim\la‘;gy Limited Limited Holdings Limited | Holdings Limited le\_(ed
ERAT RELAH e RATDERE RE AR SEREIRER SRRERIERIRE SREAEER TR (B8
100% ARDE ERAT ARDE ARAT HREAT ERAT AHRAT
—
Hang Chi 100% 100% 100%
Enterprise
‘Company, Limited|
EALE Lanyan Denim g.e"m“g Thai
= & ) inh Garment
ARAT - di";;"fi’r‘" teq | Eastern Industrial Company Limited
BECE (7R Enterprise Inc. igkflﬂ&
BRARAS A=
100% 100% 100%
Drago Textile Sky Keen
‘Wah Fung International Investment
o Co, Ltd Co, Ltd
Al AR AR Off-sh
s ARLE BRAT fishore
PRC
2
90% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Shanghai Hong ChangZhou Shandong
Hui Investment i Shandong
Managepent TETEY | Gamen LanyanTostes | ool
ul : .,
Co. Limited BRAADE) Co., Ltd mi; i Co., Ltd
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Xinjiang Texhong
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EFRBEE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Hong Tianzhu X % '
Chairman /% '

On behalf of the Company’s board of directors (the AAZRRAQFTEES([EEE]) MR
“Board”), | am pleased to present the annual results of RARABREZIAEBMEBEE_T—LF
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 tothe +-A=+—HILFEN2FELE -
shareholders of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

RESULTS

In 2017, the textile industry in China experienced fierce
competition with customers having keen demand for
diverse and differentiated products. Besides, the Chinese
government stepped up enforcement of environmental
protection laws, which posed tremendous pressure on
dyeing and printing corporations in the industry. Some of
them had to suspend operation to rectify non-compliance
with the environmental protection law and some even
had to shut down, and as a result, orders fluctuated for a
period of time. This difficult operating environment, while
testing for small and medium enterprises under the
unfavourable condition, actually worked in favour of large
enterprises.

To satisfy customers’ strong demand for the
differentiated products of the Group, we continued to
expand our yarn production capacity and added 140,000
spindles in the second half of 2017 by acquiring second-
hand equipment at low cost and leasing. The Group’s
yarn sales volume hit record high for the 11th
consecutive year at approximately 650,000 tonnes, over
8.0% more than that of last year, and income from yarn
sales climbed to more than RMB14 billion. Being affected
by the market sentiment, the selling prices of some yarns
decreased in the first half of the year. Although the
selling prices of yarns rebounded in the second half of
the year and the gross profit margin of yarns returned
slowly on the uptrend, the gross profit margin was
relatively high in the previous year, it dropped from
20.1% to 16.3% this year. For the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to RMB1.15 billion and basic
earnings per share was RMB1.26, decreased by 3.0%
and 5.3% respectively, when compared with last year.

To better facilitate development of our jeanswear
business, we acquired two jeanswear factories in March
2017, one in Vietnam and the other in Cambodia, from
the Taiwanese company Nien Hsing Textile and adjusted
the Group’s jeanswear teams and production lines in
Shandong and Cambodia. We produced and sold over
13 million pairs of jeans during the year, serving mainly
customers in the US, Japan and Europe. Although the
business recorded some losses during the year, at our
hard work in the past few months, we have secured
orders from a reputable Japanese customer and
regained the recognition of the existing customers of the
business acquired. By continuously improving the quality
of orders, enhancing production equipment and
efficiency, we believed our jeanswear business will turn
around in 2018.

£

—FEFE PRABTERFA F
PHREMNZHKL ZREFRRY - 5
S BT IRA N EMITREE - BRAT
ENRERBEBNLEBNEKRES - &
DEETBIEEEEHETNARERE
ERIBRMITRETRSR EERBEER
E-BREBAGSIZETEGMKE  £TF
MBERT  RPARREREHBRRNELR
B MITEANARBEERARLERE -

BRREPHAEEZR(LERNBYEN
BB ERRYRER RS —+tF T F
FPMER AR — FREURAE AL
14895 - AEBYGEEEEMFALE
S HEELNEN ALLEFREBA
8.0% ' WRHE WM AR ARK 14018 TT °
SHSERAFE  LEFRIWIRBEER
BT ERTHFHEEREMEF
MWBEF RBHIREEBRABE  BER
EFWBREFNNEENRBEKE  2F0KE
FREYEFH201% FfEE16.3% > HEZ
TE—+F+-_A=Z+—HILFE A£EXN
AR FEAE S A A ANREA11.5ET  FRER
BRARE1.267T © D RIEEFEIK3.0% M
5.3% °

BT EAREER MM FREFBHER
—TEF-ANRMAKETEEFEHE
R RRBEMK T IRELR - WHE
AEBERIURERBENFHFREER L
B RNFREELHEEB 1,300 B FFHf
% TERBER  BHEARBRMNOES - &
ARNFEEE—EHEE  BELERMBEEE
BANS S EEBRBEA-—MNHEFPHE]
EUARBRBXBNRAEEFPNENSE
BETHNEEEE RBAEERBRX
T BABERZZ - NFHTFREERS
BEHERA
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ERBRES
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

OUTLOOK

The Group celebrated its 20th anniversary in 2017. In
the past two decades, using our own capital and various
loan facilities, we had built a foundation of three million
spindles with turnover exceeding RMB16 billion and
generating free cash flow over RMB1 billion a year. As
such we have sufficient resources to support the
continuous expansion of our long-standing yarn business
and also the development of our new jeanswear
business, which will become another growth engine of
the Group in the medium to long term.

We have created a premium production and operating
environment on our industry chain platform in the
industrial park in Northern Vietnam for our existing denim
yarn customers to develop and produce fabrics. As such,
we will be able to spare ourselves from the risk of
investing in such business and vast capital expenditure
required, while developing in complement and achieving
a win-win situation together with our customers. We can
also quickly accomplish high-quality industry chain
integration in Vietnam, which will allow us to carry out
production, operation and management of the entire
industry chain in a single industrial park. We will be able
to achieve prompt delivery, perfect for satisfying the
requirement of the brands nowadays to reduce inventory
risk and place additional orders during the same season
based on the then consumer demands.

We believe large and advanced enterprises in different
sectors shall emerge at the drive of management and
technological reforms in the manufacturing industry in
China in the Smart Age. The strong will become
stronger. Large enterprises will be leaving their medium
to small peers farther and farther behind on the aspects
of differentiation, specialization, economy of scale,
globalization and rationalization. The Group, being one
of the leading players in the industry, needs its staff, old
and new, to embrace change and integration as well as
growing together to help the Group achieve synergies in
the application of resources and capabilities, maintain
and keep enhancing its competitive advantages, and
work hard on product innovation and leadership, as well
as improving efficiency. The Group began to invest and
set up plants in Vietnam a decade ago, a move that has
enabled us to maintain industry leadership now.
Currently, we ride on our advantages in Vietnam to
develop our business. We expect to diligently implement
and take to fruition our industry chain integration concept
which will let the Group thrive in the future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude on
behalf of the Board to all our shareholders for giving the
Group their care and support over the years.

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

9 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group is pleased to present to the shareholders the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017. During the year, the Group’s revenue
grew by 19.5% to RMB16.31 billion when compared with
last year. Profit attributable to shareholders decreased
by 3.0% to RMB1,152 million against last year. Basic
earnings per share decreased from RMB1.33 to
RMB1.26. The year-on-year decrease in the profit
attributable to shareholders was mainly due to the
disproportionally high gross profit margin of yarns
resulting from increased cotton prices last year while the
selling prices of certain types of yarns were temporarily
under pressure this year, which undermined the
profitability of the related business during the year.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

Textile enterprises, especially those in dyeing and
printing business, have been the hardest hit by efforts of
the Chinese government to crack down on industries
causing pollution. Against this backdrop, compliant
enterprises stand out and have advantages in capturing
market share despite the testing industry environment,
and as a result “the strong gets stronger”.

According to statistics from the National Bureau of
Statistics of the PRC, in 2017, the aggregate sales
achieved by enterprises armed with sizeable capacity in
the textile industry amounted to RMB3,864.0 billion,
representing a 4.0% growth year-on-year. Total profit
was RMB197.65 billion, up by 3.9% year-on-year. The
sales of garment and apparel enterprises with sizeable
capacity in the textile industry amounted to RMB2,217.24
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.0%,
and net profit was RMB126.37 billion, up by 2.9% year-
on-year. For the production volume in 2017, yarn was
40.50 million tonnes, representing a 5.6% growth year-
on-year, while fabric was 69.56 billion metres,
representing a year-on-year growth of 1.2%. The
production volume of synthetic fibre was 49.196 million
tonnes, representing a 5.0% growth year-on-year. In
2017, the PRC exported textiles and garments of total
worth US$109.77 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 4.5%. Of that total, textiles exports accounted
for US$157.18 billion, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 0.4%.

According to statistics from the Customs of Vietnam, the
sales volume of yarn and staple of the country grew by
15.6% to 1.349 million tonnes in 2017, while sales
increased by 22.7%, when compared with 2016, to
US$3.593 billion. Value of garments exports grew by
9.2% to US$26.038 billion.
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THEFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue of the
Group reached record high at RMB16.31 billion,
representing an increase of 19.5% when compared with
last year, mainly attributable to the increase in revenue
from sales of yarns and the newly acquired jeanswear
business.

The Group derives revenue from sales of yarns, grey
fabrics, garment fabrics as well as jeanswear. During the
year, yarn continued to be its major product, generating
revenue of RMB14.6 billion, an increase of 15.5%
comparing with the previous year, accounting for 89.4%
of its total revenue for the year. The increase was mainly
driven by sales volume growth. With production capacity
expanded, the Group’s yarn sales volume for the year
ended 31 December 2017 increased to another historical
high at about 650,000 tonnes, a 8.0% climb against last
year. Revenue from jeanswear was RMB634 million,
around 3.9% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased
from 19.4% for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
15.0% for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the increase in
cotton price pushing the gross profit margin of yarn to a
higher than normal level last year, while in contrast the
prices of certain yarns were under pressure from the
market especially in the first half of 2017. Moreover, the
newly added downstream business was still in early
development stage with a much lower gross profit margin
than the yarn business. All the above mentioned factors
together caused a decrease of 4.4 percentage points in
the overall gross profit margin.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded profit attributable to shareholders of RMB1,152
million, with basic earnings per share of RMB1.26
representing a decrease of 3.0% and 5.3% respectively
when compared with last year. The decrease in profit
attributable to shareholders was mainly attributable to
the temporary decrease in profit from yarn business.
Nevertheless, as a one-off profit was recorded from the
acquisition of jeanswear business during the year, the
decrease in net profit was smaller than that in gross
profit.

The Group will continue to implement its established
corporate strategies, optimize its product mix and
develop new products to meet market trends and needs.
It will fully exploit the advantage of its global production
presence to further improve its financial performance.
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THBFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group will continue to strengthen the collaboration
with the world leading fibre developers to produce trendy
yet functional yarns to cater for the development in the
differentiated high-end market. The Group also continued
to reinforce its cooperative relationship with Toray of
Japan, extending the cooperation from yarn business to
jeanswear business. In response to market demand, the
Group’s research and development centre has kept
pushing for improvement of product quality and
development of new products so as to help the Group
maintain the leadership position in the industry and
capture highest quality customers in the different high-
end product arenas.

PROSPECT

The PRC has orderly sold the national cotton reserve in
the past two consecutive years, the cotton reserve is
now at a more reasonable level compared with a few
years ago. Assuming the PRC will continue the policy of
selling the cotton reserve, we expect domestic and
foreign cotton prices to remain relatively stable in 2018.

As at the end of 2017, the Group had major production
facilities comprising about 3.03 million spindles and
1,283 looms. Of all the spindles, approximately 1.78
million were in the PRC and approximately 1.25 million
were in Vietnam. In light of the strong demand for
differentiated yarn products, the Group intends to
gradually commence expansion plans in Northern
Vietnam, Xuzhou and Shandong, the PRC in 2018. The
additional production capacity will be exploited with new
and second-hand equipment. Approximately 220,000
and 380,000 spindles will be added in Vietnam and the
PRC respectively. The Group is also actively seeking for
opportunities to acquire yarn factories in the PRC to
meet market demand for differentiated products.
Furthermore, relevant effort will be made to expand
downstream business and upgrade existing equipment.
The expansion plan is estimated to cost approximately
RMB2 billion in 2018 and 2019 and will be completed in
stages. The sales targets for 2018 are 720,000 tonnes of
yarns, 80 million metres of grey fabrics, 40 million metres
and 18,000 tonnes of garment fabrics and 18 million
pairs of jeans.
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THEFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECT (Continued)

After the adjustment and consolidation made in 2017,
the Group’s jeanswear business will develop more
efficiently and has been gradually gaining the trust of
new customers and existing customers of the acquired
business, giving the Group a big boost in enhancement
of order quality, balancing production between peak and
low season and improving production efficiency. The
Group looks forward to its jeanswear business turning
around to profit in 2018. At the same time,
implementation of the strategy for the establishment of
the industry chain platform in Vietnam will continue in
order to attract more existing denim fabric manufacturers
and industry peers to set up factories in the industrial
park in Vietnam. By capitalizing on the advantage of our
existing denim yarn raw material resources in Vietham
and the production capabilities of our existing denim yarn
customers, the Group targets to produce jeanswear of
international quality and wins the recognition of famous
brands with prompt response and fast product delivery,
thereby lay a solid foundation for its rapid expansion in
the future.

On the yarn business front, it is now in an apparently
better position than 2017, but whether its profit margin
will return to a higher level remains to be seen, subject to
the inflow of orders in the next few months in the advent
of the peak season.

In July 2017, the Group was again named by Fortune
magazine as one of the “Fortune 500 Chinese
Companies 2017”, a strong testament to the continuous
expansion of the Group and the wide recognition its
business model enjoys. The Group will continue to work
tirelessly, putting in its best effort, to bring long term and
sustainable returns to shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Sales

The Group’s sales mainly comprises the sales of yarns,
grey fabrics and garment fabrics, as well as jeanswear.

With the commencement of operation of our new
production facilities, and the commitment of staff

members, the sales of yarn increased by about 15.5% in

2017 as compared to that of 2016. Sales analyses of the

Group by products are shown below.

RMB million
AR¥BEET
8,000

7,000

2,135.5

2,015.9
1,966.1
3,098.7 2,340.3

Bt %5 [0 R

HE

AEENHEETRRBEEYR K kA
B RE - NS BRFENEER
BRERZEBABNS N —F—tF5HE
WRHEERR _T— RNFHEEN155% T
SIRASESBERNEEDT

6,000
5,000 2,617.2
4,000
3,000
2,000 3,884.1
1,000

0

3,821.8
80.0
[ | 4674 N 5283
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2017 2016
Bt —ExE —B—tf —EAE —B—tFE —E-AE Bt —EAE
Stretchable Other yarns Fabrics Jeans
core-spun yarns HAib# R A R ER TR
BHELDER
. Cotton . Denim Synthetic fiber . Stretchable grey . Other grey Garment Jeans
B4 FF Nigfu fabrics fabrics fabrics {74
EHEHA HAh AR [EEe
Sales
change between
2017 and 2016
2017 2016 —T—+F
—E—+tfF —E—RF HERS
RMB’000 RMB’000 —T—RF
AREFT ARBEFT pd L
Stretchable core-spun yarns BB LR
— Cotton — 8% 3,884,130 3,821,813 1.6%
— Denim —&fF 2,617,195 2,135,524 22.6%
— Synthetic fiber — NS 1,457,380 992,237 46.9%
Other yarns Hib a4z
— Cotton — 8y 3,098,705 2,340,275 32.4%
— Denim — &fF 2,015,865 1,966,129 2.5%
— Synthetic fiber — NEH 1,506,885 1,369,085 10.1%
Grey fabrics b7 il
— Stretchable grey fabrics — B Hm 467,367 528,279 -11.5%
— Other grey fabrics — Hhikm 131,402 79,955 64.3%
Garment fabrics A 493,554 285,834 72.7%
Jeans HAT 4 633,892 128,606 392.9%
Total FEE 16,306,375 13,647,737 19.5%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B B (2)
Sales (Continued) HE (&)
Sales Volume
HE
Stretchable core-spun yarns M Cotton 184>
BHESHE W Denim 4-{F
Ton 1 B Synthetic fiber A& 4%
: M 22.6%
¥ 1.9%
173,732 110,799
170,419
90,375
M 35.6%
56,576
I 41,712
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—EB—tF ZF-AF —B—tF ZB-XF —B—tF ZB-XF
Other yarns W Cotton 174
Hih#h iz I Denim 417
Ton M16.1% M Synthetic fiber AiE4i4
139,349 ¥ 5.8%
119,986 2
103,087 10947
4.9%
67i36 64l 13
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

—B—tF ZB-KF —B—LF ZB-REF

Grey fabrics, Garment fabrics and Jeans

#m  ER R FE

Million meters/Million pairs

—B—LF ZF-XE

M Stretchable grey fabrics 58 /1747

BEA/ E'%{i 9.8% W Other grey fabrics Efibif7m
s0 /0 B Garment fabrics H}
53.3 Jeans 414
48.1
1 20.6%
29.3
1 56.1% 24.3
17.8
| 1.4
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

—E-tF ZB-RF 2t ZB-RF

Bt ZB-KF

—E-tF ZB-RE
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THBFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Sales (Continued)

Bt #E BB ()

HE(#E)

Sales volume Selling price Gross profit margin
#E £E Ei
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tf T F ZE-tf —FF Bt —TF
Stretchable core-spun yams BHBRGHE M,/
(Ton/RMB per ton) AREEE)
— Cotton — w4 170,419 173,732 22,792 21,998 15.4% 21.0%
— Denim —H4fF 110,799 90,375 23,621 23,630 19.0% 24.3%
— Synthetic fiber — NEHi% 56,576 4,712 25,760 23,788 18.3% 22.3%
Other yarns (Ton/RMB perton) ~ E /b4 (i,
AREBIR)
— Cotton — 84 139,349 119,986 22,237 19,505 15.1% 17.4%
— Denim —&{f 103,087 109,472 19,555 17,960 16.2% 18.9%
— Synthetic fiber — \Ef% 67,236 64,113 22,412 21,354 14.3% 15.4%
Grey fabrics (Million meters/ K (B8R
RMB per meter) ARBEX)
— Stretchable grey fabrics — BN 481 53.3 9.7 9.9 51% 11.9%
— Other grey fabrics — Hih ikt 17.8 114 74 7.0 -5.3% 8.6%
Garment fabrics (Million meters/ X (B&3K/
RMB per meter) ARERZXK) 29.3 24.3 16.8 1.8 1.5% 15.0%
Jeans (Million pairs/RMB per pair) {71 (A& 1%/
AREEE) 1341 34 48.4 378 2.3% -0.1%

The Chinese textile market is the Group’s major market,
accounting for 80.1% of our total sales of 2017. The ten
largest customers of the Group for 2017 are as follows:

Shaoguan Shunchang Weaving Factory Co., Ltd.
Ningbo Dagian Textile Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Qianjin Jeans Co., Ltd.

Toray International, Inc.

Zhejiang Limayunshan Textile Co., Ltd.
American Eagle Ouffitters, Inc.

XinChangJing Textiles Co., Ltd.

YiXing Magnolia Garment Co., Ltd.

Haining Denim Weaving Co., Ltd.

Baijia Dyeing Factory Ltd.

The Group has more than 3,000 customers. As the
Group produces differentiated products, the Group does
not rely on orders from a particular customer. The ten
largest customers only accounted for 16.7% of the total
sales of 2017 and each one of them has a more than 5
years’ business relationship with the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit of the Group decreased from RMB2.65
billion to RMB2.44 billion, representing a decrease of
7.8% as compared to that of 2016. The overall gross
profit margin also decreased by 4.4 percentage point to
15.0% as compared to that of 2016. The decrease in
gross profit margin was mainly due to increase in cotton
prices that resulted in a gross profit margin higher than
normal level for yarns last year. In contrast, certain
relatively simple types of yarns faced price pressure in
the first half of this year. Moreover, the downstream
business was still in the initial stage with a lower gross
profit margin than the yarn business, leading to a more
substantial decrease in gross profit margin.

Cost structure

Cost of sales increased by 26.0% to RMB13.9 billion
when compared to that of 2016. Raw material cost
accounted for about 77.0% of the total cost of sales of
2017. Cotton is our major raw material.

The breakdown of our cost of sales is shown below:

Consumables

B #& g ()

EX D EF IR
AEENEFH-T—ANFEARB265(ET
TR 7.8% 5 AR 24 4 18T o BEEEFR IR
BT AETRA4EEDIEE15.0% &
FIRTRIBHNEFHBEFRERRIE
BEIFAESSNEEKTE  HARAERE ¥
FHHBHEENOEREERZE - o
THEBERESEE HEFRHRER
Wis s HILERERIE TR HIBA -

BRASRHE
HEXAR T —/NF1EN26.0% E AR
1398 L RZZE—EFZEMBRK ARG
HEMRALT7.0% BIEABMOEZERM
#o

TONRAEEHER AR

Consumables

SHFES Others SHFES Others

1.6% ﬁﬁﬁ 1.6% Hity

o

Utilities A% Utilities 08%
J B ) Rkt

6.2%

7.0%

Depreciation
bl

4.2%

Direct Labour
HETHE
9.9%

w

Raw Materials
A E

77.0%

Depreciation
b

4.3%

Direct Labour
T

HIE
9.7%

Raw Materials
AR

76.6%

2017
—EB—tF

Selling and distribution costs

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
selling and distribution costs amounted to RMB581.7
million, representing an increase of 17.1% when
compared to that of 2016. The increase was attributable
to the increase in transportation costs and salaries of
sales personnel due to increase in sales volume.

General and administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
general and administrative expenses decreased by 6.4%
to RMB511.9 million when compared to that of 2016,
which represented 3.1% of the Group’s sales. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in costs for
arrangement and repayment of debts.

2016
—E—RF

HERDHAX

RBE-Z—tF+-A=+—RHLFE"
AEBEZHERDHAXBR -_T—RFLI
171% ZARESBITIET - FAREHNIFEE
i SEBKNARIEEABRTE LIRFTE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B E B ()
Cash flows HeERE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTFIT
Net cash generated from operating KL EEATISIR & F5R
activities 2,192,611 606,575
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEFER 58 (1,337,721) (2,045,779)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE) (FTH),/Frig
financing activities e F58 (1,201,380) 1,312,390
Cash and cash equivalents RERNRE KBS EEY
at end of the year 1,466,718 1,813,208

For the year ended 31 December 2017, net cash
generated from operating activities amounted to
RMB2,192.6 million, which represents an significant
increase comparing with 2016 mainly because of the
significant increase in cash outflow of raw material
purchase and the prepayment of cotton purchase
required by the domestic cotton suppliers last year, while
such situation has improved this year. Net cash used in
investing activities amounted to RMB1,337.7 million,
which was mainly used for the payment of capital
expenditures for capacity expansion, acquisitions of
subsidiaries and investments in associates. During the
year under review, net cash used in financing activities
amounted to RMB1,201.4 million, which was mainly used
in repayment of bank loans and dividends.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank and cash
balances (including pledged bank deposits) amounted to
RMB1,555.0 million (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB1,994.4 million). The Group’s inventories increased
by RMB832.9 million to RMB3,764.2 million and our
trade and bills receivables increased by RMB40.20
million to RMB1,630.1 million (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB2,931.3 million and RMB1,590.0 million
respectively). The inventory turnover days and trade and
bills receivables turnover days were 87 days and 36
days respectively, compared to 79 days and 35 days in
2016. Increase in inventory turnover days was mainly
attributable to the increase in average inventory for the
year due to the inventories from the acquisition of
subsidiaries in the first half and by the end of 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

Trade and bills payables decreased by RMB82.60 million
to RMB2,961.7 million as at 31 December 2017 (as at 31
December 2016: RMB3,044.3 million), the payable
turnover days was 78 days, compared to 87 days in
2016. Decrease in the payable turnover days was mainly
due to the decrease in cotton purchases as compared to
last year.

The total bank borrowings of the Group reduced by
RMB559.7 million to RMB5,549.6 million as at 31
December 2017. Current bank borrowings decreased by
RMB987.3 million to RMB2,562.4 million while non-
current bank borrowings increased by RMB427.6 million
to RMB2,987.2 million. The increase in the proportion of
non-current bank borrowings enhanced the stability of

B F& g ()

RBESRUEER(2)
R-ZB—+E+-_A=+—A0 ENZESE
EESERLARKEWOETEARK

20617 B T(RN=E—X~"F+=-A=+—8:
AR¥304431870)  ENRAEREATS

R MZE—RFARTR - BNFIEEE
REE L EFREIZRA/RERBERD
FRTEL

R-ZBE—+E+-A=+—0 K~EEDHIR
TEERERDARESS7TELTEARE
55.496 87T - MENRTTEER I AR Q9.873
BLE ARME256241E7T © MIERENRITE
EEEMARBEL4276 (BT E AR 29.872
BT ° IERBIBITEEN L HIE A B
MPHEENL 2N - REFB ,ﬁ@zﬁ#f&ti&

the financial structure. Despite its higher interest rate  #FHE L I REE R FEE TR
than current borrowings, the Group will continue to  REIE -
maintain a considerable proportion of long-term
borrowings.
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s financial R-ZE—+EFK_F— X F+-_A=+—H"
ratios were as follows: REE B ENT
2017 2016

—E—tF AN
Current ratio BNt & 1.20 1.10
Debt to equity ratio’ BfERESL R 0.94 1.19
Net debt to equity ratio? BEFEERLR? 0.68 0.80

! Based on total borrowings over equity attributable to
shareholders

2 Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits over equity
attributable to shareholders

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total bank
borrowings amounted to RMB$5,549.6 million, among
which RMB2,298.1 million (41.4%) was denominated in
Renminbi, RMB1,010.3 million (18.2%) was denominated
in United States dollars (“US$” or “USD”) and
RMB2,241.2 million (40.4%) was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”). These bank borrowings
borne interest at rates ranging from 1.2% to 6.5% per
annum (2016: 3.3% to 6.5%).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has outstanding
current bank borrowings of RMB2,562.4 million (2016:
RMB3,549.7 million). Decrease in current bank
borrowings was mainly due to more working capital
borrowings in relation to the prepayment of cotton
purchase and inventories last year, while such
borrowings decreased this year.

. RBEEERARR GRS

2 RELEECRERSRESFEYROEMR
TR B ARCR (5

Rt

R-ZEBE—+F+-_A=+—0 KNEEMHIR
TEEEBEAARKES5496(ET  Hbh AR
#22.9811B T (41.4%) AAREFE - KA
R #10.10318 7T (18.2%) A=t ([Z=7T ) 5
B LA R A R1#22.412 18 7T (40.4%) B LAE 7T
(BT INE - ZERITEERFFEA1.2%
£6.5%(ZF—RNF :3.3% £6.5%)7T 8 °

—+tF+ZA=F+—H xEEBEZX
;@bfﬁmﬂéﬁ,}\li%zsewﬁ*(*
T—NF - AR¥E35497187T) o MENIRTTE

/WQEEKEEIE/‘iiﬁ ETEN R RIFEAERE

EELASEERSZ  AXFEEEEERD
ﬁﬁﬁl

JiA
5
=}

F“Inll

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =Z—tFF# 19



THBFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Borrowings (Continued)

In respect of the Group’s borrowings, the Group has to
comply with certain restrictive financial covenants.

As at 31 December 2017, bank borrowings of RMB464.7
million (2016: RMB658.2 million) were secured by the
pledge of the Group’s land use rights with a net book
amount of RMB26.70 million (2016: RMB26.0 million);
the pledge of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
with a net book amount of approximately RMB180.9
million (2016: RMB116.5 million) and inventories with a
net book amount of RMB261.2 million (2016: RMB393.0
million). No bank acceptance was secured as at 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB206.8 million).

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Vietnam.
Most of the Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB and US$. Foreign exchange
risk may arise from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. The Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is mainly attributable to its borrowings and
raw material procurement denominated in US$ or HKS.
The Group manages its foreign exchange risks by
performing regular reviews and closely monitoring its
foreign exchange exposures.

To mitigate the risk of depreciation of Renminbi, the
Group has taken steps to reduce its US dollar
indebtedness exposure by cutting down its US dollar-
denominated borrowings and purchasing a suitable
amount of currency option contracts. The protection
offered by some of the currency option contracts entered
is only to the extent of USD1 to RMB7.6. In the event
that Renminbi depreciates beyond that level, the Group
will be required to bear the relevant foreign exchange
risk. In addition, other than bills payable in US$, the
Group had exposure in Hong Kong dollar indebtedness
of about HK$673 million without protection of option
contracts as at 31 December 2017.

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the capital
expenditure of the Group amounted to RMB724 million
(2016: RMB1,924 million). It was mainly comprised of
the investments in fixed assets in Vietnam and Mainland
China.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.
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THEFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”)

As announced by the Company on 12 April 2013, the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a
purchase agreement with Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore
Branch, J.P. Morgan Securities plc and Standard
Chartered Bank in connection with the issue of US$200
million 6.500% senior notes (the “2013 Notes”) due
2019. The indenture (the “Indentures”) governing the
2013 Notes provides that upon the occurrence of a
change of control triggering event, the Company will
make an offer to purchase all outstanding 2013 Notes at
a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not
including) the offer to purchase payment date.

A change of control under the Indentures includes,
among others, any transaction that results in either (i)
the Permitted Holders (as defined below), which include
Mr. Hong Tianzhu (“Mr. Hong”), the controlling
shareholder of the Company and companies controlled
by him, being the beneficial owners (as such term is
used in the Indentures) of less than 50.1% of the total
voting power of the voting stock of the Company; or (ii)
any person or group (as such terms are used in the
Indentures) is or becomes the beneficial owner, directly
or indirectly, of total voting power of the voting stock of
the Company greater than such total voting power held
beneficially by the Permitted Holders. “Permitted
Holders” means any or all of (1) Messrs. Hong Tianzhu
and Zhu Yongxiang; (2) any affiliate of the persons
specified in paragraph (1); and (3) any person both the
capital stock and the voting stock of which (or in the case
of a trust, the beneficial interests in which) are owned
80% by persons specified in paragraphs (1) and (2)
above.

The 2013 Notes were fully redeemed before maturity on
18 January 2017.
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THBFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (Continued)

As announced by the Company on 18 May 2015, by an
agreement dated 18 May 2015 (“2015 Facility
Agreement”) entered into by, among others, the
Company as borrower and a syndicate of banks and
financial institutions as lenders, the lenders have agreed
to grant a term loan facility (“2015 Facility”) of up to the
aggregate principal amount of US$110 million for any
refinancing, repayment, redemption, purchase or
repurchase of the 2011 Notes due in January 2016
issued by the Company, in whole or part, at or before
their maturity. The 2015 Facility shall be fully repaid in
May 2018 and is guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of
the Company. The amount of the 2015 Facility
represents approximately 27% of the total amount of
banking/credit facilities (including the 2015 Facility)
presently available to the Group. The 2015 Facility
Agreement contains the usual cross default provisions
and a further requirement that Mr. Hong shall be and
continue to be the chairman of the Company, directly or
indirectly beneficially own not less than 25% of the total
voting shares issued by the Company, and be and
remain the single largest holder of the voting shares
issued by the Company. A breach of such requirement
will constitute an event of default under the 2015 Facility
Agreement, and as a result, the 2015 Facility is liable to
be declared immediately due and payable. The
occurrence of such circumstance may trigger the cross
default provisions of other banking/credit facilities
available to the Group and, as a possible consequence,
these other facilities may also be declared to be
immediately due and payable.

As announced by the Company on 20 April 2016, by an
agreement dated 20 April 2016 (“2016 Facility
Agreement”) entered into by, among others, Texhong
Galaxy Technology Limited (“Texhong Galaxy”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower
and a syndicate of banks and financial institutions as
lenders, the lenders have agreed to grant a facility (“2016
Facility”) in the aggregate principal amount of up to
US$103,000,000 to finance the development of Texhong
Galaxy’s production plant in Haiha District, Quang Ninh
Province, Vietnam. The 2016 Facility shall be fully repaid
in April 2023 and is guaranteed by the Company.
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THEFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (Continued)

The 2016 Facility Agreement contains a requirement that
Mr. Hong Tianzhu shall maintain, directly or indirectly,
the status of the largest individual shareholder of the
Company and maintain the position of chairman of the
Group. A breach of such requirement will constitute an
event of default under the 2016 Facility Agreement, and
as a result, the 2016 Facility is liable to be declared
immediately due and payable. The occurrence of such
circumstance may trigger the cross default provisions of
other banking/credit facilities available to the Group and,
as a possible consequence, these other facilities may
also be declared to be immediately due and payable.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company is in
compliance with the 2015 Facility Agreement and the
2016 Facility Agreement.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total
workforce of 38,024 employees (as at 31 December
2016: 27,279), of whom 16,984 employees were located
in the sales headquarters and our manufacturing plants
in Mainland China. The remaining 21,040 employees
were stationed in regions outside Mainland China
including Vietnam, Cambodia, Nicaragua, Taiwan, Hong
Kong and Macao. New employees were recruited to
cater for the Group’s business expansion during the
year. The Group offers its staff competitive remuneration
schemes. In addition, discretionary bonuses and share
options may also be granted to eligible staff based on
individual and Group’s performance. The Group is
committed to creating a learning and sharing culture in
the organization. Heavy emphasis is placed on the
training and development of individual staff and team
building, as the Group’s success is dependent on the
contribution of all skilled and motivated employees.

Dividend policy

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable
dividend payout ratio of about 30% of the Group’s net
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company,
providing shareholders with an equitable return. The
Board has resolved to distribute a final dividend of 21 HK
cents per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of member on 8 May 2018 and will be
payable on or about 18 May 2018, subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company on 26 April 2018. An
interim dividend of 24 HK cents per share was paid by
the Company on 18 September 2017.
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THBFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

The following are the key risks that the Group considers
to be of great significance to the Group in its current
status. These risks may have materially adverse effect

on the Group’s business.

For the possible impact of each risk on the Group should
it occur, we have made a detail description and set down
corresponding control measures and mitigation plan to

manage the risk.

The impact of risk relating to the business of the Group
will change over time. The size, complexity and coverage
of our business and the changing environment in which
the Group operates also mean that the list cannot be an
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exhaustive list of all material risks that could affect the

Group.

AEEE AR
AYAEERARRTEE
- S AR AR LA E

MEBERBETFE -

2B AT A A
2 RMIEVET AR - WHIFT TAEE
B SRR E R ZERE

BE
]

EHARRBELH

B SR B 2R 15 B RO [P 0 52 S BB Sy ) 9
c HPIEBIMRER EHRERENEZHE

HMEmBIRE IR

AR EMAZEASENEANRR -

Risks description

Major control measures
and risk mitigation

Changes of risk
level from last year

¢ TEREERER AR K BB L FR1E
Business concentration
ES7 3 L
Product concentration: The Group has » Enhance customer communication with >
established its market position as a an outstanding marketing team which Unchanged
manufacturer of high value-added thoroughly and promptly understands the
core-spun cotton textile products and requirements of customers.
core-spun cotton is the major earning +  Step up cooperation with raw material
source of the Group. In the event of any suppliers and monitor the market trend of
change in fashion trend, customers may change in new textile materials
prefer other textile materials. *  Boost input for research and
Competition in such market may also development team and improve product
intensify suddenly. If the Group fails to functionality and develop new products in
respond to the change in an efficient response to market demands
and effective manner, the profitability of » Explore downstream industries and
the Group may be adversely affected. increase the contribution of downstream
products
Geographical concentration: The » Facilitate the development of import and
Mainland China is the major market of export business continuously to tap into
the Group and, thus, the Group is overseas markets
subject to the economic, political and
social condition and change in domestic
demand for the products of the Group in
China.
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THEFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

(Continued)

AEBMEXERE &)

Risks description

Major control measures
and risk mitigation

Changes of risk

level from last year

o B 4 TEERERREREER BBKFRLFRL
Risk of fluctuation of cotton prices
RIEERRE R
Cotton is the major production material Closely monitor the dynamics of cotton «>
of the Group and the fluctuation of futures and supply and demand balance Unchanged
cotton prices may not align with and correlation in the spot market and
fluctuation of end-product prices at all hedge risks mainly through measures
times. In the event of intense fluctuation like maintaining stable procurement and
of cotton prices, the gross profit margin inventory strategies
of the Group will be heavily affected. Diversify the development of the

synthetic fiber category and reduce the

Group’s reliance on the cotton category
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THBFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

REBWE KRR #)

(Continued)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
B 4 TEERERREBREER RBAERLFR1E
Foreign exchange and interest risk
HNER R EER
Fluctuation of exchange rate may result *  Foster communication with financial 4

in material losses on foreign currency
and affect the raw material procurement
costs and financing costs of the Group.
In the event of intensified fluctuation of
the exchange rate of USD/RMB, the
profitability of the Group may be subject
to material uncertainties.

In the event of increase in prevailing
interest rates of banks, liabilities at
floating rates may cause an increase in
financing costs of the Group.
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institutions and market analysis
institutions to interpret the dynamics of
financial market and make specific
adjustments to financing structure

* Increase loans in RMB to reduce the
ratio of loans in USD to directly mitigate
risks

* Lock up exposure of liabilities in foreign
currencies, including foreign liabilities
arising from daily operation and
financing, using foreign financing
products, such as forward contracts and
options

*  Closely monitor various important
economic data published by the People’s
Bank of China and the Federal Reserve
and keep abreast with its interest rate
policy

+ Obtain quotations for interest rate swap
from financial institutions regularly and
utilize financial instruments in a timely
manner to switch from floating to fixed
interest rate
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Causes of the trend:
+  Substantial part
exposure to

foreign currency
liabilities has
been locked up
+  Structure of the
financings in
various
currencies has
been optimized
gradually
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THEFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP AEENERRRE @)
(Continued)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
o B 4 TEERERREBRYEER BBKFRLFRL

Financing risk

BEmk

The Group is now in the stage of
business expansion with higher
financing needs. In the event that the
financial institutions which provide the
existing facilities cease to offer such
financing to the Group or banking
facilities on similar terms and the Group
fails to obtain alternatives, the Group
may not have sufficient funds for its
commitment of capital projects and may
restrict or hinder the business operation
of the Group.

AEEB RN EBERER 585
MRERE - MERURAMENTR
BRE ERASERHEERRE AU
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FEEE - AIAKERTEESEHN
B ANEARRB KA - B A sER
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+  Enhance the transparency of the Group’s €%
operation for banks’ understanding and Unchanged
maintain good working relationship
between the Group and financial
institutions

+  Monitor various financing indicators in
real-time and provide timely alerts to
ensure compliance in respect of various
indicators

+ Diversify the portfolio of financial
institutions and financing products

+ Devise a reasonable spread for financing
with different terms to strike a balance
between financing costs and risks
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THBFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

(Continued)

REBWE KRR #)

Risks description

Major control measures
and risk mitigation

Changes of risk
level from last year

B 4 TEERERREBREER RBAERLFR1E
Customer credit management risk

BEFEREERR

The Group focuses on producing a wide Monitor and evaluate credit terms 4

range of products and does not rely on
a particular individual customer. The
Group works with more than 3,000
customers from an enormous and
widespread portfolio. As a result of the
difficult market environment and request
from part of the customers to extend
credit terms, the Group is facing a risk
of the receivables turning into bad
debts.

ARENEERABRENERSER
MEBRRE—FF - AEEREEF
B3,000% - FERZAMEBAMOE -
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SRERERY - NEBESREYUIRRDN
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granted to customers regularly

Monitor the collectability of receivables in
real-time and provide alerts and warnings
for amount overdue and customers with
abnormal business operation

Closely monitor market dynamics and
operation of customers to devise plan for
customer visit and collect the latest
information of customers

Enhance customer reconciliation system
Adopt collectability of receivables as a
criterion of staff performance assessment
to promote staff members’ awareness of
payment demand

Arrange export credit insurance for all
overseas customers with newly
established relationship
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Causes of the trend:

L)
i

Increasing
business volume
and business
type lead to
increasing total
receivables
Unfavorable
operation
environment in
the textile
industry spurs
operation risk for
customers
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THEFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP AEENERRRE @)
(Continued)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
o B 4 TEERERREBRYEER BBKFRLFRL
Product liability risk
EmEERR
The Group offers a wide range of Increase efforts on quality control and 4
products and its portfolio is ever- devise improvement solutions for quality Causes of the trend:
expanding, creating a huge risk of fluctuation * Increased
product liability for the Group. Although Control production process using state- product portfolio
the Group has not incurred any material of-the-art measurement equipment and +  More stringent

losses from product liability, there have
been individual claims from customers
in respect of product quality.

AEEERREES  AHRERGE
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requirements on
product quality
and differentiation
from customers

online quality control system

Improve production technology training
for staff members and cultivate
responsibility awareness of plant
production staff and management
members at each level

Actively reach out to customers for
product liability incidents and coordinate
for resolution and hold relevant staff
accountable internally
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TEEHRE D
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP KEBNEKRRER2)

(Continued)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
B 4 TEEERER AR K RBAERLFR1E
Tax risk
B E R
The operation presence of the Group Engage financial officers familiar with 4

covers various countries and regions,
including the Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau, Taiwan, Vietnam,

local tax policies and regulations to
conduct tax audit and handle tax
examination of the government

Causes of the trend:

Intensifying tax
regulations in

Cambodia and Turkey. In the course of Engage professional local tax different

tax preparation and daily operation, we consultation institutions for consultations countries

are subject to the following tax risks: on tax compliance advices, tax incentive * Increasing

+ Risk of tax incompliance caused by policies and tax preparation solutions international
misunderstanding of regional tax Liaise with local tax authority frequently coverage of
policies; to have thorough understanding of operation

* The interpretation of tax policies and change in tax policies and policy presence,
the legal conformity of tax interpretation, thereby reducing risks of resulting in
preparation must be confirmed by tax incompliance and enforcement of tax mounting

the tax administration authority. In
the course of such confirmation, the
enforcement of tax administration
may be different.

administration

overseas tax risk
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THEFRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP AEENERRRE @)
(Continued)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
o B 4 TEERERREBRYEER BBKFRLFRL
Legal and other regulatory risk
FERHEERR
As a listed company on the Stock + Engage qualified legal advisors or «>
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the consultation institutions to review and Unchanged

“Stock Exchange”), the Group must
comply with the “Securities and Futures
Ordinance” and the “Listing Rules” of
the Stock Exchange as well as the laws
and regulations in places which the
Group operates in. As social and
economic environment evolves, many
countries and relevant authorities
continue to promulgate laws and rules
to update economic matters, such as
corporate governance, foreign
investment, commerce, tax and trade.
The introduction or amendments of
these laws and regulations may
adversely affect the business and
prospects of the Group.

REBER—REBBA X 50 (15
Rl EmRTE - wAETER RS
(BRI VAR 32 PRC_E T A5 Al DDA B A SR (B4
EEMEER AR - BELSLRE
RENEL  SRAREERES T
RAEHLRER  BIMRE BE-
BELBEFEEEEHREERRM -
BERERARIE B E e
ARBEXGRASEXEATE

provide advices on relevant documents
to ensure legal compliance

» The company secretary is responsible for
offering advices to the board of directors
and board committees in respect of the
latest legal, regulatory and governance
matters and ensuring their awareness of
such matters

- BIFAERNIZERIFEARERN
HEAXZIRIER BREKEZEAR B2
Ex

s ARNEAENEZESREZEZESH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

REBWE KRR #)

(Continued)
Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
B 4 TEERERREBREER RBAERLFR1E
Energy supply risk
BER M ERE R
Electricity consumption of the Group’s »  Equip production factories subject to >
production process is huge and potential electricity shortage with Unchanged
electricity shortage may adversely affect generators to minimize the duration of
the operation of production facilities of electricity shortage
the Group. +  Conduct technological renovation on
equipment to reduce energy consumption
» Liaise with the government to seek
permit for uninterrupted electricity supply
AEERYEBETRAAENESN: - RAUBHRENEROEETIREHESE 4':
ENHRERAGEHAEEEEREN B ROREEENHEERNERE wEy

BEEKTMTE -

o HREETRIZCE - BRERRER
- BERFAR BURERSEKEENN
Eial
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

(Continued)

AEBMEXERE &)

Risks description

BRI

Major control measures Changes of risk
and risk mitigation level from last year
TEERERREBRYEER REBAERLFRE

Human resources risk

ANERE

The Group operates in a labour-
intensive industry. While our new plant,
with more advanced production facilities,
has helped to reduce our deployment of
labour force to a certain extent, our
need in manpower remains relatively
high compared to some other industrial
segments. If we experience any labour
shortage or technical inadequacy of its
labour force, the efficiency in utilization
of our production facilities will be
impaired, and our profitability will be
affected as a result.

The Group has been expanding its
operation abroad. The cultural difference
between our foreign and Chinese
employees may bring risk to the regular
and normal operation of our Company.

AEEMBRTERSHERUTE  #
AT IRERTERTENEERE -
E-ERELRETST  BRMALE
HiTE  HRETHFREARS - &
AETRHIABEEREMEREHE
ERBHAMEEE  EMTEREN
BMEES -

REEBIMETEEA - BHETE
FEEETHLERMRALEMNIE
FEETREAR

Commence effective performance-based ~ €%
unit count in recognition of the principle Unchanged
of ‘better reward comes with greater
contribution’

Expand the scope of staff training to
create a highly efficient and capable
workforce

Prepare and work further ahead on any
decisions related to employees and that
any issue which may arise will be
promptly dealt with

Address issue concerning the conditions
of our canteen and staff quarters,
enhance the quality of our employees’
livelihood, and improve our backup
supporting service

Train up and enhance the management
capability of our management staff, roll
out skill and capability reinforcement
programme, strengthen the sense of
belonging and honour of our staff
Improve staff retention through
maintaining and expanding our presence

in the locality

BRRRER T BRSLESBHRA >
WABILEGE  FESSEETHAE BEY
BB H TR S

AEIE T EERRBIRAMTAR

IR I RE I R R

HERY FHEHE RSBEILEE
% - MIFRRERS

BT ERABMERKY  HRED
RABIMER ERETHOENAR
R BREBR

REABIRAR  BEVBAAREE
WHFEN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

REBWE KRR #)

(Continued)

Major control measures Changes of risk
Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
B 4 TEERERREBRYEER BBKFERLFERL
Environmental protection compliance risk
RREHER
The Group’s production process must »  Selectively pick our suppliers, enter into 4

comply with the environmental

protection laws and regulations in

various countries and territories. The

Group has not been subject to any fines

or penalties concerning environmental
pollution in the past. However, there can
be no assurance that governments of

any countries and territories will not
introduce new laws and regulations to
impose stricter control on environmental
pollution in the future. Additionally, the

risk faced by the Group may also .
increase as a result of investments in
downstream sectors.

Changes in existing environmental
protection laws and regulations may
require the Group to incur substantial
expenditure to upgrade its existing
environmental protection facilities and
the profitability of the Group may be
adversely affected.

REELAEBREAETSHYMENIR -
BIRE LR RIEH) - $EIE15£IM
RRBSEMBIRETFAEE - B2
ITﬁMulim&ﬂﬁWA#Hé% .
AEBEBEHIRESENTERERIE

fle RoN REBGRATHEXRE
0 A] BESE 0 R LR o .
RAERREELGOILRES A<

SRMELRANNE « WAFALA
BHREDBNERSE  AEENE
N TRETHEYE -

purchase agreements with suppliers
which guarantee the raw materials
supplied are in compliance with
environmental protection standard (in
particular dyestuff and chemicals)
Establish a factory internal check system
and procedure in compliance with
product-wise regular core environmental
protection standard, set up a highly
regulated control system and strictly
implement it

Pay attention to news about development
in environmental regulations, cause new
factories to operate in strict compliance
with any new regulations and existing
factories to transform and upgrade their
facilities in order to meet with
environmental protection standard.

BEA R AHERFIIRBRERR
EENHERE  LERPMMEBRCESR
FHE
BUYEGRBRZLORREENIHE R
RHEERE  BURSHNEESE WEE
BT

EIRBAMFENEEES  HRIE
TRB IR IR RRET AR ANTT - ﬁﬁA%IJfWE
BEITIUE - AERFTRRA RIZE

Causes of the trend:

Increase in
number of dyeing
factories and
higher risk in
environmental
governance

The PRC
government
tightens its
control over
environmental
protection, which
may affect the
production
operation of
business
enterprises

t
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n

B BUR E IR R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence. The
Board believes that good corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Group and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (the
“CG CODE”)

The Company is committed to maintaining high level of
corporate governance and has steered its development
and protected the interests of its shareholders in an
enlightened and open manner. The Board comprises five
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The Board has adopted the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During the
reporting period, the Company had complied with the
Code Provisions.

THE BOARD
The Board currently comprises eight Directors and its
composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Tang Daoping

Hui Tsz Wai

Ji Zhongliang

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):

Tao Xiaoming

Cheng Longdi

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD

AEBEHNERRKFZLEES QR
SERE BEURBIMARE -EEg
MEERZEEERHAKE 2K MRS
BRREEZREE -

EEEET(hEERTAD

ERB—HBNRFEEKFREER - LA
AMFAROESEEARRE O ERRRER
R D EFEALERTEFR=F
BYFNTEFER - EFSCRMAFEN L
5 BT SR+ P AR EA 5T RIS RMESO
(ICFRIHEXOD]) - RBERA - ARFEDE
SPCSP RSO ©

Exg
EFEgR AN \RESHEK  EREHIITM
T~

BITES
HRB(E/E)
KoK (FIEEFRITHARE)

B
578
EHHR

BUFHTES(BIFHTEE]) :
Fe A
FEREAR
T R.}E MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =Z—tFF# 35



ERELIRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD (Continued)

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on
pages 59 to 63. There was no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) among members of the Board.

The Company has three INEDs representing more than
one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of his independence and
considers that all the INEDs are independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual
and interim results. During the year, four Board meetings
and one general meeting were held and attendance of
each Director at the Board meetings and the general
meeting is set out as follows:

BEES )

EE AR EHNE0E63EY [EER
SRERE] &N o B ek 8 EL
BR(BIEET - %55 REXHMEA M
BRIR) -

ARRZ=Z2FUFNTEFHEFTETAR
ZR=nz—  RELWRAUE30MK =
D-RBIUFBTEFLRAAREEZEE
ERIET ARV BEREXNE - EF
CERESRBUNFNTESARAB L
ZEEHERE  URRABABLIFNTES
BEELETRAEIAGMEZIESI T 2B
S e

ErgrHaRed TRniREZEER
BE AR 8 M RRIR - BN EARE
Brz2FERPHEE RFER - DRITHR
Exged - RBERAE BEFLFE
FEeRMBERAGZBERWT

Number of Number of
Board General
meetings meetings
attended/held attended/held
diES
BTESS HiE BT
BRERE BRRASRE
Executive Directors: PITES:
Hong Tianzhu HR

(Chairman) (F5E) 4/4 171
Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and ROKFE (B EEFHITEAES,)

Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 01
Tang Daoping % B 4/4 0/1
Hui Tsz Wai FFE 4/4 11
Ji Zhongliang HER 4/4 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BV F#HITEE :

Cheng Longdi TR 4/4 0/1
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA T R # MH, FCCA, FCPA

(PRACTISING), ACA, (PRACTISING), ACA,

CTA(HK), FHKIoD CTA(HK), FHKIoD 4/4 11
Tao Xiaoming b5 E A 4/4 11
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy,
investment plans, annual and interim results,
recommendations on Directors’ appointment or
reappointment, material contracts and transactions as
well as other significant policies and financial matters.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to
the senior management under the supervision of the
Board.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at
approximately quarterly intervals and as required by
business needs. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. The company secretary assists the chairman of
the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The agenda and the accompanying Board
papers are normally sent to all Directors at least three
days before the intended date of a regular Board meeting
(and so far as practicable for other Board meetings).
Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for their comment before the same will be
tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the company secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials and has access to the advice and
services of the company secretary. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to
the Company’s senior management. Directors will be
continuously updated on the major development of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant and in compliance with
paragraph A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Company would
arrange and fund suitable continuous professional
development for the Directors to participate in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
had provided all the Directors with regular updates
regarding the Company’s performance as well as
updates on latest amendments and developments to the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“the
Securities Code”) regarding securities transactions by
Directors and officers on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code (“Model
Code”) for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

A copy of the Securities Code has been sent to each
Director of the Company first on his/her appointment and
thereafter twice annually, 30 days and 60 days before
the date of the Board meetings to approve the
Company’s interim result and annual result respectively,
with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the
securities and derivatives of the Company until after
such results have been published, and that all his
dealings must be conducted in accordance with the
Securities Code.

Under the Securities Code, Directors are required to
notify Mr. Hong Tianzhu or Mr. Zhu Yongxiang or a
Director (other than himself/herself) designated by the
Board for the specific purpose (the “Designated Director”)
and receive a dated written acknowledgement from such
Designated Director before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company.

During the year, the Company, having made specific
enquiry on all the Directors, confirms that all the
Directors have complied with the required standard set
out in the Securities Code and the Model Code.
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ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Hong Tianzhu is the chairman of the Company. Mr.
Zhu Yongxiang is the vice chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, Professor Cheng
Longdi, Professor Tao Xiaoming has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director for an initial term
of one year commencing from their respective date of
appointment as an INED renewable automatically for
successive term of one year each commencing from the
next day after the expiry of the then current term of
appointment, unless terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either the independent
non-executive Director or the Company expiring at the
end of the initial term or at any time thereafter. The
Company has paid an annual director’s fee of
HKD300,000 to Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen,
HKD150,000 to Professor Cheng Longdi, and
HKD180,000 to Professor Tao Xiaoming for the year
ended 31 December 2017. Save for the above directors’
fees, none of the independent non-executive Directors
has received any other remuneration for holding their
office as an independent non-executive Director.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”), an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), each of which has its specific
written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all
meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are
kept by the company secretary, are circulated to all
Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned on
page 35 in the section “The Board” above, have been
adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration
Committee since November 2004, which currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors of
the Company, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi
and the chairman and an executive Director of the
Company, namely Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The chairman of
the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
terms of reference which are in line with the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, this should
include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in the
group;

(f) to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

40 TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

BEEZEE(H)

FHEEe

AAFE-_EENE+— ARERITHE
g BHHRZEEEHAAT LB IIEH
TEEEAR BETRBAL  BEBEHRE
RRERYERAATEIERENTET LR
Mk -GMEEETRAT RB\BAL - &
MZE B8 E RMEA(REEATATAE
THRIERE - HME S eRIEEARERE
MBTEBE  CATRAAFAREEASE
BERBTELES -

¥NEEe s T2AEREBRMNT

(a) HREERARFASRERABNDEH
BB R 2048 RLRR S IE AR LA B
EHIEFHIFTHINBCR - MESERH

=
X o

(b) EEEFEFITLENHEEEMHRE
Ry B O B2

(c) FERRITEFRSREEARMNHH
FFAMESSRIERZES - WEBHR
FeEMm  ERSEMNREESRE
(BRERASRIEBBREZENREE)

d) HFERTEENFHANE=SRHZ

=
[

(e) ZBERBRAXNMHFHM - BN HHE
8 M BB A R AR SR B A EL b B L B 12 R
fifF

() R REEANTEERBAEEAR
BHEL e 2k S BT 3 FE 1B % A8
B - DABRAR K S BRI R A 0 IR —
B ARAERA DR~ REE
ATAE  THBS |



ERELRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

(g) toreview and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

(h) to ensure that no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a
year. One committee meeting was held in 2017 to review
and discuss the existing policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors, the remuneration packages of
both the executive and non-executive Directors and the
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

BEEZES(H)

FMESE(2)

() B RHEREET ALY M RENE
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(h) MEREMESSEEMBREATE2AE
EBEMECHEM -
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MIEATEBZHNGEB  MEKBZHE
BRAT ¢

Number of committee
meeting attended/held

Committee member ZE88HE HE BTEEEEE 2K
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE 1M
Hong Tianzhu R 11
Tao Xiaoming b & AA 11
Cheng Longdi TEERR 11

In addition to the Committee meetings, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation
during 2017. The remuneration payable to Directors will
depend on their respective contractual terms under their
employment or service contracts as approved by the
Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the senior
executives and key employees of the Group, including
the executive Directors, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) in April
2014 for a term of ten years. Details of the share option
scheme are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 68
to 70 and note 15 to the financial statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since
November 2004, the current members of the Audit
Committee are Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor
Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen. To retain independence and objectivity, the
Audit Committee has been chaired by an INED with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Audit
Committee has adopted terms of reference, which are in
line with the code provisions of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are:

(@) to be primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

(c) to develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-
audit services;

(d) to monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them, and to review the Company’s annual
report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports before
submission to the Board;

(e) to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss;

(f) to review the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

(9)

to discuss with the management the risk
management and internal control systems and
ensure that management has discharged its duty
to have effective systems;

to consider any findings of major investigations of
risk management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices; and

to review the external auditor's management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.
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The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. BERZES@FFAZLBMAEH - V=
Two committee meetings were held in 2017 and the ZT—+E0RTMAEZEESSE MEKE
attendance of each member is set out as follows: ZHBEROT

Number of committee

meeting attended/held
Committee member ZE8HE HEBTZEEEEE 2K
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE 2/2
Tao Xiaoming b8 H #A 2/2
Cheng Longdi TEEAR 2/2
During the meetings held in 2017, the Audit Committee R-ZE—tFR{T2 8% EXEZECERE

had performed the work as summarised below:

(i)

(ii)

reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees
proposed by the external auditor regarding the final
audit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 (the “2016 Final Audit”);

reviewed the external auditor’s report of findings in
relation to the 2016 Final Audit;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

(i) reviewed the financial reports for the year ended
31 December 2016 and for the six months ended
30 June 2017; and

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control
system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance control and risk management
functions of the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

Nomination Committee

On 19 March 2012, the Board has approved the
establishment of the Nomination Committee which
became effective on 1 April 2012. The current members
of Nomination Committee comprises an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong
Tianzhu and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Professor Tao Xiaoming, Professor Cheng
Longdi and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen. The chairman
of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The
Nomination Committee has adopted terms of reference
which are in line with the code provisions of the CG
Code. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice in accordance
with the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are:

(a) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
to make recommendations to the Board on:

(d)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

the role, responsibilities, capabilities, skills,
knowledge and experience required from
members of the Board;

the policy on the terms of employment of
non-executive Directors;

the composition of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and other board
committees of the Company;

proposed changes to the structure, size and
composition of the Board;

candidates suitably qualified to become
members of the Board;

the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;

the re-election by shareholders of the
Company of any Directors who are to retire
by rotation having regard to their performance
and ability to continue to contribute to the
Board;

the continuation (or not) in service of any
independent non-executive Director serving
more than nine years and to provide
recommendation to the shareholders of the
Company as to how to vote in the resolution
approving the re-election of such independent
non-executive Director;

the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors;

succession planning for Directors in particular
the chairman and the chief executive; and

the policy concerning diversity of Board
members;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(e)

V)

(9)

(h)

()

46

to give full consideration to the following in the
discharge of its duties as mentioned above or
elsewhere in these terms of reference:

(i)  succession planning of Directors;

(i) leadership needs of the Group with a view of
maintaining or fostering the competitive edge
of the Group over others;

(i) changes in market environment and
commercial needs of the market in which the
Group operates;

(iv) the skills and expertise required from
members of the Board;

(v) the Board’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members adopted from time to time;
and

(vi) the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
with regard to directors of a listed issuer;

in respect of any proposed service contracts to be
entered into by any members of the Group with its
director or proposed director, which require the
prior approval of the shareholders of the Company
at general meeting under rule 13.68 of the Listing
Rules, to review and provide recommendations to
the shareholders of the Company (other than
shareholders who are directors with a material
interest in the relevant service contracts and their
respective associates) as to whether the terms of
the service contracts are fair and reasonable and
whether such service contracts are in the interests
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole,
and to advise shareholders on how to vote;

to ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-
executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment setting out what is expected of them
in terms of time commitment, committee service
and involvement outside meetings of the Board;

to conduct exit interviews with any Director upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons
for his departure; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned
by the Board from time to time.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

BEEZEE(H)

REZES(E)

(e)

(9)

EET FRE A ABESEE THE
EME - BTIFHEETRNHER :
() EFEEITE:

(i) AEEBRFRIMNBAREE R

FEVMHEZNEE A6

(i) WMHRBOEE RAREEEED
GREERE

A

(ivy EESENEMAEEBENRERE
i

By

(v) TREMEHREFEKREZ T
BECE - &

(viy LETRAEETETANESH
FEREEK

] Rt AT B iR £ AR RIS 13.68 1678
EEMBARRPRVIRAE Lt
MRBEFRNERETEEFRERENED
BERBAR - MARBBRRMZZEE
R E RGN AT RAEY - RS
RSARBREBRERME—EH MR
ARRIEREERELRR  AAQT]
BRR(ME/REZLHEZFREE R T
BEAN@BRRMEBEA LRI

R

BRIFNTESEENAZEZGHKE
EXEEE - ERJARRHEIFNTT
BEERANRRE  BENRBINEES
FEFHARA

= | A

BRBEARRESRENESLHE
HEERRE : &

ERESEEIREEREZ IR EME
I o



ERELIRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

On 5 August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Policy”) which aims to set out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on merit while taking into
account diversity including gender diversity. The
Nomination Committee will regularly review the
measurable objectives to ensure its effectiveness to
achieve diversity on the Board. The following measurable
objectives have been set for implementing the board
diversity policy:

. inclusion of candidates for Board members with
overseas working experience (outside of PRC);

. ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on
selection of Directors;

. inclusion of candidates for Board members with
working experience in other industries; and

. inclusion of candidates for Board members with
knowledge and skills in different aspects.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a
year. One committee meeting was held in 2017 to review
the structure and composition of the Board and the re-
election of the retiring Directors and the attendance of
each member is set out as follows:
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Number of committee
meeting attended/held

Committee member ZE8HE HE BT ZEEEEE 2K
Hong Tianzhu R 11
Tao Xiaoming b8 H #A 11
Cheng Longdi TEEAR 11
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE 11

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =Z—tFF# 47



g 3 E/niﬁi

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”)
specifying the process and criteria for the selection and
recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company. The Nomination Committee shall, based on
those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure
(such as appropriate experience, personal skills and time
commitment etc.), identify and recommend the proposed
candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an
induction package containing all key legal and Listing
Rules’ requirements as well as guidelines on the
responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the
documentation for the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Board. The senior management will
subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to
give the new Directors more detailed information on the
Group’s businesses and activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company has not set up any corporate governance
committee. Since April 2012, the Board has adopted
written terms of reference in compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code.

The Board is mainly responsible for keeping the
effectiveness of the corporate governance and system of
internal non-financial controls of the Group. The Board
shall introduce and propose relevant principles
concerning corporate governance and to review and
determine the corporate governance policy, so as to
enhance and to ensure a high standard of corporate
governance practices in the Group.

During the year, the Board regularly reviews and
monitors the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors, and the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing, with the support from finance department, the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017, the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the
Companies Ordinance were complied with.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out in
the Auditor’s Report on pages 120 to 127.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Framework

The risk management and internal controls system will
assist the Group to fully achieve its strategic objective by
identifying and assessing all the risk exposure of the
Group and setting down corresponding control
measures, with a view to attain the long-term vision of
the Group. We believe that effective risk management
and internal controls system will enhance shareholders’
value in the long term. The risk faced by the Group
directly relates to its control measures and mitigation
plan.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) BER&E )

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) B R RS E ()

Framework (Continued) ER(E)

Accordingly, the risk management and internal controls — H ity - AN B &) & & I8 & A BF L3 HE 28 40
framework of our Group is as follows: ™~

The Board
EEg

Audit Committee
EREES

|

Risk Management and
Internal Controls Team

E R EEM AT/

Internal Audit
AIBER
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Framework (Continued)

The operating model of the Group’s risk management
and internal control framework conforms to the internal
controls framework of COSO (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission)
in the following five aspects:

. Control Environment

The Group has established a clear organization
structure and delegated powers necessary to
perform different business functions to
management at different levels but it is subject to
the limit set by the Board. The Board meets
regularly to discuss and approve the business
strategies and working plans set by each operating
units. The Group will report our financial
performance to the Board on monthly basis.

Our governance rules and requirements are very
transparent to employees. We hope to build up risk
awareness and internal controls responsibility in
our corporate culture by creating an internal
organizational environment driven by the
management operating philosophy, risk awareness,
integrity and ethical values.

. Risk Assessment

The Group identifies, assesses and grades the
risks that are most relevant to the success of the
Group based on the possibility of occurrence and
the impact on the financial result of the risk). Risk
management and internal controls team is
responsible for setting the appropriate tone from
the top, performing risk assessment, as well as
taking care of the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls. Meanwhile, it
requires department heads from each of the
operating units to identify operating risks from the
bottom in order to determine the major risks and
the risk levels of the Group.

. Control Activities
The Group has policy and procedure in place for all
business functions, including authorization,
approval and audit, recommendation, performance
review, asset protection and division of duty, to
ensure effective execution of organization
objectives and mitigation of risk activities.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Framework (Continued)

. Information and Communication
The risk management and internal controls team
performs risk assessment and prepare the Annual
Report of Risk Management on a semi-annual
basis, which sets out the identified risks and related
control procedures. The report will be submitted to
the Board and reviewed by the Audit Committee
annually.

. Monitoring
The Group self-assesses its controls and risks by
internal review and circulating major control
procedures to its employees to maintain continuous
monitoring of the internal control procedures.
Rectification will be made according to findings of
the control procedures in order to improve internal
monitoring.

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team
Composition

A risk management and internal controls team has been
set up by the Group in 2016, which comprises Mr. Tang
Daoping (executive Director and chief operation officer),
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai (executive Director) and Mr. Ji
Zhongliang (executive Director), and members including
general manager and department head from each of our
operating units, and general managers and department
head of finance and human resources department of our
subsidiaries. Mr. Hong Tianzhu, an executive Director
and chairman of the Group and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, an
executive Director and vice chairman and chief executive
officer of the Group act as advisors of the working team.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Controls Team
(Continued)

Major Tasks

Set out below are the major responsibilities of our risk

management and internal control team:

. The team shall formulate proposal and plan for
building and promotion of corporate culture in risk
awareness and to lead in providing risk
management training.

. The team shall prepare and conduct annual and
interim reviews on risk profile and formulate
mitigating measures.

. The team shall summarize and analyze the findings
of the review exercise, to advise any modification
to the risk management strategy, to lead and assist
relevant departments in formulating counter
measures in addressing any material risks.

. It shall conduct annual internal evaluation on its
own risk management function, to lead and
mobilize the establishment and modification of risk
management and internal controls system, to give
guidance to subsidiaries on initiation of setting up
of risk management system.

. It shall prepare the Annual Report on Risk
Management and submit the same to our Audit
Committee for review and approval.

. It shall be responsible to formulate or modify the
relevant risk management and internal controls
system and to oversee its implementation, to give
guidance and assist the subsidiaries on setting up
and optimizing their risk management practical
measures.

. It shall be responsible for the organization,
compiling of minutes and oversight of
implementation of relevant resolutions concerning
the risk management function in the meetings of
the Audit Committee and Board meetings.

. It shall strictly comply its plan to counter risks by
implementing the measures stipulated therein and
to monitor the work rate and efficiency of such
implementation on an ongoing basis, and advise
on remedy in a timely manner.

. It shall monitor the status and development of any
risk events and formulate and devise contingency
plan in a timely manner, to forthwith report or
inform the Audit Committee on such matters.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Controls Team
(Continued)

Work Accomplished in 2017

Our risk management and internal controls team held
two meetings in 2017, and reported twice to the Audit
Committee and the Board on the annual risk assessment
and findings of internal controls review. The team
accomplished the following work in 2017:

1. issued relevant documents on risk assessment and
internal controls within the Group to enhance its
risk management culture;

2. performed a general review on the major risk
exposure of the Group, especially in areas relating
to raw material purchase, foreign exchange and
exchange rate, credit management and taxation;

3. discussed the possible risk and impact on
operating result with department heads from each
of our operating units;

4. reviewed and improved corresponding internal
controls measure;

5. prepared and submitted the annual report on risk
assessment and internal controls to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Details of the major risks of the Group are set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on
pages 24 to 34.

Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness

For the year ended 31 December 2017, our Board had
reviewed the representations made by the management
in respect of risk management and internal controls, and
considered that our Group’s risk management and
internal controls system effective and adequate. No
significant areas of weaknesses and deficiency that
might have affected the financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group were identified. The Board is of the view that
the resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training and budget are adequate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness (Continued)
The risk management and internal controls system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve our business objectives. Like all other
systems, it could not entirely eliminate the impact of all
unforeseeable risks and events beyond our control that
might emerge and occur during the course of our
operation. Consequently, the Board may only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that there was
no significant misrepresentation or deficiency as to the
completeness and effectiveness of our Group’s risk
management and internal controls.

Disclosure of Inside Information

Regarding procedures and measures of internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information,
the Group:

1. is aware of its obligation under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the
overriding principle that inside information should
be announced on a timely manner;

2. conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations prevailing in Hong
Kong;

3. has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive
distribution of information to the public through
channels such as financial reporting,
announcements and its website;

4, has included in the Code of Conduct a strict
prohibition on the unauthorized use of non-public
or inside information;

5. has communicated to all relevant staff regarding
the implementation of the Continuous Disclosures
Policy and relevant trainings are also provided.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
External Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to
the Company’s external auditor, Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

BERZE ®)

SN BT S

RER B REMADTINEZBEE
R EE RSB  HEBRHIT

Paid/Payable
Services rendered to the Group AR Z R BN EAER
RMB’000
AR TFT
Annual audit service FREEZRE 3,900
Audit services for potential bond offerings BEEHFETEZRS 1,350
Non-audit services (including consulting service IEBEZRE (BIEERAIEN
for transfer pricing and agreed-upon procedures  EARI ARG R AN £ E 458
for selected financial information of the Group, W ER  MEERAT
financial due diligence RANF BN
and preliminary announcement of results) EEF) 2,150
Total: A&t 7,400

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board recognizes the importance of good
communication with shareholders. Information in relation
to the Group is disseminated to shareholders in a timely
manner through a number of formal channels, which
include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars.

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a
valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly
with the shareholders. The chairman actively participated
in the AGM held during the year and personally chaired
the meeting to answer any questions from the
shareholders. A separate resolution had been proposed
by the chairman in respect of each issue to be
considered at the AGM. An AGM circular and AGM
notice had been distributed to all shareholders in
accordance with the requirements of the articles of
association of the Company and the Listing Rules,
setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting
procedures and other relevant information. The chairman
explained the procedures for conducting a poll at the
beginning of the AGM, and answered any questions from
shareholders regarding voting by way of poll.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

The following procedures for shareholders (the
“Shareholders”, each a “Shareholder”) of the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”)
of the Company are prepared in accordance with Article
64 of the articles of association of the Company:

1.

One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general
meetings shall have the right, by written notice (the
“Requisition”), to require an EGM to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified therein.

Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company
via email at the email address of the Company at
main@texhong.com.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such Requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting within 21 days of the deposit of such
Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries

1.

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings, share transfer, registration and
payment of dividend to the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, details of which are
set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in
respect of the Company via email at the email
address of the Company at main@texhong.com.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for
the prompt response from the Company if it deems
appropriate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Procedures and contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

1. To put forward proposals at a general meeting of
the Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written
notice of his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with
his/her/its detailed contact information via email at
the email address of the Company at
main@texhong.com.

2. The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its
request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
confirmation by the branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a
Shareholder, the Board will include the Proposal in
the agenda for the general meeting.

3. The notice period to be given to all the
Shareholders for consideration of the Proposal
raised by the Shareholder concerned at the general
meeting varies according to the nature of the
Proposal as follows:

(i) Notice of not less than 21 days in writing if
the Proposal requires approval by way of an
ordinary resolution in an annual general
meeting or a special resolution of the
Company;

(i)  Notice of not less than 14 days in writing if
the Proposal requires approval in meeting
other than an annual general meeting or
approval by way of a special resolution of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter
of applying and complying with the CG Code but about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy
corporate culture. We will continue to review and, where
appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis
of our experience, regulatory changes and development.
Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders are
also welcome to enhance our transparency.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 March 2018
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Tianzhu, aged 50, is an executive Director
and chairman of the Group. He is the founder of the
Group. He is responsible for the strategic development
and strategic deployment, project investment and
decision-making for major issues, leadership and policy
decision-making for establishment of corporate culture of
the Group. Mr. Hong is currently an executive vice
chairman of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles
Limited. He has over 20 years of experience in the textile
industry. Prior to establishing the Group, Mr. Hong was a
vice general manager of &I 22 REHEBR A A
(Jinjiang Yifeng Garment Weaving Company Limited).
Mr. Hong'’s interest in the shares of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company (“Shares”) is disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, aged 51, is an executive Director,
vice Chairman and chief executive officer of the Group.
He is responsible for the strategy implementation,
operational planning and decision-making, decision-
making for major issues and organizational
implementation of the Group. Mr. Zhu graduated from
the B9 B4 4% T 2Bt (Nantong Textile Industry College)
in 1987. Prior to joining the Group in 1997, Mr. Zhu was
an assistant to the general manager of i85 — 847 4%
% (Nantong No. 2 Cotton Textile Factory). Mr. Zhu's
interest in the Shares of the Company is disclosed under
the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Tang Daoping, aged 52, is an executive Director
and chief operation officer of the Group. He is
responsible for the operation management of the Group.
Mr. Tang graduated from & JI| f& #& & 1% K £ (Xuzhou
Radio and TV University) in 1996 majoring in accounting
and administrative management. Mr. Tang has over 30
years of experience in the textile industry. He was a
workshop manager of B % 8 47 #% & (Suining Cotton
Textile Factory) prior to joining the Group in 1998 as a
vice general manager. Mr. Tang was promoted and
became a director of Jiangsu Century Texhong in
September 2002. Mr. Tang'’s interest in the Shares of the
Company is disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Report of the Directors — Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai, aged 44, is an executive Director. He
is responsible for the management of finance,
information system and treasury management of the
Group. Mr. Hui graduated from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor of business administration
(honours) degree. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst and a Certified Fraud Examiner. He
has more than 20 years’ working experience in finance
related area. Prior to first joining the Group in November
2004, Mr. Hui had been working at one of the big four
international accounting firms for about nine years. Mr.
Hui had been the company secretary of the Company
and the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr. Hui’'s
interest in the Shares of the Company is disclosed under
the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Ji Zhongliang, aged 54, is an executive Director. He
is responsible for the operations management of the
Group’s garment fabric and garment business segment.
Mr. Ji graduated from Jiangsu College of Engineering
and Technology of the PRC (/T & T 2 B % 5 iT 2267
(formerly known as Nantong Textile Industry School (&
WA T 2 E2)) in July 1982. Prior to joining the Group
in August 2015, he had been the vice president of Black
Peony (Group) Co. Ltd. (BHJ (£ ) BRHBRADF)
(stock code: 600510), the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange from December 2011 to
May 2015. He had been the general manager of
Chanzhou K&J Import and Export Co., Ltd. (& /el
i O & BR 2 &), which is principally engaged in import
and export of cotton and fabrics in the PRC from October
1997 to May 2011, the general manger of Black Peony
Group Import and Export Co., Ltd. (2H A £ E#E B O
A BR A 8]), which is principally engaged in import and
export of textile, garments and daily necessities in the
PRC from May 2011 to December 2011, and the
chairman of the board of directors of Black Peony (HK)
Limited, which is principally engaged in manufacture of
denim in the PRC, from December 2011 to May 2015.
Mr. Ji has more than 30 years’ working experience in the
textile industry. Mr. Ji is a director of Celestial Ease
Holdings Limited, Texhong Dyeing and Printing
Technology Limited and Hongyan Cambodia Holdings
Limited, indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Ji’s interest in the Shares of the Company
is disclosed under the paragraph headed “Report of the
Directors — Directors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Tao Xiaoming, aged 60, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 3 March 2014.
Professor Tao is an elected fellow of The Textile
Institute, the American Society of Mechanical Engineers,
the Royal Academy of Arts and Design and Commerce
of the United Kingdom, and has been the chair professor
in Textile Technology at the Institute of Textiles and
Clothing of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University since
April 2002. She was elected as the world president of
The Textile Institute for a tenure of three years from May
2007. Professor Tao received a bachelor’s degree in
textile engineering from China Textile University (7 Bd#%75
# X 2) (currently known as Donghua University (B2 A
£)) of the PRC in January 1982 and a doctorate degree
in textile physics from University of New South Wales in
August 1987. From September 1987 to September 1988
and from October 1990 to September 1994, she had
been a scientist of the Commonwealth Scientific and
Industrial Research Organisation of Australia. From
October 1988 to January 1990, she had been a lecturer
of Donghua University. Professor Tao was the recipient
of two prestigious individual awards of the field: the
honorary fellowship by The Textile Institute in November
2010 and the founder award of the Fiber Society of the
United States in November 2013. With seven academic
monographs, over 800 research papers published and
over 30 patents granted, she has been internationally
recognised in particular for her pioneering work on smart
textiles and clothing and textile engineering such as low-
twist yarns, solospun yarns and fabric sensing
technology which have been widely applied in the textile
industry.

Professor Cheng Longdi, aged 58, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 November
2004. Professor Cheng obtained his doctorate degree in
textile engineering from Donghua University in 2002. He
is currently a professor (2nd grade) in College of Textiles
and a deputy director of the Key Laboratory of Textile
Science and Technology of Donghua University.
Professor Cheng is a member of the expert committee of
each of the following institutions: the China Cotton
Textile Association of New Technology (as a deputy
director), the China Knitting Industrial Association, the
China Bast And Leaf Fibers Textile Association and the
China Textile Machinery Association. Professor Cheng
was an engineer of the China Textile Academy (formerly
known as Textile Academy of Textile Ministry). Professor
Cheng is currently an independent director of Jiangsu
Lianfa Textile Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002394) and Hengli
Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600346), both
companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD, aged 64, was
appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 21 November 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice and has more than 30
years’ experience in this field. Currently he is a partner
and director of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants (Practising) and Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan CPA Limited respectively. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of six other listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely China SCE Property
Holdings Limited (stock code: 01966), Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 00046),
Dongyue Group Limited (stock code: 00189), New
Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (stock code: 00472),
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited (stock
code: 01666) and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 00698) respectively. He is also a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International
Limited (stock code: 00116).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sha Tao, aged 52, is a vice president of the Group
and director of our grey fabric production and
management center. Mr. Sha obtained his bachelor’s
degree in textile from f& £ & T %¥ 2 Bt (Wuxi Light
Industry University) in 1986. Mr. Sha has over 27 years
of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1998, he was a factory manager of one of the
factories of 7 i@ 2 — 18 47 # & (Nantong No. 2 Cotton
Textile Factory).

Mr. Hu Zhiping, aged 54, is a vice president of the
Group and general manager of Taizhou business
segment. Mr. Hu graduated from #E $5 B % K 2 (Wuxi
Professional University) in textile in 1984. Mr. Hu has
over 27 years of experience in the textile industry. He
was a vice general manager of #8517 Z 44 15 G R A 7]
(Wuxi Xieda Weaving Company Limited) prior to joining
the Group in 1998.

Mr. Cao Youchang, aged 49, is a vice president of the
Group and director of the yarn production and
management center of the Group. He is responsible for
the yarn production of the Group. Mr. Cao graduated
from FI@41 4% T 2P (Nantong Textile Industry College)
with a bachelor’'s degree in textile engineering in 1994.
Mr. Cao has over 22 years of experience in the textile
industry. He joined the Group in 2000, and served as the
director of yarn technology of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Sze Fung Ting was the company secretary of the
Company until her resignation on 28 August 2017. Mr.
Hui Tsz Wai, aged 44, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 28 August 2017. He is
responsible for the management of finance, information
system and treasury management of the Group. Mr. Hui
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor of business administration (honours)
degree. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst
and a Certified Fraud Examiner. He has more than 20
years’ working experience in finance related area. Prior
to first joining the Group in November 2004, Mr. Hui had
been working at one of the big four international
accounting firms for about nine years.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang (Vice chairman and
chief executive officer)

Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Mr. Ji Zhongliang

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (Chairman)

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (Chairman)

Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, FTIHK, FHKIloD

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Hong Tianzhu
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

HEAD OFFICE

Unit 9, 31st Floor

Dorset House, Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to
submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of yarns, grey fabrics and garment fabrics as well as
garments. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 37 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Business segments

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
yarns, grey fabrics and garment fabrics as well as
garments. Business analysis of sales, segment results,
total assets and capital expenditure are set out in note 5
to the accompanying financial statements.

Geographical segments

The Group operates in four main geographical areas, the
PRC, Vietnam, Cambodia and Macao. Geographical
analysis of sales, segment results, total assets, and
capital expenditure are set out in note 5 to the
accompanying financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For details of business review in relation to the
development, performance or position of the Company’s
business, please refer to the section headed
“‘Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
rules and regulations and the impact of non-compliance
of such rules and regulations on the business. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
maintaining the highest environmental and social
standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business. The Group understands that a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It
has encouraged all employees to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the
community as a whole.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

As a result of the Group’s active engagement in the
enhancement of management measures and technology
improvement, the Group incurred less unit electricity
consumption and expenses in production as compared
to that of last year. The Group also advocated
conservation of resources in office and encouraged
employees to develop good habits, conserve resources
and energy to build a green and comfortable office
environment.

Details of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Group are set out on pages 89 to 119 of
this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 130 of this annual report.

The board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.21 per share in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
note 16 to the accompanying financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in note 7 to the
accompanying financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in note 14 to the accompanying
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves as at 31
December 2017 is set out in note 35 to the
accompanying financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason
of their holding of the Company’s securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 2 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed below, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2017.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting on 7 April 2014 (the “Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.
All directors, employees, suppliers of goods or services,
customers, persons or entities that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group,
shareholders of any member of the Group, advisers or
consultants of the Group and any other group or classes
of participants who have contributed or may contribute
by way of joint venture, business alliance or other
business arrangement and growth of the Group are
eligible to participate in the Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years after the Adoption Date.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 88,468,117 Shares, representing 10% of the
Shares in issue on the Adoption Date and 9.67% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report
respectively (the “General Scheme Limit”). The Company
may renew the General Scheme Limit with shareholders’
approval provided that each such renewal may not
exceed 10% of the Shares in the Company in issue as at
the date of the shareholders’ approval.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-months period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
for the time being (the “Individual Limit”).

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence on a day
after the date upon which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than

10 years from the date of grant of the option, subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof. Unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the
offer of the grant of options to a grantee, there is no
minimum period required under the Share Option
Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be
exercised.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) B e)

Movements of the share options granted under the REBE_ZFT—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFE"
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31  MRIREE A4 5 &1 5 1 2 M RE AR e 2 &8 2
December 2017 are summarised as follows and details S#EW T + FHFRR IR G M5 AT 15 -
of which are set out in note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements:

Number of share options
BREHE
Closing
price per
Share Outstanding Outstanding
immediately Exercise asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat
List of before the price per 1 January during during during during 31 December
grantees Date of grant (Note) Exercise period date of grant share 2017 the year the year the year the year 2017
RERE RZB-t§ R-B-t§
BHH 2SR -A-A tZA=+-8
RRAZE R BH (W) b bHE  BRORE AR RERRE  REROR  RERXN  REREH R
HKS HKS
B B
Directors
[
Mr. Tang Daoping 23 March 2015 1 January 2016 to 22 March 2025 8.27 870 670,000 - - - - 670,000
AETAE Z2-RF=A-fER —3-7E-A-BE
S S By =
23 March 2015 1 January 2017 to 22 March 2025 821 8.70 670,000 - - - - 670,000
“E-RFZACTZR CEtE-f-RE
- =
23 March 2015 1 January 2018 to 22 March 2025 821 8.70 660,000 - - - - 660,000
Z3-RFZAztzRE ZE-N\F-f-RE
S Sy =
2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
Mr.Hui TszWai 23 March 2015 8.27 870 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
FFERE Z3-RF=A-fER
23 March 2015 1 January 2017 to 22 March 2025 8.27 870 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
Z3-RFZAZtZR ZE3-t5-f-RE
- =
23 March 2015 1 January 2018 to 22 March 2025 821 870 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
Z2-RFZRCt=R —2-\f-f-BE
S Sy =
28 December 2015 1 January 2017 to 27 December 2025 584 570 300,000 - - - - 300,000
Z$-RFt-AztAB ZE-t5-f-RZ
28 December 2015 584 570 300,000 - - - - 300,000
ZE-REtCACHAR
28 December 2015 1 January 2019 to 27 December 2025 584 570 300,000 - - - - 300,000

ZE-RETCACTNE ZE-AE-A-RE

TECIETACTEA
28 December 2015 1 January 2020 to 27 December 2025 584 510 300,000 - - - - 300,000
kS35 by D Z

28 December 2015 584 510 300,000 - - - - 300,000
—3-7Ft=A=tNR
ZRoRFTZACTER
4,500,000 - - - - 4,500,000
Total 6,500,000 - - - - 6,500,000

&t

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date Mt @ BEEz SEHHRE BHREEZTHESAHS
of grant until the commencement of the exercise period. Rk e
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017
and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang

Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Mr. Ji Zhongliang

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen*
Professor Cheng Longdi*
Professor Tao Xiaoming*

* Independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the
articles of association of the Company, Mr. Hui Tsz Wai,
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Professor Tao
Xiaoming will retire from office by rotation and they,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and Mr.
Tang Daoping, all being executive Directors, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing from 21 November 2015,
and will continue thereafter for successive terms of one
year until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other
expiring at the end of the initial term or at any time
thereafter. Mr. Hui Tsz Wai and Mr. Ji Zhongliang, both
being executive Directors, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from their respective dates of
appointment as an executive Director, and will continue
thereafter for successive term of one year until
terminated by not less than three month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other expiring at the
end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao
Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi, all being
independent non-executive directors, has been
appointed for an initial term of one year commencing
from their respective dates of appointment as an INED
renewable automatically for a successive term of one
year each commencing from the next day after the expiry
of the then current term, unless terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing at the end of the
initial term or at any time thereafter.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The service contracts entered into by the Company with
each of the Directors, which are currently in force and
were in force during the year ended 31 December 2017,
contain indemnity provisions which are permitted
indemnity provisions under the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) subject to the
limitations specified in sections 468 and 469 thereof, for
the benefit of the executive Directors. Pursuant to such
provisions, the Company shall indemnify and hold
harmless any Directors on demand from and against any
and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, and
expenses, including without limitation, any proceedings
brought against such Directors, arising from the
performance of his duties pursuant to or his appointment
under the service contracts, so far as permitted by law,
except in any case where the matter in respect of which
indemnification is sought was caused by the default,
neglect, omission or fraud of the executive Directors.
The Company has also taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance cover to indemnify the Directors
for liabilities that may arise out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no claims
were made against the Directors.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors confirmation of his
independence and the Company considers that each of
them to be independent based on the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named
basis during the year under review are set out in note 36
to the accompanying financial statements.

Details of the five highest paid individuals during the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 25 to the
accompanying financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
remuneration of the senior management by band is set
out as follows:

= RAUBEHEE EER
REEBE M

FHELBEFEARBREREEZEEMDF
BRI BE T 2 B T R T E 36

L]
=

[

HE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HLEFERAZ
AN EEHFATZHBHREN B ERE
BEE25 ©

ATABRE-FT—tGF+-A=+—HIL%F
EEREREL HMEEA T

Number of
Remuneration bands senior management
e E EREEBAR
Below RMB1,000,000 AR#1,000,000 T T 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,000,001 TE A R# 2,000,000 7T 1
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000 AR#2,000,001 T2 AR 3,000,0007T 0
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000 AR¥3,000,001 T2 AR# 4,000,000 7T 0
RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000 AR¥ 4,000,001 TE AR 5,000,000 7T 1

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly,
making reference to the legal framework, market
condition and performance of the Group and individual
staff including the Directors). The remuneration policy
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and the senior management of the Group are reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee, which are contained in
the paragraph headed “Remuneration Committee” under
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes
are set out in note 25 to the accompanying financial
statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management as at the date of this annual report are set
out on pages 59 to 63 of this annual report.

FEBUR

AEBSELXERE  MHRALAEE R
ERIBT(BREES) XN - EHRTEH
MK - FHEZE AR AEERNTE
ERRREREBzHMBERRFMAES - &
BEHNAFERS [EXREARRSE] — & [FH
WEZ&g] —BA-

RIREREHE
AEBRABHG B ZFBRNBEN 2 B 715
WRMFE25 ©
EEREREEABZBABE

EELRERERABREFERARZEAGD
EHNAFHREESIECA °
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short
positions of each Director and chief executive of the
Company in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the
laws of Hong Kong (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

%gﬁ?fﬁn m\ﬁmxi\\aﬁi1fﬂ$ﬁ
BBz IRG - HERDREER
ZREERKRR

R-T—t&+-A=+—RB ADARE
ERITBIREN AL R R EAREE (E& R
BAELI L6571 H & 57 R AES] ([ &5 R
ARG ) BXVED) 2 Rty - ARG R &
BETHRARRESRAREOIZE3521%
RENARAATHFEZERMAZ#EamK
KA - RARIE TR A B R T RIAR E
RIAE 77 S AN AR A B R Bt 32 P 2 W ek e
KRR

Name of Number of
Group member/ ordinary
associated shares
Name of directors corporation Nature of (Note 1)
of the Company FEERERF interest ZEREA Percentage
ERREEHE HEBEE AR EEME (1) Aok
Mr. Hong Tianzhu the Company Interest of controlled 544,742,400(L) 59.53%
HRR T E AN/NE] corporation(s) (Note 2)
PEERIE AR (Htit2)
the Company Beneficial owner 5,400,000(L) 0.59%
VNS ExEAA
Mr. Zhu Yongxiang the Company Interest of controlled 219,900,000(L) 24.03%
RKEERAE /N corporation(s) (Note 3)
PREEGIE AR R (fizt3)
Mr. Tang Daoping the Company Beneficial owner 3,200,000(L) 0.35%
BB EE EN/NS] EaEEA (Note 4)
(Hizt4)
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai the Company Beneficial owner 4,500,000(L) 0.49%
HTELE /NG EnEAA (Note 5)
(Hits)
Mr. Ji Zhongliang Celestial Ease Interest of controlled 750(L) 9.80%
FRREAE Holdings Limited corporation(s) (Note 6)
RIBZERAR AT PREEGIE AR (fizt6)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (Continued)

Notes:

1.

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the
Shares.

Among these 544,742,400 Shares, as to 392,842,400
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by New Green Group Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned by Texhong
Group Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr.
Hong Tianzhu and as to 151,900,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by
Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned as to 57.44%
by Mr. Hong Tianzhu through New Green Group Limited.
Under the SFO, Mr. Hong Tianzhu is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by New Green Group
Limited and Trade Partner Investments Limited. Mr. Hong
Tianzhu is a director of Texhong Group Holdings Limited,
New Green Group Limited and Trade Partner Investments
Limited.

Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr.
Zhu Yongxiang and as to 151,900,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by
Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned as to 42.56%
by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang through Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited and Trade Partner
Investments Limited. Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is a director of
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited and Trade Partner
Investments Limited.

These interests includes 2,000,000 share options granted
to Mr. Tang Daoping pursuant to the share option scheme
of the Company.

These interests represent share options granted to Mr.
Hui Tsz Wai pursuant to the share option scheme of the
Company.

These 750 shares are registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Weide Global Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr.
Ji Zhongliang. Under the SFO, Mr. Ji Zhongliang is
deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Weide
Global Limited.

EERITHARRA N AHEME
BBz R0 - MEROREER
ZREmNRE @)

1. [LIRRZALTREODZHE

2. %544,742,400 % % 17 392,842,400 % LANew

Green Group Limited (New Green Group Limited 2
#FE 21T R% X i Texhong Group Holdings Limited
BanlEf  HRN A EEREGRE 100%E5)
BERIER/RERER AEE 151,900,000 % LA
Trade Partner Investments Limited
(R 5L £ 35 B New Green Group Limited &
A AT EEEITRGAE7.44% 5 ) BE
RIERE=REE ANER © RIBFH RIS &G -
HERA S A 413 A H New Green Group Limited
X Trade Partner Investments Limited 54 2 Fff
B R DG B & XL £ BTexhong
Group Holdings Limited * New Green Group
Limited % Trade Partner Investments Limited 2
EE-o

3. £%219,900,000 % %17 68,000,000 A% LA Wisdom
Grace Investments Limited (E 222 21T &K
ARKFEEERER) BB RIEREHEAA
& & 151,900,000 LA Trade Partner
Investments Limited ( K 5k # 4 4 i i#8 Wisdom
Grace Investments Limited Bz A £ 230
BITIRINE42.56% ) BRERIERERER
ABR  RBEZHFRIEGRA - RokBERER
1% & 7 Wisdom Grace Investments Limited &
Trade Partner Investments Limited 5 2 Fi 5
& 17 15 5 #E % o SR JK #F 5% 4 7% Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited &z Trade Partner
Investments Limited 2 &% -

4. HZERTRRRBEARRBRETEETIHE

%5 A 192,000,000 17 B AR ©

5. ZERBRRBRBEARABRAESERTHT
BRARNBEE -

6. ZETSOEBMABBRRERRATDZELEE
ANAEES MRZARZEMEHITERAH
TRRAEEEGHESR - REESRHAEGRD -
TRREEBRRANEREFBRATFTALZ
PR R h A AR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December
2017, the interests or short position of the persons other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

REBERAE RZ2—F+=-RA=+—
B RARE R R E BB A B AR R A
REREPHEAREES L HEGHIF 336
FIEERARBBATFEZECMAZ R
PIARMAL (ERR T 2 EFHITHAERR
M

Ordinary Shares of the Company: RATZERR
Number of
ordinary
shares
Name of the Nature of (Note 1)
substantial shareholders interests ZEREAR Percentage
TERREE BB BEME (Mt 1) BO
New Green Group Limited Beneficial owner 392,842,400 (L) 42.93%
EmEa A (Note 2)
(Miz2)
Interest of controlled 151,900,000 (L) 16.60%
corporation(s) (Note 3)
PRI HIE AR (M7E3)
Trade Partner Investments Limited Beneficial owner 151,900,000 (L) 16.60%
EnEBA (Note 3)
(M7 3)
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited Beneficial owner 68,000,000 (L) 7.43%
EnEBA (Note 4)
(it 4)
Interest of controlled 151,900,000 (L) 16.60%
corporation(s) (Note 3)
Pz E AR R (Btat3)
Texhong Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 544,742,400 (L) 59.53%
corporation(s) (Notes 2 and 3)
PRIESE AR (Mfat23)
Ms. Ke Luping Interest of spouse 550,142,400 (L) 60.12%
kRS2 £ iRk (Note 5)
(Hits)
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang Interest of spouse 219,900,000 (L) 24.03%
HEHZ L i B e (Note 6)
(Mite)
Mr. Hui Ching Lau Interest of controlled 55,058,000 (L) 6.02%
FREmEE corporation(s) (Note 7)
PRz A = (Btat7)
Event Star Limited Beneficial owner 55,058,000 (L) 6.02%
Emla A (Note 7)
(Wit 7)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

1.

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the
Shares.

These 392,842,400 Shares are registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by New Green Group Limited, the
entire issued share capital of which is beneficially owned
by Texhong Group Holdings Limited, a company wholly
beneficially owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the SFO,
each of Texhong Group Holdings Limited and Mr. Hong
Tianzhu is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held
by New Green Group Limited.

These 151,900,000 Shares are registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by Trade Partner Investments
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu
through New Green Group Limited and 42.56% by Mr.
Zhu Yongxiang through Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited. Under the SFO, each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Mr.
Zhu Yongxiang, New Green Group Limited and Wisdom
Grace Investments Limited is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares held by Trade Partner Investments Limited.

These 68,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhu Yongxiang. Under the
SFO, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares held by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited.

Ms. Ke Luping is the spouse of Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under
the SFO, Ms. Ke Luping is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Mr. Hong Tianzhu is
interested.

Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is the spouse of Mr. Zhu Yongxiang.
Under the SFO, Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr.
Zhu Yongxiang is interested.

These 55,058,000 Shares are registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by Event Star Limited, a company
which is 100% controlled by Mr. Hui Ching Lau. Under
the SFO, Mr. Hui Ching Lau is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares held by Event Star Limited.

FERREARQARS - HER®D
RERR 2 BEIXR (@)
3

1. [LIRRZALTRRGOZEHFR

2. £%392,842,400/% %15 LANew Green Group Limited
(New Green Group Limited 2 2 &, % 17 l% AN B
Texhong Group Holdings Limited 2516 @ X
ML BREE%RE100%ER) BERIEAER
B AT - REZEF REE KD Texhong
Group Holdings Limited J2 3t R4 5t A 391548 A4
New Green Group Limited 3575 2 Fr A B {716 G #E

3. 5%151,900,000 f% /%15 A Trade Partner Investments
Limited (2308 #1TRANHE RN L EGEB
New Green Group Limited) f2 2R k& e 4 &8
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited) % Bl & 25
B 57.44% 2 42.56%) ZERIERBEHEE A
B RBEFFRAEGKRD - HRWEE K
X 5% 4 - New Green Group Limited &
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited 3 B/ 44% 4
7 Trade Partner Investments Limited 548 2 Fft
ARG IGEER ©

4. %68,000,000 %% 17 LA Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited (L £ 30 B B1TIR AR B Rk A B s
B)BERIEABRSHEAAST - REZHFENAE
16 Bl - 2R 5k #F 5% 4 ¥ AR B A Wisdom Grace
Investments Limited #5752 FTA 5 (G B s o

5. AR L AR RNEEZERB - BREEFK
HEGD - WASFZ LR RO RI L L
BREmz FEBARNDEEES -

6. HEHZ LT RARKEREZRS - BEEHFR
HEGHD  BEBLEIRBARRKELEN
B ASBE R EAER -

7. #% % 55,058,000 A% % 17 LA Event Star Limited 2.
LERECKAEESES  MZARTE2AT
BT o BIBFEF KRB KL FTER
% A 3515 A7 Event Star Limited 358 2 FT A IR
DA R -
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Options” above, at no time during the 12 months ended
31 December 2017 was the Company, its holding
company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which enabled the Directors (including their spouses or
children under 18 years of age), to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of Shares in or debenture of the
Company or any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the related party transaction as set
out in note 34 of the financial statements and in the
section headed “Connected transactions” in this annual
report, no Director nor an entity connected with such
director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Save as disclosed in the related party transaction as set
out in note 34 of the financial statements and in the
section headed “Connected transactions” in this annual
report, no contract of significance has been entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company which were not contracts of
service with any Director or any person engaged in full
time employment of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 23.15%
— five largest suppliers combined 41.31%
Sales
— the largest customer 3.98%
— five largest customers combined 11.95%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted
above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
has conducted the following continuing connected
transactions which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules:

(1)

Continuing connected transactions — Utilities
Master Supply and Service Agreement

On 23 May 2017, Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam
Limited (A4 T B [@ 8 F AR 2 7)) (“Texhong
Industrial Park”) and Texhong Galaxy Technology
Limited (K 4T R JA] B % & R 2 7]) (“Texhong
Galaxy”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into several agreements in
respect to provision and supply of utilities and
wastewater treatment service (the “Texhong
Galaxy Agreements”) pursuant to which Texhong
Industrial Park shall provide and supply utilities and
wastewater treatment service to Texhong Galaxy,
for its use on two parcels of industrial land located
at Hai Ha District of Quang Ninh Province in
Vietnam with a site area of approximately 225,000
square meters and 215,000 square meters
respectively and the infrastructure erected thereon,
for a term of three years with effect from 23 May
2017. On the same day, Texhong Industrial Park
and Texhong Dyeing And Printing Vietnam Limited
(MEXRILAEETHR2AAR) (“Texhong Dyeing”),
an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company also entered into several agreements in
respect of the provision and supply of utilities and
wastewater treatment service (the “Texhong
Dyeing Agreements”) pursuant to which Texhong
Industrial Park shall provide and supply utilities and
wastewater treatment service to Texhong Dyeing,
for its use on a parcel of industrial land located at
Texhong Industrial Park, Hai Ha District, Quang
Ninh Province, Vietnam with a site area of
approximately 123,228 square meters and the
infrastructure erected thereon, for a term of three
years with effect from 23 May 2017.

HERS
REBE-_E—+t&+-_A=+—HILEE "
AEECETUTHERERS  AREL
TIREIE 14A17 EHRE -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1) Continuing connected transactions — Ultilities
Master Supply and Service Agreement
(Continued)

The following table sets out the proposed annual
caps for each of the Texhong Galaxy Agreements

and Texhong Dyeing Agreements:

Annual fee payable

BERS E)
(1) BEBEXS — KEMERRBEARH
=1C-))

TRBIE19 R AL IR 53 e KA B
i 2 EESHEEE EIR

Annual fee payable

Description of by Texhong Galaxy to by Texhong Dyeing to
the agreement Texhong Industrial Park Texhong Industrial Park
RILSFAIEN R TXE RITREEA R THEE
5 % 4 ZEFER ZEFEHA
Power master supply The aggregate annual fee shall The aggregate annual fee shall
agreement for not exceed RMB180 million not exceed RMB12.3 million
the supply of electricity (equivalent to approximately (equivalent to approximately
HK$203.4 million), RMB248 HK$13.9 million), RMB19.4
million (equivalent to million (equivalent to
approximately HK$280.3 approximately HK$21.9 million)
million) and RMB260.3 million and RMB20.3 million
(equivalent to approximately (equivalent to approximately

HK$294.2 million) for the years HK$22.9 million) for the years
ending 31 December 2017, 31 ending 31 December 2017, 31

December 2018 and 31

December 2018 and 31

December 2019, respectively. December 2019, respectively.
PARHEE 18 2 ZT—+Ft+-_A=+—HH BE_T—+Ft+-_A=+—8"
HE @i —T—\F+=A=+-BR B N\ET-A=t+-AK

—T—hFt+-_A=+—Hit —E-NEF+-_A=+—HIt
FEEFERRBEIETE FEE2FBREESFBTE
3B A % 180,000,000 7T (48 HBid A K% 12,300,000 7T (18
B X #7203,400,000787T) * A B14913,900,000/7T) * AR
248,000,000 7T (A8 R4 #£19,400,000 7T (ABE R %)

280,300,000787T) Rk AR 21,900,00087T) R AR
260,300,000 7T (AEE R4 20,300,000 7T (48E A4

294,200,000/57T) °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BEXS (&)
(1) Continuing connected transactions — Utilities (1) BEBEXS — KEHERRBEN

Master Supply and Service Agreement

(Continued)

Description of
the agreement

i =& 0

Water master supply
agreement for
the supply of water

FAR K ok B s

Annual fee payable

by Texhong Galaxy to
Texhong Industrial Park
R LR PEAT R UL T3 E
ZEFER

The aggregate annual fee shall
not exceed RMB170,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$192,200), RMB380,000
(equivalent to approximately

HK$429,400) and RMB400,000

(equivalent to approximately
HK$452,000) for the years

ending 31 December 2017, 31

December 2018 and 31
December 2019, respectively.

HE_T—tF+-_A=+—H"

—E-\F+ZA=+—HK
—E-AFT-A=+—HAL
FEEFEREBEIRIETE

iBim AR# 170,000 7T (FHER

49192,200/87T) - AR
380,000 7t (#8& 72 49 429,400
E7T) & AR 400,000 7T (48
BN4452,000%87T) °

e /)
= (&)

Annual fee payable

by Texhong Dyeing to
Texhong Industrial Park
RN RI T RE
ZEFER

The aggregate annual fee shall
not exceed RMB1.0 million
(equivalent to approximately
HK$1.1 million), RMB2.0
million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.3 million),
and RMB2.1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$2.4
million) for the years ending 31
December 2017, 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2019,
respectively.

BHE_Z—+F+_-_HA=+—H"
T )\F+-_A=+—HEK
—E-NE+ZRA=+—HI
FREEFEREREI BTG
83/ A R # 1,000,000 7T (18E
491,100,000 7% 7T) « AR
2,000,000 7T (A8 E A4
2,300,000 7T) ke AR
2,100,000 7T (FHE R4
2,400,000/57T) °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BERS (&)
(1) Continuing connected transactions — Utilities (1) BHEBERXS — KEHERREEH
Master Supply and Service Agreement E(E)

82

(Continued)

Description of
the agreement

h B 4

Steam master supply
agreement for
the supply of steam

Wastewater treatment
service agreement for
the supply of
wastewater treatment
service for production

AR E R M
757K B 3R AR 75 Y
57K BRI AR 5 175

Annual fee payable

by Texhong Galaxy to
Texhong Industrial Park
RILSFOEN R TXE
ZEFER

The aggregate annual fee shall

Annual fee payable

by Texhong Dyeing to
Texhong Industrial Park
RITRBEA R T XE
ZEFER

The aggregate annual fee shall

not exceed RMB1.9 million
(equivalent to approximately
HK$2.1 million), RMB4.0
million (equivalent to
approximately HK$4.5 million)
and RMB4.1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$4.6
million) for the years ending 31
December 2017, 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2019,
respectively.

BE_Z—tFT-_A=1t—8H"

T \F+-_A=+—HEK
—E-AE+=—A=+—H1IF
FEXFBRABESHETS
B3 A R # 1,900,000 7T (HEE
R472,100,000787T) ~ AREE
4,000,000 7T (FE L)
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The aggregate annual fee shall

not exceed RMB126,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$142,400), RMB283,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$319,800) and RMB298,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$336,800) for the years
ending 31 December 2017, 31
December 2018 and 31
December 2019, respectively.
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not exceed RMB9.5 million
(equivalent to approximately
HK$10.7 million), RMB20.0
million (equivalent to
approximately HK$22.6 million)
and RMB21.0 million
(equivalent to approximately
HK$23.7 million) for the years
ending 31 December 2017, 31
December 2018 and 31
December 2019, respectively.
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The aggregate annual fee shall

not exceed RMB142,500
(equivalent to approximately
HK$161,000), RMB299,250
(equivalent to approximately
HK$338,100) and RMB313,500
(equivalent to approximately
HK$354,300) for the years
ending 31 December 2017, 31
December 2018 and 31
December 2019, respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1)

()

Continuing connected transactions — Utilities
Master Supply and Service Agreement
(Continued)

Texhong Industrial Park is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of its being an associate of
Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of the Group and
an executive Director. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Texhong Galaxy
Agreements and the Texhong Dyeing Agreements
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Texhong Galaxy Agreements
and the Texhong Dyeing Agreements are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 23 May
2017.

Connected transaction — Acquisition of land
use right in Vietnam for construction of
production base

On 11 September 2017, Texhong Industrial Park
entered into the first agreement with Texhong
Galaxy Technology Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and the second
agreement with Texhong United Technology Hong
Kong Limited (the “First Agreement” and the
“Second Agreement” respectively) in relation to the
acquisition of the land use right of a parcel of
industrial land located at Texhong Haiha Industrial
Park, Hai Ha District, Quang Ninh Province,
Vietnam with a site area of approximately 93,120
(“First Land”) and 119,989 (“Second Land”) square
meters and the infrastructure erected thereon. The
considerations were VND101,732,021,644
(equivalent to approximately RMB29.9 million) and
VND131,085,582,720 (equivalent to approximately
RMB38.5 million) respectively, which were
calculated based on VND1,092,480 (equivalent to
approximately RMB320.8) per square meter of the
First Land and the Second Land.

Texhong Industrial Park is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of its being an associate of
Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of the Group and
an executive Director. Therefore, the entering into
of the First Agreement and the Second Agreement
constituted connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the First Agreement and the
Second Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 11
September 2017.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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Continuing Connected Transaction — Gas
Supply Agreement

On 20 October 2017, Texhong Industrial Park and
Texhong Dyeing entered into a gas supply
agreement (the “Gas Supply Agreement”) pursuant
to which Texhong Industrial Park shall provide and
supply liquefied petroleum gas to Texhong Dyeing
for its uses on a parcel of industrial land located at
Hai Ha District, Quang Ninh Province, Viethnam with
a site area of approximately 123,228 square
meters and the infrastructure erected thereon with
effect from 20 October 2017 for a term of three
years.

The aggregate annual fee payable by Texhong
Dyeing to Texhong Industrial Park under the Gas
Supply Agreement shall not exceed
VND332,249,500 (equivalent to approximately
RMB96,500), VND3,270,850,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB950,000) and
VND5,164,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,500,000) for the three years ending 31
December 2017, 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019.

Texhong Industrial Park is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of its being an associate of
Mr. Hong Tianzhu, the chairman of the Group and
an executive Director. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Gas Supply Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Gas Supply Agreement are

set out in the announcement of the Company dated
20 October 2017.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions undertaken by the Group were entered into
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in
accordance with the terms of the Power Master Supply
Agreement that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditors, were
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
PricewaterhouseCoopers have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with the Listing Rules
and confirming the matters as stated in Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS

On 16 March 2017, the Company entered into an
acquisition agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”) with
Nien Hsing Textile Co., Ltd. (“Nien Hsing”) for the
acquisition of Nien Hsing’s assets which comprise of,
among others, the entire equity interest in Nien Hsing
Garment (Vietnam) Co., Ltd., Chu Hsing Garment
(Cambodia) Co., Ltd., C Square Investment Co., Ltd.,
Foster Capital Management Inc., Alpha Textil de
Nicaragua, S.A., Zona Franca Mateare, S.A. and C
Square Garment Finishing Co., Ltd. which are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of jeans wear, the
relevant land, properties and other assets and key
employees associated with the business of Nien Hsing
and its group companies (“Target Assets”).

The aggregate consideration for the acquisition was
approximately US$53.65 million. The consideration was
determined after arm-length’s negotiations between the
Company and Nien Hsing with reference to the book
value of the Target Assets as shown in the management
account of the Target Assets as of 31 December 2016.
The consideration was subsequently adjusted to
US$63.93 million on completion of the Acquisition
Agreement.

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
the Listing Rules) in respect of the transaction
contemplated under Acquisition Agreement are more
than 5% but less than 25%, the entering into of the
Acquisition Agreement constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

Further details of the Acquisition Agreement are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 16 March
2017.

Save as dsclosed above, there was no material
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries or associated
companies by the Company during the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, there was sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules at
any time during the financial year ended 31 December
2017.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 21
November 2004. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and
Professor Cheng Longdi. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The rights and
duties of the Audit Committee comply with the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is
responsible for reviewing and supervising the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal control system
and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited results of
the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2017.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination
Committee pursuant to a resolution of the Directors
passed on 19 March 2012. The Nomination Committee
comprises an executive Director and the chairman of the
Company, Mr. Hong Tianzhu and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Tao
Xiaoming, Professor Cheng Longdi and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The Nomination
Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in
line with the code provisions of the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice in accordance with the
Company’s policy if considered necessary.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration
Committee pursuant to a resolution of the Directors
passed on 21 November 2004. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi
and the chairman and executive Director, namely Mr.
Hong Tianzhu. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee has rights and duties
consistent with those set out in the code provisions of
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee is
principally responsible for formulating the Group’s policy
and structure for all remunerations of the Directors and
senior management and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
amounted to approximately RMB4.746 million.

LITIGATION

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material
importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance was known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 March 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE REPORT

Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) has a corporate
mission of “becoming a global leading cotton textile
enterprise that emphasizes creating a wonderful life;
being committed to develop products with high added-
value and providing comprehensive all-rounded services;
maximizing the benefits of employees, customers and
shareholders; contributing to and serving the society in
an earnest way”. It adheres to the principles of “honest
partner, creativity and excellence, customer-oriented
approach” and insists on a sustainable development
model to promote the concept of humanity,
environmental friendliness and energy conservation,
health and safety, and integrity, with a view to becoming
a socially responsible corporation.

As per the “Environment, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” published by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Reporting Guide”), the Board
has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting. The Board is responsible for assessing
and determining the risks in relation to the environment,
society and governance of the Group, as well as
ensuring the establishment of appropriate and effective
environmental, social and governance risk management
and internal control systems by the Group. The
management of the Group is responsible for reporting to
the Board for confirmation of the effectiveness of these
systems.

According to the requirements of the Appendix 27
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Company has prepared this report, not only covers the
main business segments of the Group in the
manufacturing of yarns, grey fabrics, dyeing, apparels
and garment fabrics, but also covers 17 production
subsidiaries, situated in Mainland China, Vietnam,
Cambodia and Nicaragua, in regard to essential
performance indicators in the area of the environmental
protection.

This report covers the financial year ended 31 December
2017.
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CARE FOR THE EMPLOYEES

The Group is committed to improving the working
environment and the health of employees
constantly. It sets up a solid communication
mechanism to facilitate self-realization of
employees and enhance their cultural life.

1.1.

Right protection

The Group strictly complied with relevant
local laws and regulations, such as “Labor
Law of the PRC” and “Labor Contract Law of
the PRC” and has formulated the “Employee
Manual”, “Recruitment Management System”,
“Employee Induction and Loss of Office
Management Requirement”, “Employee
Promotion Management Requirement”,
“Performance Management Management
Measure” etc. to regulate recruitment
process. We actively protect employees’ legal
rights, human rights and privacy. The Group
does not discriminate against recruitment
candidates because of gender, age, ethnicity,
race and nationality. Right protection covers
the following aspects:

. Labor contract: We enter into a legal
binding labor contract with every
employee in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations. Annual leaves are
provided to employees according to the
Legal requirements.

. Child labor: Recruitment of young
workers under the age of 18 must
comply with requirements of the laws
and regulations, recruitment of child
labor is prohibited by the Group.

. Forced labor: The use of forced labor is
prohibited.

. Working hour: It complies with all the
requirements of the national laws and
regulations on working hour and
overtime arrangement for employees is
on a voluntary basis.
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1. CARE FOR THE EMPLOYEES (Continued) 1.
1.1. Right protection (Continued)

BAIEETI (&)

. Labor union and collective bargaining
agreement: We recognize and respect
employees’ right to organize and
participate in a labor union and
collective bargaining.

. Discrimination: Discrimination against
ethnicity, race, religious belief, disability,
personality, etc. is prohibited.

. Harassment and torture: The Group
cares for the physical and mental health
of each and every employee and
prohibits harassment, torture and
corporal punishment.

. Promotion and development: Based on
the Group’s stratified talent nurturing
plan, every employee is provided with
fair “branched” promotion and
development path. The Group
enhances career advancement for
employees and expands their
development path. For employees with
development preference, promotion is
based on a combination of skill
examination and daily performance,
which promotes professionalism,
diversified and extended development,
and helps rationalize promotional
criteria.

. Dismissal: Any dismissal of employees
is in strict compliance with local laws
and regulations.

The Group regulates the management of
labor and employment according to all the
relevant national laws, regulations and
policies to build a harmonious labor relation.
Based on the principles of “equality,
willingness and mutual agreement”, we enter
into a written labor contract with every
employee. Annual leaves are provided
according to legal requirements. In order to
protect employees’ rights, the Group provides
updates through different means to
employees on recent production operation of
the Group and rule and regulation system
which is closely related to their interests.
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CARE FOR THE EMPLOYEES (Continued)

1.2.

Emphasis on occupational health

In accordance with the relevant local laws
and regulations, such as “Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases”, “Measures for the Supervision
and Administration of Occupational Health
Surveillance” and “Code of design of
occupational safety and health for textile
industry enterprises”, the Group has
established guidelines such as “ Management
of Occupational hygiene and safety”,
“Management of inflammable and explosive
dangerous goods”, “Safe production
responsibility for staff members at each
level”, “Management of fire control and open
fire”, “Association of safety inspection and
examination”, “Objectives of safety and fire
control”, “Association of safe operation” and
“Distribution and management of labor
protection equipment”. Meanwhile, the
Company enhances its efforts on
occupational health management and
occupational disease prevention.

. Offers health and safety education to
employees and provides induction
safety training and arranges safety
retraining for elder employees;

. Inspects occupational hazards at work
post, such as noise and dusts, and
posts notices and warnings in
workplaces and hazard to raise
awareness of self-protection;

. Protection gears, such as earplugs and
masks, are regularly distributed and
proper training in respect of which is
carried out among staff;
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1. CARE FOR THE EMPLOYEES (Continued)

1.2. Emphasis on occupational health
(Continued)

1.21.

Organises fire emergency rehearsal
and first-aid training;

Compiles occupational health profile
and organizes occupational health
physical examination to prevent
occupational diseases effectively.
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Chu Hsing arment (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. First Aid Training
RIBFT EARE S ERRIE AR

Protection for female employees

Female employees assume a wide
variety of posts on different levels in the
Group. In strict compliance with relevant
local laws and regulations, such as
“Law of the PRC on the Protection of
Women'’s Rights and Interests”, “Labor
Protection of Female Employees” and
“Healthcare Work of Female
Employees”, the Group protects the
rights of female employees and
constantly improves the working
environment for female employees. A
“Three-period” requirement and regular
physical examination system have been
put in place to promote female
employees’ physical and mental health.
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1.

94

Tug of war competition of Texhong Yinfeng

CARE FOR THE EMPLOYEES (Continued)
1.2. Emphasis on occupational health
(Continued)
1.2.2. Promote work-life balance

In 2017, the Group arranged various
forms of cultural and sports competition
and work campaign to promote work-
life balance. In addition, coffee klatches
are held regularly between general
managers, workshop heads, chief
operator and chief mechanist to help
employees maintain a positive work
attitude. Furthermore, Xuzhou Texhong
Yinfeng Textile Co., Ltd. (“Texhong
Yinfeng”) constructed facilities like
leisure room, television room,
basketball court and badminton court to
enhance the overall living standard of
employees and demonstrated the level
of refined management of the Group. In
addition, the Group endeavors to
support employees in need and offers
relief and condolence to hospitalized
employees, grieving employees and
employees in severe difficulties.
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1.

CARE FOR THE EMPLOYEES (Continued)

1.3. Employee training, growth and career

development

The Group provides comprehensive and
systematic support to the enterprise and
employee development. Based on the needs
of strategic development of the Group, the
Group prepared “Training and implementation
measures of Texhong Textile Group” to set
up the structure for training, learning course,
technician, mechanist/engineer skill
assessment, mid-to-entry level training and
senior leadership. The Group puts in place a
“branched” career path for every employee
and nurtures talent in a systematic manner
through “budding program” (for university
graduates with less than one year of
experience), “flourishing program” (for
university graduates with one to three years
of experience) and “stratified talent nurturing
program” (for all employee with more than
three years of experience).
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1. CARE FOR THE EMPLOYEES (Continued) 1. EARETI (&)

1.3. Employee training, growth and career 13. BEIEI BMREBELEZR
development (Continued) (&
>  Career path for top tier employee > —HRETIBEBRERC
Senior engineer Senior leadership training
ERRTIZE SRR NI
Associate senior engineer Mid-level leadership training
BB R TIZE hRRENIE|
G Trainings undertaken Trainings undertaken G
Engineer | by respective operation by the human __ | Entry-level leadership training
iR units resources office RBENIE|
i EHEBBAARE ANEREEEE i
Assistant engineer Middle-management training
Bh33 T126D / HEEE
Technical staff % The flourishing program Entry-level management training
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>

The budding program
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>

Graduate induction training
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»  Career path for university graduate > KELRB¥AERKE
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Mechanist Entry-level leadership training
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BT units resources office FRBEE
BRBEMAREI ANEREBEE
Mid-level technician Entry-level management training
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1. CARE FOR THE EMPLOYEES (Continued)
1.3.

21.

Employee training, growth and career
development (Continued)

In 2017, we organized various employee
training activities, including production
training, management skills, safety and
induction training for new employees.

1. BIEEI (®)
1.3.
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Employee training and enrichment activities

B THIEnRES

2. PROVISION OF QUALITY PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES TO CUSTOMERS

Quality management

As market competition escalates, many users
are increasingly stringent about product
quality and it further fuels the competition in
the textile industry. The Group places great
emphasis on quality management and strictly
complies with relevant local laws and
regulations, such as “Product Quality Law of
the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on the Protection
of Consumers’ Rights and Interests” and
“National General Safety Technical Code for
Textile Products”. Meanwhile, with increased
investment in scientific instruments, the
Group adopts advanced equipment for
effective control over product quality and
integrates quality management into the whole
production process. The Group has actively
optimised its quality management system and
devoted on training for addressing quality
issues to ensure product quality and safety,
provide better services for downstream
customers, boost customer satisfaction and
minimise filing of complaints and claims, ,
and some of the major initiatives taken are as
follows:

> Establishment of a quality management
system

2. REFRABEERNRE
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2. PROVISION OF QUALITY PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES TO CUSTOMERS
(Continued)

2.1. Quality management (Continued)
»  Clear and specific work requirements

. Post and responsibility for each
person-in-charge

. Quality control for delivery

> Establishment of quality management

policies

. “Quality assurance structure”

. “Quality work manual”

. “‘Rules on order assessment and

product modification”

. “Rules on production and storage”

. “Quality management and
shutdown policy”

. “Rules on quality issue handling”

. “Responsibility and accountability
policy for quality issues”

> Establishment of quality concept

. Quality meeting is organized for
every new product type to analyze
quality control points at each level
according to customer’s
requirements and production
features.

. Respond quickly to internal
control quality fluctuation.

. Cause analysis for substandard
quality to prevent reoccurrence.

. Comprehensive investigation of
quality anomalies. Quality control
department is responsible for
producing monthly quality control
report.
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2. PROVISION OF QUALITY PRODUCTS 2

AND SERVICES TO CUSTOMERS
(Continued)
2.1. Quality management (Continued)

> Regular customer visit

. Monthly market visit with
customers to understand market
demand and cooperate to develop
new products and foster mutual
understanding and trust.

> Countermeasures for quality anomalies
and reasonable handling of customer
complaint

. Receipt of feedbacks from
operators and sampling analysis
or customer visit to understand
quality information.

. Cause analysis of quality issues
and communication with customer
to achieve resolution.

2.2. Improve customer satisfaction

2.2.1.Customer relation
The Group assigns specific staff to
each customer in order to handle their
enquiries in a timely manner, including
enquiries on order quality, quantity
requirement, delivery schedule and
customer feedback.

The business philosophy of the Group
is to expand market share with brand
name and increase customer
satisfaction. It analyzes user opinions
and recommendations from every angle
and continuously improves the quality
of its products and services to boost
customer satisfaction in every possible
way. The Group responds to customers’
complaints and requirements in a timely
and effective manner to improve service
quality and management, thereby
retaining existing customers and
attracting new ones for further business
opportunities.
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PROVISION OF QUALITY PRODUCTS

AND SERVICES TO CUSTOMERS

(Continued)

2.2. Improve customer satisfaction (Continued)

2.2.2.Customer satisfaction

Market intelligence department of the
Group conducts biannual satisfaction
surveys on major customers who have
purchased the Group’s products and
asks them to complete “Survey form of
customer satisfaction”. In past sampling
done by national, provincial and city
supervising authorities on the Group,
there has been no unsatisfactory result
and the objective of “consistent product
quality to meet customers’ needs” has
been achieved. In accordance with
after-sales quality management
requirements, professionals of the
Group offer all-rounded services for
products sold and have been widely
recognized by customers.

2.2.3.Customer complaint

The Group strictly adheres to the
relevant local laws and regulations,
such as “Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Consumers’ Rights and
Interests” to prepare documents like
“Flow chart on the handling of quality
feedback from customers on yarns of
the Group” to ensure speedy and
effective resolution for quality issue
reported by customers. The Group
registers and records every enquiry and
requirement on quality raised by
customers. To deal with the complaints,
we meet with relevant staff to analyze
the cause and identify responsible
department to devise and implement
countermeasures. Reply to customer
and handling record will be made within
20 days.
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2. PROVISION OF QUALITY PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES TO CUSTOMERS
(Continued)

2.2,

23.

Improve customer satisfaction (Continued)

2.2.3.Customer complaint (Continued)
The quality department of the Group
categorizes customer feedback and
analyzes existing issues, followed by
the preparation of after-sales service
report. The Group boosts its product
quality constantly to create a leading
edge in the market. User satisfaction
and product reputation also benefit
significantly from such practices.
Customer managers of the Group are
responsible for supervising and
examining after-sales services and
providing monthly and annual report to
after-sales service department at the
headquarters. Customer visits are
arranged for the general manager of
the Group, if necessary.

Innovative development, provision of
quality products and services

Since its establishment in 1997, the Group
has allocated plenty of resources on technical
innovations. With our laboratories as the
technical center, the Group has developed a
number of new technologies and products,
namely pure cotton products, including elastic
pure cotton core-spun yarn series, high-end
yarns and garment fabrics for knitting,
through independent R&D and cooperation
with renowned domestic and international
fabric developers and research institutions.
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2. PROVISION OF QUALITY PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES TO CUSTOMERS
(Continued)

2.3. Innovative development, provision of
quality products and services (Continued)
The Group invested in the establishment of a
new national research and development
institute under Xuzhou Texhong Times
Textile Co., Ltd (“Texhong Times”) last year.
The person-in-charge of the institute is our
technical director. Thanks to the concerted
effort of 256 members of the institute, the
association and system of the institute have
been established and perfected. The Group
has established several entrepreneur-scholar
researcher joint development bases in
cooperation with renowned international
fabric developers, domestic universities and
research institutions, and developed 21 new
products, with significant results after a year
of operation in 2017. It has not only boost
local economy, but also created
approximately 1,000 jobs for local residents.

The Group focuses on cotton core-spun yarn
and produces series such as weaving single
yarn as well. The Group expands market
share with top-notch, superb, premium and
advanced products and its product quality
reaches the level between 5% to 25% of
Uster Technologies, which is the exceptional
level for domestic standard and caters for
both the domestic and international market
primarily focused on product diversification
and sophistication.
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3.

ACHIEVE WIN-WIN SITUATION WITH
PARTNERS

3.1.

3.2,

3.3.

Anti-unfair competition

The Group pays close attention to the
protection of intellectual properties and
observes relevant local laws and regulations,
such as “Trademark Law of the PRC”, “Patent
Law of the PRC”, “Regulation for the
Implementation of Patent Law of the PRC”
and “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
PRC”. In 2017, the Group continued to take
care of the Group’s logos and trademarks to
protect our legal rights and intellectual
properties and maintain fair competition in the
market.

Respect intellectual property
The Group requires its subsidiaries to use
legitimate software, such as IP telephony
service, SAP and OA, and prohibits the
installation of pirated software.

Enhance responsibility performance
across supply chain

The Group considers the enhancement of
social responsibility performance of suppliers
a fundamental task and obligation of supply
chain management. Through visits and
exchange, we promote the Group’s spirit of
anti-unfair competition, respect for intellectual
property and anti-bribery to every part of the
supply chain. The Group has established
guidelines such as “Regulation on the
management of procurement operation of
daily supplies of subsidiaries” and
“Regulation on the procurement of certain
supplies of the headquarter and Texhong
China” to regulate the supply chain system.
Moreover, the Group integrates the spirit of
environmental and social sustainability into
the management of supply chain:

»  Open tender for selection of logistic
services.
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ACHIEVE WIN-WIN SITUATION WITH
PARTNERS (Continued)

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

Enhance responsibility performance

across supply chain (Continued)

> Logistic contract: in case of newly
signed or renewed contracts, certain
clauses in relation to the requirements
of environmental and social
sustainability will be added, which is
legally binding on the cooperating
parties

»  Assessment system: certain terms in
relation to environmental and social
sustainability (refinement and
quantification of contract requirements)
are added to the existing assessment
system of transportation company as a
regular management tool.

Protect customer’s privacy

The Group recognizes the importance of
customer relation and respect the privacy of
every customer. For instance, Shandong
Texhong Textile Co., Ltd strictly implements
“Regulation on employee management” so
that employees who disclose without
authorization any customer, technology and
other confidential information in relation to
business operation or internal department
operation shall be put on probation and it
may result in termination of employment
contract in a serious case.

Anti-commercial bribery

In accordance with the requirements of
relevant local laws and regulations, such as
“Company Law of the PRC”, “Bidding Law of
the PRC”, “Anti- Unfair Competition Law of
the PRC” and “Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery”, the Group has
requested its customers and suppliers to sign
a memorandum on anti-commercial bribery.
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ACHIEVE WIN-WIN SITUATION WITH
PARTNERS (Continued)

3.5. Anti-commercial bribery (Continued)

Every employee of the Group based in the
headquarter and middle and senior
management members of subsidiaries are
subject to “building business integrity for
employees of the enterprise” on-site training
and must sign an “undertaking of business
integrity as an employee of Texhong Textile
Group”. The Group has a stringent system for
procurement for bulk supplies and has set up
a whistle-blowing mechanism shown in the
diagram below:

The Group complies with all the national and
local laws and regulations regarding
extortion, fraud and money laundering. Due
to the nature of the industry, the Group does
not have the policy regarding extortion, fraud
and money laundering at the moment and will
adopt such policy should the need arise.

Whistle-blower

B

Rewards
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SAFE PRODUCTION

In compliance with the management requirements
of relevant local laws and regulations, such as
“Production Safety Law of the PRC”, the Group
implements the policy of “education, training and
management system for safe production”. The
Group strictly adheres to the requirements to carry
out training on safe production, which primarily
include safety association, management system,
hazard identification skills and induction safety
education of three levels. Internal accidents and
accidents for industry peers are both used as
comparable cases for learning and discussion.
Comparison and rationalization are conducted on
the three aspects of “system and association,
operation environment, and personnel education”
to put things into proper perspective for record and
filing.

In accordance with the requirements of relevant
local laws and regulations, such as the “Production
Safety Law of the PRC”, the Group has established
guidelines, such as “Policy on Production
Accidents”, “Policy on Production Standardization”,
“Policy on Regular Safe Production Meetings”,
“Policy on Safe Production Education”, “Policy on
Accident Reporting and Handling”, “Policy on
Emergency Response”, “Three Simultaneities” of
Construction Projects” and “Policy on Facilities and
Equipment Maintenance”, to regulate safe
production and prevent non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations. With regard to on-
site inspection of non-compliance, relevant
disciplinary schemes are executed and lessons are
learnt through accident analysis meetings to
prevent repeated violation. The principle of “four
prohibition” on incomplete cause investigation,
incomplete disciplinary action for responsible staff
member, incomplete rectification measures and
incomplete training for relevant staff member is
upheld to improve safety education and implement
rectifying measures.
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5.

BUILD A SUSTAINABLE ECOSYSTEM

5.1.

Energy conservation, cost reduction and
efficiency enhancement

In response to the urge for accelerating the
development of a “conservation-oriented
society”, the Group has actively complied
with relevant local laws and regulations like
the “Energy Conservation Law of the PRC”
and “Water Law of the PRC”, as well as
“Energy Management Implementation
Details” prepared by the Group to become an
efficient, conserving and energy-saving
pioneer. The Group has also put in place
“Measures for peak-and-trough electricity
Consumption and Management for
Management Staff’, “Operation Standard for
Cooling Equipment in a Workshop in
Summer”, “Texhong Yinfeng’s Relevant
Requirements on Operation of Refrigerating
Equipment”, “2015 Texhong Yinfeng’s New
Electricity Consumption Plan to Cut Peak
Consumption”, “Requirements to Ensure
Proper Operation of a Workshop in Winter”,
“Requirements on Leftovers Packaging and
On-Site Workshop Management of Xinjiang
Texhong Foundation Textile Co., Ltd” and
“Notice on Enhancement of Placement,
Disposal and Classification Management of
Domestic Waste Bin” to facilitate
environmental protection and energy
management in the Group, boost staff
awareness of energy saving and emission
reduction.
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BUILD A SUSTAINABLE ECOSYSTEM
(Continued)
Energy conservation, cost reduction and
efficiency enhancement (Continued)
5.1.1.Electricity conservation
The Group actively promotes the
concept of electricity conservation with
enhanced energy management by
adopting the following measures in the
workplace:

5.1.

Establish the energy management
system by installing more energy
measure instrument, formulating
energy consumption standard and
conducting energy efficiency
assessment;

Step up analysis on the efficiency
of the energy-consuming
equipment in order to enhance
their operational efficiency for
energy saving;

Designate management unit and
personnel for energy conservation
and provide training on energy
conservation;

Conduct analysis on the energy
consumption to identify any
insufficiency of our energy
management in a timely manner
with a view to raising our energy
management capacity;

Intensify monitoring of the quality
of parts and components to
improve the quality of
maintenance and repair. ldentify
and fix any possible malfunction
of equipment in a timely manner
to ensure that equipment is
always in good technological
condition. Meanwhile, eliminating
energy-inefficient equipment to
enhance the energy efficiency.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI#5#EBAERA A
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5.

BUILD A SUSTAINABLE ECOSYSTEM 5. WEWRKELERREW
(Continued)
5.1. Energy conservation, cost reduction and 54. HIHEER BRREH(E)

efficiency enhancement (Continued)

5.1.1.Electricity conservation (Continued)

511.FHAE(E)

In 2017, the Group invested significant
resources to promote energy saving by
various technological transformation
and equipment upgrading including
transforming inverter and energy-
efficient ventilator, replacing LED light,
and using air heat water heater. For
instance, in 2017, Shandong Lanyan
Textiles Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Lanyan”)
transformed its air compressor system.
Such transformation achieved
significant energy conservation:
electricity consumption was
0.6859kWh/meter before the
transformation while that reduced by
0.2218kwh/meter to 0.4641kWh/meter
after the transformation. Based on the
production rate of 16 million meters per
year, Shangdong Lanyan could reduce
energy consumption up to
3,548,800kWh per year while saving
electricity fee of RMB2.31 million.

—E—tF - EEEAK
EER KEREEESR
ohiE - ETRERMEIE © LED
SEH - FHERERK
T 48 5 7E 9 B B 1T i i £
REETEFERRDES
BEPRAE - a0 ILREE
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BUILD A SUSTAINABLE ECOSYSTEM
(Continued)

5.1.

Energy conservation, cost reduction and
efficiency enhancement (Continued)
5.1.2.Water conservation

The Group encourages employees to
develop water-saving habits by
adopting the following measures in the
workplace:

. Use water saving productions and
implement water recycling.

Turn off taps after use.

. Regular inspection on pipeline to
prevent water leakage.

Install separate water meters in
office, living and production areas
and assign dedicated staff to
record monthly water consumption
and analyze the data collected
from each department.

In 2017, the Group launched a range of
water-saving projects, such as
installation of water-saving equipment,
promotion of water recycling and
reclaimed water recycling, which saw
positive results. For example, Texhong
Dyeing and Printing Vietnam Limited
(“Texhong Dyeing”) implemented a
water recycling project, which used
equipment like hot water recycling pipe,
water tank and pump to collect the
condensation water from each base
station cylinder for the use in water tank
and shower equipment of base station
which required hot water. Out of the
100 tons steam consumed every day,
40 tons hot water was reclaimed to be
used in base stations.

The Group attached great importance
to the utilization of packaging materials
and implemented control over the
consumption of packaging materials to
boost the resource efficiency.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI#5#EBAERA A
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5. BUILD A SUSTAINABLE ECOSYSTEM 5. #EAIGELERIRE (&)

(Continued)

5.1. Energy conservation, cost reduction and 51. EIHNEER MBRIGH(E)
efficiency enhancement (Continued)
5.1.2.Water conservation (Continued) 51.2. N AK (&)

Texhong Dyeing Water Recycling Project
RITEFRKEIRR

2017 A2: Use of Resources KPIs
2017 F A2 B R FA AR E IR E

The following table sets out the consumption rate of TxzHFHE-—T—+F+=-A=+—H1t
water, energy and packaging material for the year ended  FEgyKk « s8R R BEMEHEER -
31 December 2017:

Resource

KPI Specific Indicator Consumption Intensity
KPI BREE ERHEE BE
A2.1 Energy 8¢5 1,591,916 MWh 97.6 MWh/RMB million sales

MWh/ B ETARKHER
A2.2 Water 7k 8,651,940 tons M& 530.6 tons/RMB million sales

W, BETARBHESE
A2.5 Packaging material 14,002 tons Mg 50.1 tons package/10,000 spindles

BEME mAE B
! Total packaging material represents the total packaging BEMBNEEABEERENMAARINBE
material from all companies in the scope of disclosure, MEESE BERYEEMNTE -

while intensity represents intensity of spindle products.
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BUILD A SUSTAINABLE ECOSYSTEM

(Continued)
5.2. Environmental protection and low carbon

In strict compliance with the requirements of
relevant local laws and regulations, such as
“Environmental Protection Law of the PRC”,
“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC” and “Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste”, the Group adhered
to green and low-carbon operation and actively
adopted emission reduction measures as well
as promoting environmental awareness of our
staff in order to reduce environmental impacts
arising from sewage, exhaust, greenhouse gas,
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
generated from our production and operation
processes.

The Group primarily discharges effluent and
domestic sewage, exhaust and solid waste.
There has been no environmental
incompliance for the Group over the past
three years.

5.2.1. Effluent
The major operating business of the
Group is the production and sales of
yarns and grey fabrics while the water
resources in the production process are
mainly used for refrigeration. The Group
requires separate treatment for
production effluent and domestic
sewage: Production effluent is reused
or, if not reusable, directly discharged
to the sewer of factory zone sewage
treatment for compliant discharge. After
the domestic sewage has been
biochemically processed in the plant,
they will be discharged to the sewer of
factory zone, which is then generally
managed by the municipal sewage
system.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI#5#EBAERA A
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BUILD A SUSTAINABLE ECOSYSTEM
(Continued)
5.2. Environmental protection and low carbon
(Continued)
5.2.2.Exhaust

The Group primarily produces fiber dusts
and boiler exhaust in production process.
To minimize the negative environmental
impact of fiber dusts, the Group requires
workshops to close windows during
production for close operation. The Group
installs dust removal units in every
workshop to handle fiber dusts to reduce
exhaust emission. In addition, the Group
actively works on technical renovation
projects and equipment replacement. For
example, Texhong Thai Binh Garment
Company Limited (“Texhong Thai Binh
Garment”) purchased desulfation tower
equipment to reduce sulfur emission by
approximately 60%; Jiangsu Century
Texhong Textile Co., Ltd invested
RMB1.5 million in boiler upgrade, where
two 6T coal boilers were upgrade to
natural gas boilers.

5.2.3.Greenhouse Gas

The Group primarily produces
greenhouse gases due to energy
consumption in the production process,
which comprise two aspects: direct
emission (petrol, diesel oil and natural
gas combustion) and energy indirect
emission (electricity). The Group
actively adopts energy-saving
measures to reduce energy
consumption and adopts clean energy
and photovoltaic power generation for
the purpose of reducing greenhouse
gas emission.
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BUILD A SUSTAINABLE ECOSYSTEM
(Continued)
5.2. Environmental protection and low carbon
(Continued)
5.2.4.Solid waste

The Group primarily produces waste
cotton, office and domestic waste,
waste equipment parts and components
and oily waste yarns in the production
process. The Group has prepared
guidelines such as “Notice On
Enhancing Customized Placement Of
Rubbish Bin And Classified
Management” and “Notice On
Enhancing Management And Classified
Deposit Of Industrial Waste And
Domestic Waste” to manage the
classification of domestic waste and
industrial waste. It sorts the said solid
waste and stores such waste by
category in the temporary deposit zone
of factory where a banner is hanged
and category, volume and storage
period are displayed. Waste from the
production process, such as cotton
waste, can be reused as raw material,
while the remaining scrap cotton and
impurities are collected for sale and
integrated use. Dangerous waste
should undergo detoxification treatment
by a competent organization according
to requirements. General solid waste,
such as domestic waste, is collectively
handled by the Office of Environment
and Sanitation.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI#5#EBAERA A
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BUILD A SUSTAINABLE ECOSYSTEM

(Continued)
5.2. Environmental protection and low carbon
(Continued)

5.2.4.Solid waste (Continued)

WEEELE B#)
5.2. BRERE ERENE)
5.2.4. EIBEEEY (&)

Classified Management of Solid Waste

R lie SEE )3

2017 A1: Emissions KPIs
2017 £ A1 BE BB E RUEIR

The following table sets out the emission data and total
amount of waste produced for the year ended 31

TRINEHE—FT—+FT_A=1+—81IF
FREMELRMOFBRBEREE

December 2017:
KPI Specific Indicator Emission Intensity
KPI AREE HHmE BE
A1.1 Effluent E&7K 6,614,207 tons#  405.6 tons/RMB million sales
W EETAREHESE
A1.2 Greenhouse gas B EREE 1,219,903 tons Mg 74.8tCO,e/RMB million sales
Mg — ’%ﬂl: Ee BETARKIHER
A1.3 Hazardous waste 5 EREEY) 4,850 tons 0.3 tons/RMB million sales

A14

Non-hazardous waste 7,722 tons [

5.3. Environment and natural resources

The Group is principally engaged the
production and sales of yarns and grey
fabrics. The production process and
techniques of yarns and grey fabrics involve
only physical changes which means neither
chemical reactions nor additives are involved.
As described in section 5.1 above, primary
resources used in the production process are
electricity and a small amount of water. Other
than that, no other natural resources are
used in the production process. As such,
Aspect A3 of the Reporting Guide is not
applicable to the Group.

W, EETAREHESE
0.5 tons/RMB million sales

W, BEBTARKHER
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group has been committed to giving back to
society over the years. For instance, we acquired
bankrupt cotton textile enterprises in the PRC and
offered better remuneration package and living
security for retained staff. In response to state
policy of “One Belt One Road” initiative, we
proactively implemented industrial support in
Xinjiang by recruiting ethnic minority employees in
order to improve their living quality with job and
education opportunities. Being enthusiastic in
social welfare, we made donations every year and
hired disabled employees so that they can support
themselves financially. The Group established
Charity and Social Welfare Management System of
Texhong Textile Group for organizing charity and
welfare activities.

6.1. Charitable Donation

. In 2017, Texhong Times made a
donation of RMB3 million to Jiangsu
Textile Vision Science & Education
Fund (I#EHBZ ABRBRHEESR)
and RMB1.5 million to Jiangsu Charity
Federation()T & & % & # &) for
poverty alleviation;

. In 2017, Nantong Century Texhong
Textile Co., Ltd. (“Nantong Texhong”)
made a donation of RMB10,829 to
county-level Red Cross;

. In 2017, Xinjiang Texhong Foundation
Textile Co., Ltd. (“Xinjiang Texhong”)
organized education sponsorship
program and was keen on donating
schoolbags and stationery to
impoverished students.
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6.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (Continued)
6.2. Caring the Disabled

6.3.

In 2017, Nantong Texhong hired a total
of 9 disabled employees. The Company
provided an environment for the
disabled staff to develop their full
potential in different positions with care
and love to their work and lives.

In 2017, Xuzhou Texhong Yinlian
Textile Co., Ltd. (“Texhong Yinlian”)
actively participated in social and
charitable activities and hired 5 disabled
employees, thus being recognized as
an “Outstanding Overseas Chinese
Enterprise” by Federation of Returned
Overseas Chinese of Xuzhou.

In 2017, Shandong Lanyan recruited 34
deaf interns and 11 graduates of
fashion degree from Shandong
Vocational College of Special Education
as well as 5 deaf people in the society.

Increasing Employment of Ethnic

Minorities

In 2017, Nantong Texhong employed a
total of 107 ethnic minority staff
including Sui people, Miao people, Dai
people and Bouyei people with the
principle of equal treatment, harmony,
respect of living habits and opinions.
We extended our greetings and wishes
to them on their traditional festivals.

In 2017, Xinjiang Texhong employed
2,353 ethnic minority staff from 18
ethnic minorities including Tibetans,
Hui, Uighur, Miao and Mongolian.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (Continued)
6.4. Overseas Charity

While maintaining stable production and
enhancing management standard since its
establishment, Texhong Galaxy Technology
Limited (“Texhong Galaxy”) has devoted itself
to public affair and charity by making certain
donation to the society every year. The
company recruited ethnic minority staff in
remote mountain area of Vietnam, making
contribution to the employment of mountain
residents and enhancement of their living
standard. Labor Union of the company called
on the department staff to donate clothes,
bedding, daily necessities to the elderly and
children in poverty in remote mountain areas.
The company provided scholarship to some
30 outstanding university graduates in
poverty of Hanoi University of Science and
Technology, Hanoi National University of
Education, Thai Nguyen University, Hue
University and Hanoi Economic and
Technology University* (8] /345 5 £ filf A 22 )
in the Northern part of Vietnam.

Texhong Yinlong Technology Ltd. (“Texhong
Yinlong”) always supports the local education
in Vietnam. In 2017, the company made
donations in aggregate of VND92,000,000 for
scholarship or other funding to Hué
University, Hanoi University of Science and
Technology, University of Economic and
Technical Industries, and Thai Nguyen
University. Meanwhile, Texhong Yinlong
attached great importance to development of
talent by recruiting nearly 100 new graduates
from tertiary institutions every year.
Outstanding trainees will be promoted to
junior management and will receive trainings
in different subsidiaries across the country in
respect of advanced management model and
production experience.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

6. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT (Continued) 6. EfExE®)

6.4. Overseas Charity (Continued) 6.4. BHA(E)

Texhong Thai Binh Garment made a donation RITAKFRELE - F R
of VND5,000,000 to the affected in the R EPE B 500 B MG -
typhoon disaster in Central Vietnam in 2017 HAFEAMAETEE RN
and made donations to orphanage in Thai 18Bh o B nhr I 2 48 B 2= 1@
Binh every year. Alpha Textil de Nicaragua, KR4/ NE PR 242 [ JOSE
S.A. donated empty buckets and pallets to DOLORES ESTRADA | fE &1k
local school “JOSE DOLORES ESTRADA” to BMEBEEMBER SBES
serve as rubbish bins and construction R-Em mAKNEMRED
materials. Besides, the factory donated [LOS BRASILES ]2001L /N B &
snacks, gifts and toys to 200 children located EREHE EHNNESR o

in “LOS BRASILES” as Christmas presents.

Donation of Nicaragua factory Donation of Texhong Galaxy
Je iz I T8 g FNAKiEIE ]
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To the Shareholders of Texhong Textile Group
Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Texhong Textile
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 128 to 252, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2017;

. the consolidated income statement for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

' PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

120 TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A

BREp ki

BRUGEEERRAFTZEERRE
(RESHEZMALAFRL A])

=R

REZHE (A TR IEM) &R :
SIEMNFE 128252 A RAL A MEBEER A
A(ERAR D EEKBRR(EEE])H4ER
EMBERE - WRAVBHREREHE

c  RIZE—+tF+ZA=+—BHGEE
ERER

+©  BEZALFENSARER

. HEZBLFENGFEEZERER

> BEZALFENGAEGEEHK

c  HEZBLFENGEEREZRER N

0 GRATBRERNTE  EhaEEEes
BURRZE -

EMWER

BMRE  SEMBHRREREFT B
ARG ([EREMAE ) BANEBHER
SEA((FEAVBHREEA D EEMA i
RBREKER-_F—tF+-_A=+—8H
HEMBIAREBEZA EFENEAY
BRALKGARERE  UBRREB QA
RO BRREZ BAREL °

BEFKERMELRF  BETRATARET =2
T3 +852 2289 8888 {HE: +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com



RVR A T

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

-
pwec

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of this
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BRpRE

EREXE
BMERBEESAMAGEMNEBET
ZR([FBE LR ETER - BIARZ
FE[ TR EERATRE R EED B XA
EMBRRAAENEE—EHAFL -

HPIARGE - RPMESHEREEELT S M
EEWARMNBRIRHER

Bt

BREEEEMASN EXSTANERTA
(T=FRIDHMBINESRE - X EBETA
BITEAMBERE -

BARELEE

RIBBFIN B AL - BRBEZERSEA
ERRAHENGA N BRRTREENS
He BMEBRRERG AP BHRR LM E
BHEARBEHLEFEE MASRLEFER
BEREERER -
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BEAAE

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised #HFIEEZTEHNNBRSZSBEE D

as follows:

. Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

. Business combinations

Key Audit Matter?
HRELBR

T
0 WARER  BmiHE
c E Ao

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMEBRTNEERRERSENL &

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

Refer to Note 2.26 to the
consolidated financial statements
BB A B REN 1226

During the year 2017, the
Group recognised RMB16,306,375,000
of revenue from sales of goods.
RZZ—+%F  EEECHEABEREERAR
AE#16,306,375,000 7T

Revenue is recognised when the risks and
rewards of the underlying products have
been transferred to the customers.

BARREERNOER R EREBETRPRER o

We focused on this area due to the high volume
of sales generated in various
locations and from decentralised customers, and
thus significant audit time and resources
were devoted in this area, in particular relating
to the occurrence, accuracy and timely
recording of such transactions.
HRETRERDBNEFPELEREE
HHMESRHE - TRARBEREEE
BRIEGD LHREBARHNEL -
ERMN RS TEERNEE -

WARR : BmEE

We understood, evaluated and validated management's controls in
respect of the Group’s process to recognise sales transactions,
including contract approval, recording of sales based on contract
terms, and reconciliations with cash receipts and customers’ records.

MR ERERAHER H B 2R - AR HOME -
AHEENERHERERRREFLHHE B TR
REEEE -

We tested the revenue derived from different customers and different
locations for selected samples by examination of the sales contracts,
invoices and goods delivery notes to revenue recorded. We compared
the delivery dates based on delivery notes with the timing of revenue
recognition, and we also examined transactions which occurred
immediately before and after the balance sheet date for their recording
as revenue in the proper periods.

BARGHERN BERETRBAZZELH  BFUREHKEDN
BARFATRAES R RMEEENHYA - BFIREX S8
HEXE A ERAWARRE - RS ERENEE BEIIRA
WEse A E BRI R BRI S -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s revenue
recognition in relation to sales of goods was supported
by the relevant evidence that we gathered.

EREGER  AMERESERNERHEENRARR
BRI RRRE RS -

122 TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE



RVR A T

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

-
pwec

Key Audit Matter?
BRELSE?

BRpRE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMEBRTHEERRERSENL &

Business combinations

Refer to Note 2.2.1 and Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements

FRE BEEGAUBHRENFT221K
H5#32

During the year 2017, the Group completed two
acquisitions of garment fabrics and garments
business. Accounting for the acquisitions involves
a fair value valuation on the acquired assets and
liabilities. On 1 May 2017, the Group acquired
the 100% equity interest of garments fabrics and
garments business of Nien Hsing Textile Co.,
Ltd. for a total consideration of RMB440,691,000,
resulting in the Group’s recognition of a negative
goodwill of RMB146,578,000 as a gain. On
31 December 2017, the Group acquired the
remaining 51% equity interest of an associate
and its subsidiaries, engaging in garments fabrics
and garments business for a consideration of
RMBH1, resulting in the Group’s recognition of a
negative goodwill of RMB26,856,000 as a gain.

R+ % ERETHAMERNRREEE
W - B e RESRIEBBEEERGRE
MATERE - R-ZE—+t50R—R  EXE
WBEFEGERNERAAEMRREEXE 22
Mk - BREAARE440,691,0007T - BH
BEEERRABEMFRAARK 146,578,000
ToRZE—tF+-A=+—R B£ELE
O ETEEY T EE 3730 NG S E L)
REART51% % - BRER/ARE1T  EH
EEERAARBMG K AKRK26,856,0007T ©

We focused on this area due to the significant
amount of negative goodwill recognized from
the acquisitions and in determining
the accounting treatment for the acquisitions,
the acquired intangible and tangible
assets need to be valued and the acquisition
consideration needs to be allocated to the assets
and liabilities being acquired,
which involves a number of significant
judgements and assumptions.

FMEELSE - RARKBEIZEASEN
ERERETRENEHRE FRREN
ENBEVRAVEAERFESRTNEL
BERBENRBRE PREBEXAER

LEE

EBAH

Management relied on external independent valuers to determine
the fair values of the significant tangible and intangible assets
acquired from these business combinations. Therefore, we assessed
the competency, objectivity and capabilities of these external valuers.
ERERRIIMNIBUAENRETREXBAHTRBNER
B REVEAERNANTE - Bt - BME FEIN PR ER
BERE N - BB NEE

We challenged management’s assessment of the appropriate accounting
treatment, the identification and valuation of tangible and intangible
assets and the allocation of consideration for the acquisitions to the
assets and liabilities acquired. We tested the mathematical accuracy
of the Group’s cash flow model.

FZMEEAERBUESQHEE BBV RENEERERER
BRBRESETRRENEERERE - RMEAFHESHE
REnERUMANMERE -

We involved our own valuation specialists to assist us in critically
assessing the key assumptions in the valuation of the identified
tangible and intangible assets, including the appropriateness of
the discount rates and terminal growth rate and comparing
the inputs used in determining the key assumptions to externally
and internally derived data.

HPEAAGNREER B RMBRRTEEZR AT BN EEN
HENBRRR  BRAARLKAEREZNEEN - YHET
BREBREANBABBRINTRADEGHHBILR -

We challenged management’s key assumptions within the model
such as the sales growth rate, terminal growth rate and gross profit
margin and compared these key assumptions to externally derived
data.
LMERERENERYANBRER  fIMBELRE  KABRE
REME - THEZSHREREINPRGHEBELR -

We have also considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in
respect of the acquisitions in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AMFEZRERERGAMBRRME2BNRENRERT R -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s
accounting treatment for the business combinations and the Group’s
disclosures in respect of the acquisitions in Note 32 were supported
by the relevant evidence that we gathered.

REBMNELRSF  AMEREEEREBAHNGHRE
RESEEMZR2ARBENREERMKENRBEEXS -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information set out in the Company’s 2017 Annual
Report. The other information comprises the information
included in the Financial Highlights, Corporate Profile
and Structure, Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis, Directors and Senior
Management and Corporate Information (but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, and Corporate Governance
Report, Report of the Directors and Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which are expected to
be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

When we read the Corporate Governance Report,
Report of the Directors and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to the audit committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

BRpRE
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

126 TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

BREp ki

EREFEBEFEAETESNBIES R
PMERBEXHE  REBXRIEREE - B
In

g BRI N wHE R EREFE S A R I E AR &
PBBREFAEEAHERRANER - R
SERBITER T ARE ZERRE - P
REBRTRMEENETRE  (EAR
MERMER - ARMFFAIRES K&
o RE - ERER  EREULAZZEE
MEBEEHE BN - R BE 338 R IRAE
B B A S SRR A LB = T R BE
ARG EAHE R AR

LA
a

)
ZoN

EMEEF  HLFEEHEEER

g TRREERET BN A EEE - AREHE
MEENERMEERER -

+ AHMAEEARAEBERMIRE MR IE
HE st ARERENS R -

o HEZRAHELESTERNRE L
R AR - SRR TR RERE
BEEAFERSRMBEREHIEXN
THEEM - WM A RE B B R E AR
BRERENELBRERE -~ WRMIRS
FEERTEEN - RIE B EEZEE
REPRBEAEIEHFAMBHRRD
MARREIREE - MABRRETRE - BIER]
BMER - BFERIERBE XA
W& B PAERGERHER - A
RIRBIAELIEN I LG E B EER

+ HEEAMBHRERNERBERTNA &
BEAT  BREEER  URKEEY
BHREETETERRBABRXZMEIR -



RVR A T

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

-
pwec

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit
committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Arthur Chi Ping Kwok.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 March 2018
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As at 31 December

At+=—BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M et AR¥EFIT AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Freehold land and land use rights 5k A ZE#E + 3t &
b P PR A 6 863,083 695,184
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB KR 7 6,660,122 6,231,119
Investments accounted for using AREZFEAARZIRE
the equity method 8 182,789 99,349
Deferred income tax assets EEFTIS T E E 20 107,558 117,004
7,813,552 7,142,656
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 10 3,764,189 2,931,297
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 Rk EEHKIA 11 1,630,144 1,589,990
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE - me &k
other receivables H b B RBR 3R 12 637,229 1,308,115
Derivative financial instruments  $744$ @ T A 18 134,350 317,882
Pledged bank deposits B IFRITFRK 13 88,249 181,201
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 13 1,466,718 1,813,208
7,720,879 8,141,693
Total assets EEHAE 15,534,431 15,284,349
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners AR T EE AEIERER
of the Company
Share capital: nominal value A EE 14 96,709 96,709
Share premium [ gpapinyit 14 433,777 433,777
Other reserves H b 16 616,374 566,590
Retained earnings RE &= A 16 4,763,267 4,051,645
5,910,127 5,148,721
Non-controlling interests FEERE R 65,586 42,723
Total equity AR 5,975,713 5,191,444
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As at 31 December

n+=—B=+—8
2017 2016
—E—tF ZZE—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 ARB¥EFIT ARYFT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kRBEMF
Borrowings ’g 17 2,987,229 2,559,625
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFTSRAE 20 149,172 113,377
Finance lease obligations AT E R 19 1,587 =
3,137,988 2,673,002
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and bills payables B E 5 R EERFUR 21 2,961,729 3,044,295
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A N E M IR 22 741,451 721,658
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAE 36,562 72,006
Borrowings BE 17 2,562,369 3,549,669
Derivative financial instruments  $74$ @ T A 18 112,996 32,275
Finance lease obligations BETREAE 19 5,623 =
6,420,730 7,419,903
Total liabilities EEEE 9,558,718 10,092,905
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 15,534,431 15,284,349

The notes on pages 135 to 252 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 128 to
252 were approved by the Board of Directors on 9 March
2018 and the consolidated balance sheet was signed on

its behalf by:

Hong Tianzhu Zhu Yongxiang HXB
Director Director EF

R

EF

ME135E252H Z M B F4R A M5
RZ—HBD ©

MEIBE2E 2 HFAVBHRREN-F
—N\F=ZANBEEEGHE AHTIE
ERREFSRFETHERBEERER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+tF+-A=1+—BLLFE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLHEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZZE—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
KtaE AREFT ARKETT
Revenue WA 5 16,306,375 13,647,737
Cost of sales SHE A 24 (13,866,416) (11,002,594)
Gross profit EF 2,439,959 2,645,143
Selling and distribution costs HE RS HRAXS 24 (581,717) (496,712)
General and administrative —MRITBAX
expenses 24 (511,930) (546,655)
Other income HAb YA 23 169,555 126,098
Other (losses)/gains — net Hib (BE), Wz —F58 23 (64,690) 161,673
Operating profit Fe-— il 1,451,177 1,889,547
Finance income ARSI 26 9,162 9,752
Finance costs Hi5E A 26 (85,697) (413,167)
Finance costs — net MBER— 8 26 (76,535) (403,415)
Share of profits less losses of DRAREERE AR Z
investments accounted for B 8% R E 18
using the equity method 8 (12,820) 10,676
Profit before income tax BRET S B AR 1,361,822 1,496,808
Income tax expense FriS i 28 (187,097) (295,735)
Profit for the year FERF 1,174,725 1,201,073
Attributable to: BT &R
Owners of the Company PiIN/NGTE 2 =N 1,151,862 1,187,531
Non-controlling interests I HIM R 22,863 13,542
1,174,725 1,201,073
Earnings per share for profit EAREE AEERER 2
attributable to owners of BREF
the Company
RMB1.26 RMB1.33
— Basic earnings per share — BRELRAF 29 AE#1267T AR%1.337T
RMB1.26 RMB1.33
— Diluted earnings per share — BREEART 29 AR#1267T AR®1337T

The notes on pages 135 to 252 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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ReRERRE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+tF+-A=1+—BLLFE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=T-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

ffat ARMFT ARETT

Profit for the year FERA 1,174,725 1,201,073

Other comprehensive Hit 2w (BE)

income/(losses)
Items that will not be reclassified E#&ETEeEZH SHEE

subsequently to profit or loss B 2 HE
Revaluation of buildings BFEM
— gross — 1B - 45,883
— deferred income tax — REFEH - (16,354)
Items that may be reclassified Bov 39 s )
subsequently to profit or loss B2 HH

Share of other comprehensive DIRAEREARZ
income/(losses) of investments ~ R& 7 EMEME

accounted for using the Wz, (E18)
equity method
— share of currency translation ~ — D& & R
reserve 11,175 (8,556)
Currency translation differences & 3 =48 16 (8,878) 1,134

Total comprehensive income  FEZHUEELE

for the year 1,177,022 1,223,180
Attributable to: HUT &S EN :
Owners of the Company KRBER A 1,154,159 1,209,471
Non-controlling interests JEE 1A ES 22,863 13,709

1,177,022 1,223,180

The notes on pages 135 to 252 are an integral part of R 13552528 K s AL S 4 MR
these consolidated financial statements. RZ—HH °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—+tF+-A=1+—BLLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

YN 2PN/L
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained  Controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings interests equity
FEEINE BlRR
BA ROHEE  HREE  REEN B 3
Note RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
Mt AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFR
Balance at 1 January 2016  R=ZF—xE-A—8
0k 94,064 189,218 509,922 3,117,951 27414 3,938,569
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year EERF - - - 1,187,531 13542 1,201,073
Other comprehensive Hitv2EKE/ (F8)
income/(losses):
Surplus on revaluation of BTEMRRH
buildings
— gross — &8 - - 45,883 - = 45,883
— deferred income tax — ERFEH - - (16,354) - = (16,354)
Share of other comprehensive S AMEZSEARZ
losses of associates YN A R
accounted for using the E#
equity method
— share of currency — HEEBELRE
translation reserve - - (8,556) - - (8,556)
Currency translation differences E#E ¥ =% 16 - - 967 - 167 1,134
Total comprehensive FEXHUELRE
income for the year - - 21,940 1,187,531 13,709 1,223,180
Transactions with owners ~ EREREAZRS
Issue of ordinary shares BTTRR 14 2645 244559 - - - 247204
Capital injection from non- BRI HERR R T E
controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - - - 1,600 1,600
Dividend relating to 2015 “Z-RERE 30 - - - (89,155) = (89,155)
Dividend relatingto 2016~ —Z— A4S 30 - - - (137,235) - (137235
Employee share option scheme 1g 8 B kiZ:t 2 15 - - 7,281 - = 7,281
Transfer to statutory reserves ~ EAZ X TE 16 - - 32,724 (32,724) = =
Transfer from revaluation HERRRERZE
reserve to retained earnings  {RE &7
— gross — &8 - - (7,221) 7,221 = =
— deferred income tax — ERFEHR - - 1,944 (1,944) = =
Total transactions AREREAZREE
with owners 2,645 244,559 34,728 (253,837) 1,600 29,695
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=Z—x&
+ZB=t+-RMEs 96,709 433,777 566,590 4,051,645 42,723 5,191,444
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AEEREDR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—tHF+-_A=1t—BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARERAEE
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained Controlling Total
capital  premium reserves  earnings interests equity
FiEmM
RA  RGEE  EtREE KSR BR ARRES
Note RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
K ARETn AREFrn ARETR AREFrT ARETn AREFZR
Balance at 1 January 2017 R=ZF—t&£-A—H
ifeds 96,709 433,777 566,590 4,051,645 42,723  5191,444
Comprehensive income 2HkE
Profit for the year FERF - - - 1,151,862 22,863 1,174,725
Other comprehensive Htr2EBA /(B8
income/(losses):
Share of other comprehensive S AMEZEARZ
income of investments REZHEMZE
accounted for using the Wiz
equity method
— share of currency —HEERELGE
translation reserve - - 11,175 - - 11,175
Currency translation differences &% & 5 %% 16 - - (8,878) - - (8,878)
Total comprehensive FEXEKEAR
income for the year - - 2,297 1,151,862 22,863 1,177,022
Transactions with owners ~ EREZFEAZR S
Dividend relating to 2016 —2-RERE 30 - - - (210437) - (210,137)
Dividend relating to 2017 “E-tERE 30 - - - (185935) - (185,935)
Employee share option scheme {E B B 2512 15 - - 3,319 - - 3,319
Transfer to statutory reserves  ERAZ ATl 16 - - 48,202 (48,202) - -
Transfer from revaluation mEREREERE
reserve to retained earnings  REEFI
— gross — 8 - - (6,362) 6,362 - -
— deferred income tax — BREFGH - - 2,328 (2,328) - -
Total transactions RRERAAZRZAE
with owners - - 4TA8T  (440,240) - (392,753)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=F—+t#
TZA=t+-BHER 96,709 433,777 616,374 4,763,267 65,586 5,975,713

The notes on pages 135 to 252 are an integral part of RE135%252B v MisT Al EMBRER 2

these consolidated financial statements. —& D e
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE-_T—tF+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—-HLEE

2017 2016
=E—tF EB—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
KteE AR¥FT ARETT

Cash flows from operating REKETHNEERE

activities
Cash generated from operations &E&fEL VRS 31 2,413,303 804,131
Interest received 2 UF B 9,162 9,752
Income tax paid B EER (229,854) (207,308)
Net cash generated from KETEB TSRS 558

operating activities 2,192,611 606,575
Cash flows from investing RERETBNRERE

activities
Newly set-up and acquisition of %ﬁfﬂlﬂ&”ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ’] /N

associates and joint ventures GEPHE (113,122) (13,004)
Purchases of property, Eﬁ,\%% R K a%

plant and equipment (817,806) (1,769,311)
Purchases of land use rights EE TR (41,043) (169,664)
Proceeds from sale of property, Hj’%%% - B K

plant and equipment and land ﬁLA&iﬁﬂﬁEﬁﬁ%

use rights ﬁﬁ@rﬁy’( 31 49,679 33,211
Payments on acquisitions of WS E A B K

subsidiaries, net of cash HBRE IR S R

and cash equivalents acquired ReEEY (396,013) (44,662)
Purchase of financial instruments S &g T A (39,141) (125,732)
Net proceeds from settlement of 4 Bl T B &= & 15208

financial instruments R 19,725 43,383
Net cash used in investing WEEBFFERE F58

activities (1,337,721)  (2,045,779)
Cash flows from financing REMETHNEESRE

activities
Proceeds from borrowings EE S RIE 5,252,310 4,269,892
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (5,839,824)  (2,379,408)
Repayments of finance lease BEmMEHEARE

obligations - (359,046)
Dividends paid ERE (396,072) (226,390)
Interest paid BEAFILE (310,746) (307,924)
Proceeds from capital injection JE4E %IJ IH%E:&EL/Iﬁ

by non-controlling interests FT1S 5878 - 1,600
Decrease in pledged bank EHEAIRITEROR D

deposits 92,952 66,462
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRIDFTIS 5K IE - 247,204
Net cash (used in)/generated BESES (FTR), P&

from financing activities IB&F5E (1,201,380) 1,312,390
Net decrease in cash and ReRRSEEYRD

cash equivalents HEE (346,490) (126,814)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUIzREMRESEED

beginning of year 13 1,813,208 1,940,022
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZHERKREZEY

end of the year 13 1,466,718 1,813,208
The notes on pages 135 to 252 are an integral part of M5 135%2528 2 KitE Al SHEE B KR

these consolidated financial statements.
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e MBERERME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—tF+_A=+—HLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of yarns, grey fabrics and garment fabrics as well
as garments.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 12 July 2004 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 9 December
2004.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
9 March 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs). The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of buildings,
financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.
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e MBRERMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HILFE

2.

136

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

21

Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

(@

New amendments of HKFRSs adopted
by the Group in 2017

The following amendments to existing
standards have been adopted by the
Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 ‘Income
Taxes’ on the recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised losses clarify
how to account for deferred tax assets
related to debt instruments measured at
fair value.

Amendments to HKAS 7 ‘Statement of
Cash Flows’ introduced an additional
disclosure that will enable users of
financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities’ is part of
the annual improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 cycle. The amendments
clarify that the disclosure requirements
of HKFRS 12 are applicable to interests
in entities classified as held for sale
except for summarised financial
information (para B17 of HKFRS 12).
Previously, it was unclear whether all
other HKFRS 12 requirements were
applicable for those interests.
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R MBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—tF+-A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

21

(@)

(b)

New amendments of HKFRSs adopted
by the Group in 2017 (Continued)

The adoption of the above new
amendments did not give rise to any
significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The amendments to HKAS 7 require
disclosure of changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, see
note 31(b).

New standards, amendments and
interpretations of HKFRSs issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted by the Group

A number of new standards,
amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been issued
but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2017, and
have not been early adopted by the
Group in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. The Group is yet
to assess the full impact of these new
standards, amendments and
interpretations and intents to adopt
them no later than their respective
effective dates. These new standards,
amendments and interpretations are set
out below:

(i) HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the
classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting
and a new impairment model for
financial assets.
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e MBRERMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HILFE

2.

138

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations of HKFRSs issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

21

(b)

@)

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
(Continued)

Impact

The Group has reviewed its
financial assets and liabilities and
is expecting no significant impact
from the adoption of the new
standard on 1 January 2018:

The Group does not have:

. Debt instrument or equity
instrument that are classified
as available-for-sale;

. Debt instrument classified
as held-to-maturity and
measured at amortised cost;

. Equity investments
measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

There will be no impact on the
Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements
only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through
profit or loss and the Group does
not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been
transferred from HKAS 39
‘Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’
and have not been changed.
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R MBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—tF+-A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations of HKFRSs issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

21

(b)

()

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
(Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new hedge accounting rules
will align the accounting for
hedging instruments more closely
with the Group’s risk management
practices. As a general rule, more
hedge relationships might be
eligible for hedge accounting, as
the standard introduces a more
principles-based approach.
However, at this stage the Group
does not expect to identify any
new hedge relationships.
Accordingly, the Group does not
expect a significant impact on the
accounting for its hedging
relationships.

The new impairment model
requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on
expected credit losses (ECL)
rather than only incurred credit
losses as is the case under HKAS
39. It applies to financial assets
classified at amortised cost, debt
instruments measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income, contract
assets under HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’,
lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial
guarantee contracts. Based on
the assessments undertaken to
date, the Group expects a small
increase in the loss allowance for
trade debtors and in relation to
debt investments held at
amortised cost. But according to
the preliminary result, the financial
impact is expected to be
immaterial.
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e MBRERMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HILFE

2.

140

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations of HKFRSs issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

21

(b)

@)

(ii)

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
(Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements
and changes in presentation.
These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new
standard.

Date of adoption by Group

Must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January
2018. The Group will apply the
new rules retrospectively from 1
January 2018, with the practical
expedients permitted under the
standard. Comparatives for 2017
will not be restated.

HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new
standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS
18 which covers revenue arising
from the sale of goods and HKAS
11 which covers construction
contracts and related literature.

The new standard is based on the
principle that revenue is
recognised when control of a
good or service transfers to a
customer.

The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the
adoption.
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R MBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations of HKFRSs issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

(b)

(ii)

HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’
(Continued)

Impact

Management has assessed the
effects of apply the new standard
on the Group’s financial
statements and has identified the
following area that will be
affected:

. rights of return — HKFRS
15 requires separate
presentation on the balance
sheet of the rights to recover
the goods from the customer
and the refund obligation.
Due to the large size and
low value of the Group’s
products, the historical
goods return rate is very
low.

Based on the preliminary
assessment result, the Group
does not expect a material impact
on the adoption of new HKFRS
15.

Date of adoption by Group

Mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January
2018. The Group intends to adopt
the standard using the modified
retrospective approach which
means that the cumulative impact
of the adoption will be recognised
in retained earnings as of 1
January 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.
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142

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations of HKFRSs issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

21

(b)

(iii)

HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January
2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognized on the
balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to
use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are
recognized. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value
leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily
the accounting for the Group’s
operating lease. As at 31
December 2017, the Group has
non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB193 million.
However, the Group has not yet
determined to what extent these
commitments will result in the
recognition of an asset and a
liability for future payments and
how this will affect the Group’s
profit and classification of cash
flows.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A

2,

EESBERBE %)
21 REEE(E)
SHBREERINE (&)

(b) EHAMEEAR=-ZF—
F—A—HBEBZHKF
EBERZEBHEIHREE
ﬁ//ZnT—gﬁ\// /5/:7&53?%—#’5
RSB FEIE B (48)

(iiy BAMBREERE
1658 [HHE]
kéﬁ@/ﬁg
BN HRELRE
165N T — /R F—
REM% - BRIH
HEBREEARE
R BRKEERE
HUEHENESE
B M BR o 72 37 2% Al
T EBEE(EREE
BEH M) RZ AT
HerzemAaBEeER
TR o E—BIIMER
AEBEREEZHE
# o

HR WA 2 B
BT ELREAS
&) o

e
BB BB A

EERLEHE &5
BRI R_T—+t4F
+=—A=+—H &

SEBEAEARE
193,000,000 7T 2 T
AT B8 AR B
o R AEER
REFE U FAE/S
ERHERE EMARR
NRzBERE - K

PSEIYNIN-SEi RPN
ReRENENF
=



R MBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—tF+-A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations of HKFRSs issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

21

(b)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

Also, the Group has not yet
assessed what other adjustments,
if any, are necessary for example
because of the change in the
definition of the lease term and
the different treatment of variable
lease payments and of extension
and termination options. It is
therefore not yet possible to
estimate the amount of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities
that will have to be recognised on
adoption of the new standard and
how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of
cash flows going forward.

Date of adoption by Group
Mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January
2019. At this stage, the Group
does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.
The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and
will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.

Amendments to HKFRS 2
regarding classification and
measurement of share-based
payment transactions, effective
for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018.

Amendments to HKFRS 4
‘Insurance Contracts’, effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)
New standards, amendments and
interpretations of HKFRSs issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

(b)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Amendments to HKFRS 1 ‘First
Time Adoption of HKFRS’,
effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

Amendments to HKAS 28
‘Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures’, effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018.

Amendments to HKAS 40
regarding transfers of investment
property, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

HK (IFRIC) 22 ‘Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration’, effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018.

HK(IFRIC) 23 ‘Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments’, effective
for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and
interpretations of HKFRSs issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2017 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

(xi) Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 regarding sale or
contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint
venture, originally intended to be
effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

(a)

A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity) over which the
group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the group
is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.
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146

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are
measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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HE-ZT—tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations
(Continued)

If the business combination is
achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to
be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other
comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within
equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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148

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations
(Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on
transactions between group
companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously
recognised in other
comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the
company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is also required according
to Note 2.9.
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150

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

23

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognized at cost, and
the carry amount is increased or decreased
to recognize the investor’s share of the profit
or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of
profit of investments accounted for using
equity method’ in the consolidated income
statement.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

23

24

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in the
Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interests
in associates are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. The Group’s
investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
When the Group’s share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint ventures, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the joint ventures.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Joint arrangements (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the
Committee of Executive Directors of the
Company that makes strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation
currency

Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s

presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances
(Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the
consolidated income statement within
‘finance costs — net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other (losses)/gains
— net’.

Changes in the fair value of debt
securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available for sale
are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale,
are included in other comprehensive
income.
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2.

154

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group’s entities (none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
consolidated income statement
are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and
offices. Buildings are shown at fair value,
based on periodic, but at least triennial,
valuations by external independent valuers,
less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset, and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. All other property, plant and
equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged to other comprehensive income;
all other decreases are charged to the
consolidated income statement. Each year
the difference between depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of the asset
charged to the consolidated income
statement and depreciation based on the
asset’s original cost is transferred from
‘revaluation reserve’ to ‘retained earnings’.
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2.

156

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs or revalued
amounts to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings

— Machinery and equipment
— Furniture and fixtures

— Motor vehicles

15 to 40 years
6 to 15 years
3 to 10 years
5to 7 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts
included in revaluation reserve are
transferred to retained earnings.

Construction-in-progress, representing
buildings on which construction work has not
been completed and machinery pending
installation, is stated at cost, which includes
construction expenditures incurred, cost of
machinery, interest capitalised and other
direct costs capitalised during the
construction and installation period, less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. No
depreciation is provided in respect of
construction-in-progress until the construction
and installation work is completed and put
into use. On completion, construction-in-
progress is transferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

210

Freehold land and land use rights
Freehold land is not amortized.

The premiums paid to acquire land use rights
are recorded as prepayment for operating
lease, and are amortised using the straight-
line method over the period of the land use
rights of 45 to 50 years.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and
receivables. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial
assets are acquired. Management
determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.
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2.

158

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short-
term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in
current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than
12 months after the end of the
reporting period which are
classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and
bills receivables’, ‘deposits and
other receivables’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the balance
sheet (Notes 2.16 and 2.17).
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the ‘financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other losses
— net’, in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of ‘other income’
when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

160

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

213

214

215

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The method of
recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is
designed as a hedging instrument, and if so,
the nature of item being hedged. Derivative
instruments held by the Group do not qualify
for hedge accounting and are accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of these derivative instruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other (losses)/gains
— net’.

Government grants/subsidies
Grants/subsidies from government authorities
are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant/
subsidies will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants/subsidies relating to
assets are presented in the balance sheet by
deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying
amount of the asset.

Government grants/subsidies relating to
compensation for relocation are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period when the relocation
takes place.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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2.

162

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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2.

164

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill and deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-ZT—tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are
provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in
place that gives the Group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising
from associate’s undistributed profits is
not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet
date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EESHBERBEE@®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Employee benefits (Continued) 223 EEERE)

(b) Pension obligations (defined (b) RBRAESHEE(EHMERE)
contribution plans)
A defined contribution plan is a pension ERERGTEA-—ELRE
plan under which the group pays fixed m—EBLERELNE
contributions into a separate entity. The EHFRZBRKREETE o M4
group has no legal or constructive ZESWESEEHEE -
obligations to pay further contributions MABEEERETEE B K
if the fund does not hold sufficient VA £ B fl 2 12 A AR 755 12 it
assets to pay all employees the benefits R R B JF AT
relating to employee service in the o HETE B EIEH & — 2P
current and prior periods. e
For defined contribution plans, the REBE RS - 5438
group pays contributions to publicly or FRELEm D E LT EER
privately administered pension BRIRIRBRETEIVE L 3K o
insurance plans on a mandatory, —BEHHK  AEEYW
contractual or voluntary basis. The mE—SAREF ZZ
group has no further payment HERREPRERRES
obligations once the contributions have BRI - EHERER
been paid. The contributions are REE WRANATERS
recognised as employee benefit RS BB ERABR -

expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is

available.

(c) Bonus plan (c) TEALETE
The Group recognises a provision for AEBERERETHAEB
bonuses where contractually obliged or FHMEEEAK TR TR
where there is a past practice that has TEATRERREA -

created a constructive obligation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

. including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

. excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

. including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of
time).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in advance
of the grant date and therefore the grant date
fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and
grant date.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(and share premium).
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2.

168

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25

2.26

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a
Group entity has delivered products to

the customer and the risk and reward of
the goods has been transferred, the
customer has accepted the products
and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted
at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income.

2.27 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in finance
lease obligations. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the consolidated
income statement over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term.

2,

BEESHBERBE®)

2.26 WARER (&)

(a) Em#HE
ERHEEAERERED
BERRXNFTERELEM
H R N R HRE EEE
BEERKERE UKE
8 e U R TE M) U B 7] A B
MEIRBSFESR o

(b) FBWA

B AR BB EX
R 8 e ) B R R ER o A
ERREWHIBERE
AEERREEHRER
WelegE BMEZIAZ
RE A EYR 2 A5 R
REEME - WA ERR
I8 - ERFIBIA °

227 #HE
NGB R RER D B S B 3R 1)
BHEAMENEE - HIER
SHE - RIBEEHERNMNRGN
BRHEAG THEAESR)ER
HANEREESHFAERRN

AEEREETHE  BERR
e MAEBABEAZHEE
BVFrA R AN - B - W
EhEHENHAERESBEMR
g REHEEHEMR®KE &
HEWENRAFERFEREN
RAERE 2 PREEEAEL -

BRHESHNB/ABRMBEX
B HEESEFEMRE B X
Higst A\REEEAYE - MHBK
AOMB B NEERAERS
BRERPIHE UtEHSHR
HREENEEFBMME - RER
BHEMESNYE - BERK
BIREENA(ERFHEHEE!
MEZFBREEEITIE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =Z—tFF# 169



e MBRERMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s and Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, when appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risk (including foreign exchange risk,
price risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The
Group uses derivative financial instruments
to hedge certain of its risk exposures on
changes in interest rates.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in
Mainland China and Vietnam.
Most of the Group’s transactions,
assets and liabilities are dominated
in RMB or United States dollars
(“USD”). Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operations. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily through pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills
receivables, trade and bills
payables, finance lease obligations
and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries. It
manages its foreign exchange
risks by performing regular review
and monitoring of its foreign
exchange exposures and purchase
of foreign currency forward
contracts (Note 18). In 2017, the
Group has entered into the forward
foreign exchange contracts to
manage the expected depreciation
of RMB against USD.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk
(Continued)

At 31 December 2017, if RMB
had weakened/strengthened by
5.8% against USD with all other
variable held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have
been RMB191,531,000 (2016:
RMB236,539,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of the net
foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of USD-denominated
pledged bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and bills
receivables, trade and bills
payables, finance lease
obligations and borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to raw
material price risk because of the
volatility of the price of main raw
material, cotton. The management
of the Group analyze the trend of
raw material price on weekly
basis. To manage its price risk,
the Group may decide to enter
long term contracts to mitigate the
impact from raw material price
changes, and diversify the
suppliers if they expect significant
fluctuation in the future.

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

Except for pledged bank deposits
and cash at bank (Note 13), the
Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets. The Group’s
income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate
significant impact resulted from
changes in interest rates on
interest bearing assets.

(ii)

(iii)
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3.

172

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest

rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s interest-rate risk
arises from borrowings.
Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings
obtained at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate
risk. As at 31 December 2017,
approximately 41% (2016: 72%)
of the Group’s borrowings were at
fixed rates and the remaining
were at floating rates.

The Group manages certain of its
cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk by purchasing cross
currency swap contracts. Such
cross currency swaps have the
economic effect of converting
borrowings from floating rates to
fixed rates or from fixed rates to
floating rates. As at 31 December
2017 and 2016, the Group
converts its borrowings from
floating rates to fixed rates (Note
18).

As at 31 December 2017, if
interest rates on USD-
denominated borrowings had
been 1 percentage points lower/
higher with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been
RMB309,000 (2016:
RMB163,000) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of lower/higher
interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1

(b)

Credit risk

The Group has more than 3,000
customers and does not rely on the
orders from certain customers. So the
Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk. The carrying amounts of
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables
and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.

The Group generally grants credit terms
of less than 90 days to its customers in
Mainland China and 120 days to its
customers in other countries. The
Group’s management performs periodic
credit evaluations/reviews of its
customers and ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. The Group places
deposits with major banks in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, and limits the
amount of credit exposure to any
financial institution.

To lower the Group’s exposure to credit
risk, the Group may request 5%
deposits from certain of their customers
before delivery of goods. In addition,
100% (2016: 100%) of the bills
receivable of the Group are endorsed
by banks as at 31 December 2017.

The Group believes that adequate
provision for doubtful debts has been
made in the consolidated financial
statements. To the extent that
information is available, management
has properly reflected revised estimates
of expected future cash flows in their
impairment assessments.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BERRER®)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MBEABEE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) REBELEMR
Prudent liquidity risk management AEBEHBREENREE
includes maintaining sufficient cash and CRBRERE BBEER
the availability of funding through an WAREEMERIZTZH
adequate amount of committed credit ReRABHANESR - K
facilities. The Group aims to maintain SEEEEBRHERFTWRE
flexibility in funding by keeping EfE UREEECE
committed credit lines available. Details EEM e BRAEBE MR
of the undrawn borrowing facilities BHEERMEFBRES
available to the Group are disclosed in B TS R M sE 17 R AR ER o
Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
The table below analyses the Group’s THREITEENEHE
financial liabilities into relevant maturity 2R N LE:- & =i
groupings based on the remaining HAWRBEHEERES
period at the balance sheet date to the A2 EA B & T &8 HA R 1T
contractual maturity date. The amounts DT RNBEBENEHER
disclosed in the table are the BRMARBEENREME -
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Between Between
Less than 1and 2and  More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
PR-F —FEEME WMEERE  BENE
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
At 31 December 2017 R=2-t#
+=f=+-8
Borrowings & 2,564,356 905116 2,069,765 33782
Interest payable on borrowings £ EERFIE 172,439 93,626 71,652 380
Derivative financial instruments {74428 T A 112,996 - - -
Trade and bills payables EREHREENE 2,961,729 = - -
Accruals and other payables  BIREM K EMENER 337,682 = - -
Finance lease obligations MEMEAE 5,886 1,582 46 -
6,155,088 1,000,324 2,141,463 34,162
At 31 December 2016 R=B-%x§
t=A=t-H
Borrowings & 3,549,669 860,717 1,498,080 210,885
Interest payable on borrowings £ EERTFIE 187,081 112,575 142,082 10,987
Derivative financial instruments {74 4@ T A 32,275 = = =
Trade and bills payables ENESREETR 3,044,295 = = =
Accruals and other payables BREAREMENRT 405,666 - - -
7,218,986 973,292 1,640,162 221,872
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.

(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders or issue
new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet)
less pledged bank deposits and cash and
total equivalents. Total capital is calculated

R ERE®)

3.2

ELRBERE

AEEERESNBBRRARER
SERELENEN  BBRRE
RE R R E AR A AR
Mz - WHAEFRIERE R GBI

HEFABABRIRMN B SEEX
BATHAAD ©

HERNHEMAR—5K - AEEF
AEEARBLLRERERN - It
ENBEFERAERERE
8o gEFEASEMRITER
LEEBR(BREGRaEERAR
KRFIRZI B MIEREEE )
BRERBECEETE - BEAX
BRENGREEEBERNIITZ
[4RRR R 2 | FOBR FEIE B

as ‘total equity’ as shown in the consolidated MEBEFETE -
balance sheet less non-controlling interests
plus net debt.
The net gearing ratios at 31 December 2017 R-E—+FR_FT—RF+=
and 2016 are as follows: A=+—HzFEEBELEN
T
2017 2016
—E—tfF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT
Total borrowings (Note 17) BEBRE (Wit 17) 5,549,598 6,109,294
Finance lease obligations (Note 19)&l& 8 & #&4E (K 19) 7,210 =
Less: pledged bank deposits B BEERIBIRITER R
and cash and cash HekBEeSEYD
equivalents (Note 13) (K1t 13) (1,554,967)  (1,994,409)
Net debt BEFHE 4,001,841 4,114,885
Total equity excluding AR R - FIBRIEIE S
non-controlling interests %S 5,910,127 5,148,721
Total capital BEARBE 9,911,968 9,263,606
Net gearing ratio FEEAGBLE 40% 44%

The decrease in the gearing ratio during 2017
resulted primarily from the decrease of
borrowings following the repayment of bond
in advance.

—ELFEMEERBLXRD
IEZMRREEEESMSER
A FTER -
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3.

176

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial
instruments carried at fair value, by valuation
method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Group held interest rate swap contracts,
forward foreign exchange contracts, cross
currency swap contracts and cotton future
contracts. These forward foreign exchange
contracts have been fair valued using forward
exchange rates that are quoted in an active
market. Interest rate swap is fair valued using
forward interest rates extracted from
observable yield curves. Cross currency
swaps are fair valued using forward
exchange rates that are quoted in an active
market and interest rates extracted from
observable yield curves. The cotton future
contracts are fair valued using forward cotton
price that are quoted in an active market. The
effects of discounting are generally
insignificant for Level 2 derivatives.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

3. MEEREE®)

3.3 2QDFEMGR#E)
TREFWNAEBR _T—LFR
TE-RE+T-A=1+—BEA
FEFEZEERBE:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-% o £ @t
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT AREFT AREFT

At 31 December 2017 —E-tF
+=ZA=1+-H
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments {744 @A = 134,350 = 134,350
Liabilities 8%
Derivative financial instruments #7744 @ T & = 112,996 = 112,996
At 31 December 2016 RIE-RE
T=EETr=E
Assets 5E
Derivative financial instruments 7448 T & = 317,882 = 317,882
Liabilities 8
Derivative financial instruments #7444 T A - 32,275 - 32,275

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

RBEEERMS EXFNERT
B (g IMTET R) A FET
FERMMERMEE - ZE5HER
1l 28 A] RE {5 B AT B ER T IS U
WEAERDKBEEBAE G
e A TAAFENEE
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178

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

4.1 Estimated useful lives and residual values
of property, plant and equipment
The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and residual values
and consequently the related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change as a
result of technical innovations and
competitors action in response to sever
industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, or it
will write-off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives,
and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic reviews
could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore changes in
depreciation expenses in the future periods.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2

4.3

4.4

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a
result of technical innovations, changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses these estimates at
each balance sheet date.

Impairment of trade, bills and other
receivables

The Group’s management determines the
provision for impairment of trade, bills and
other receivables based on an assessment of
the recoverability of the receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of
its customers and other debtors and current
market conditions, and requires the use of
judgements and estimates. Provisions are
applied to trade, bills and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be
collectible and require the use of estimates.
Management reassesses the provision at
each balance sheet date. Where the
expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact carrying
value of trade, bills and other receivable and
impairment charge in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes and deferred income tax
The Group is subject to income taxes in
several jurisdictions. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.
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4.

180

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.4 Income taxes and deferred income tax
(Continued)
Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised.
When the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in
which such estimates have been changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been
identified as the Committee of Executive Directors
of the Company. Operating segments are reported
in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The Committee of Executive Directors reviews the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management
has determined the operating segments based on
these reports.

The Committee of Executive Directors considers
the business from both a product and geographical
perspective. From a product perspective,
management assesses the performance from sales
of yarns, grey fabrics and garment fabrics as well
as garments. The operations are further evaluated
on a geographic basis including Mainland China
(and Hong Kong), Vietnam, Macao, Cambodia and
Nicaragua.

The Committee of Executive Directors assesses

the performance of the operating segments based
on revenue and operating profit.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31

December 2017 is as follows:

5. DEER®)

HE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

ZHWARDT :

Year ended 31 December 2017

HECR-tETZA=T-ALEE

Yams Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Total
b ERRERE by E2
Mainland Mainland
China and China and Mainland
HongKong  Vietnam Macao HongKong Cambodia  Vietnam  Nicaragua China  Vietnam
HEIRE hERE
k&R il A & AR 88 WAL hEAE it
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT ARBTR ARBTT AREFT ARETL AREFL ARETR AREFT ARETZ
Total revenue aA 11,864,201 7124553 12469262 480,394 229471 324324 93,257 597,652 20809 33,213,013
Inter-segment revenue AERRA (364,783)  (6,790,829)  (9,722,334) - - - - - (28,692) (16,906,638)
Revenue (from external WA (RESMFZF)
customers) 11499508 333724 2746928 480394 229471 324324 93,257 597,652 1,17 16,306,375
Segment results HEEE 704008 440958 236,148 27932 (36,252) (8,692) 6,746 697 (14,778) 1,356,767
Unallocated expenses FOEEE 94,410
Operating profit BeRi 1451477
Finance income BMA 9,162
Finance costs HHER (85,697)
Share of profits less losses of 5B ENEZ
investments accounted for ~ REHETIFEE
using the equity method (12,820)
Income tax expense FriEhRR (187,097)
Profit for the year EEE 1,174,725
Depreciation and amortisation 478 Ji & (289421)  (330,218) (54) (26038  (12218)  (5484) (587)  (O161)  (8772)  (681,959)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31

December 2016 is as follows:

5 AEER )
T AEt-ASt-ALEE

HE—

ZHPERMT

Year ended 31 December 2016
HESE-AFt-A=T-HLEE

Yams Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Total
Y& BHREE i it
Mainland Mainland
China and China and Mainland
Hong Kong Vietnam Macao  HongKong ~ Cambodia Vietnam China Vietnam
HEIARE HEIARE
& e .43 k&% REF #E  REAE iz
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETR  AEETr  ARETL  AREFT  ARETT  ARBTr  ARETL  ARETT  ARETR
Total revenue ELON 10,702,807 5754305 10,903,975 338,403 76,037 - 608,234 - 28,383,761
Inter-segment revenue AERRA (386,761)  (5,564,604)  (8,784,659) - - - = - (14736,024)
Revenue (from external WA (RENIEF)
customers) 10,316,046 189,701 2,119,316 338,403 76,037 - 608,234 - 13647737
Segment results PEEE 982,782 354,307 549,931 30979 (7.217) (9,110) 41,606 (1,584) 1,941,634
Unallocated expenses AAEEH (52,087)
Operating profit Y] 1,889,547
Finance income BHMA 9752
Finance costs §BER (#13,167)
Share of profts less losses of ~ HELIEREAEZ
investments accounted for  FEHIERIEER
using the equity method 10,676
Income tax expense FERER (295,735)
Profit for the year FEER 1,201,073
Depreciaton and amortisatin 7 % (3449 (297331 102 (8 (2289) 56 (1220) - ()
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. pEER@®@
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 RZE—+tF+_A=+—HZHEE&
December 2017 are as follows: ERaENT
As at 31 December 2017
RZB-tE+ZA=1-8
Yams Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Total
b EARMERE by E2
Mainland Mainland
China and China and Mainland
HongKong  Vietnam Macao  Sub-otal HongKong Cambodia ~ Vietnam  Nicaragua China  Vietnam
PE AR REAE
RE# il A gt & A% 88 BIAN  HEAE il
RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT ARETR ARBTL AREFT ARETL ARETT ARETR ARBFT ARETT ARETZ
Total segment assets A B & 7972965 3910724 495216 12378905 926,361 15363 607633 157,145 463002 399,216 15247625
Unallocated assets  KAEEE 286,806
Totalassetsof ~ AEMERE
the Group 15,534,431
Totalsegment ~ SEHEK
liabilities (5712,077)  (446,224)  (59,609)  (403504)  (12922)  (69,802)  (297,927) (7,002,065)
Unallocated liabiites A& & (2,556,653)
Total liabiliies of ~ &AL
the Group (9,558,718)
Capital expenditure &M% 421,333 82,819 - 510152 7,601 27,203 55,251 - 70,281 53,841 124329

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31

December 2016 are as follows:

R=B—AFT-A=t+—R25HA
ERAENT :

Year ended 31 December 2016
R=E-AFT-A=1-R

Yams Garment fabrics and Garments Grey fabrics Total
b AR RRE i a%
Mainland Mainland
China and China and Mainland
Hong Kong Vietnam Macao Subtotal  HongKong ~ Cambodia Vietnam China Vietnam
RERRE HEIRR
e e bl It k&R RiEE dE PEAE il

RMBO0  RMBO0  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00O RMB'000 RMB'000

NEETT  AEETT  AEEFT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

Total segment assets 2 EAEE 8845466 3992467 49211 13,257,144 362,774 52131 U417 440,766 358225 14795457

Unallocated assets ~ RABEE 438,892
Total assets of AEMEEE

the Group 15,284,349

Total segment ARASE

liabilities (6,341,931)  (221,857) (5602)  (129:352) (44328)  (287,525)  (7,030,59)

Unallocated liabilies - #A#E & (3,062,310)
Total liabilities of ~ AEMARRE

the Group (10,092,905)

Capital expenditure  E7B % 971,502 147,526 37 1,119,065 140,708 20297 297,558 5,500 331678 1923806
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6. FREEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 6. XKAEEITH K Tib{FEHARE
RIGHTS
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARET T
Freehold land KAERE L 137,494 24,620
Land use rights o P R 725,589 670,564
863,083 695,184
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARSF
Opening net book amount FHREFE 695,184 551,618
Additions NE 41,043 169,664
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BEKT B A A (et 32)
(Note 32) 189,586 -
Amortisation (Note 24) B (5 24) (16,212) (16,690)
Disposals (Note 31) & (FaE31) (16,580) (9,408)

Change of subsidiaries to

REFEHRE i B A )

associates with loss of control AR R (21,456) -
Currency translation differences ~ &EH5[E ¥ =58 (8,482) -
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 863,083 695,184
Cost BN 936,526 752,836
Accumulated amortisation R (73,443) (57,652)
Net book amount BREDFE 863,083 695,184

The Group’s freehold land cost is analysed as

REBZ KAERTHIMBOHTOT

follows:

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FoT ARETFT

Freehold land KAERELH
— In Cambodia — RRIHE 119,613 =
— In Uruguay — RBEHN=E 10,073 10,073
— In Nicaragua — e piHL I 7,808 =
— In Turkey —REEHE - 14,547
137,494 24,620
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FREEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 6.

RIGHTS (Continued)

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments, and their net
book value are analysed as follows:

KAERLIHR L ERAE
(#)

AR L RS IR R
BERE - HEEFEINMOT :

2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTFT

Leases of between 45 to 50 years 45Z&50F/AEE
— In Mainland China — AR B R RE 385,203 356,462
— In Vietnam — R 336,780 310,461
— In Cambodia — RRIEE 3,606 3,641
725,589 670,564

As at 31 December 2017, land use rights with a net
book amount of RMB26,687,000 (2016:
RMB25,993,000) was pledged as collateral for the
Group’s bank borrowings (Note 17).

Amortisation was included in cost of sales.

RZE—+FE+-A=+—01  EEF
B A R#26,687,0007T( —F — /4 :
AR # 25,993,000 0) i FAES
EIREARE B IRTTEERIRIT S (M
17) ©

BMIHEF AHERAR -
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7.

186

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. YE- BERRE
Furniture
Machinery and Motor  Construction-
Buildings and equipment fixtures vehicles in-progress Total
BT  HERRE GARRE RE BRIR @it
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ABBFT  AREFL  ARETL ARETZ AEBFT  AREFR
At1 January 2016 R=F-~E-F-R
Cost or valuation A bE 1,517,544 3,897,988 48,928 35,388 1,084,780 6,584,628
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (132316)  (1413410)  (23308)  (17,750) - (1586,784)
Net book amount SHFE 1,385,228 2484578 25,620 17,638 1,084,780 4,997,844
Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE-1E
TZASt-BLFE
Opening net book amount ENERFE 1,385,228 2484578 25,620 17,638 1,084,780 4,997,844
Additions AE 48,976 23,008 9517 6,184 1,666,397 1,754,142
Revaluation EHfAE 45,883 - - - - 45,883
Transfers gz 366,439 1,502,407 5,226 78 (1,874,150) -
Disposals (Note 31) e (B 31) () (34,354) (192) (175) - (3549
Depreciation charges (Note 24) X (i) (87,067) (432,983) (6.281) (4925) - (531.256)
Closing net book amount EXREEE 1,758,686 3,542,656 33,950 18,800 grr02r 6231119
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE
TZR=1-H
Cost or valuafion RAF[HE 1977,117 5,381,795 63,132 37430 877021 8337101
Accumulated depreciaton 2iiE Q19031) (1839139 (9182) (18630 - 210598)
Net book amount BEFE 1,758,686 3,542,656 33,950 18,800 877021 623,119
Year ended 31 December 2017  HZE=F-tF
TZR=1-HLEE
Opening net ook amount ENREFE 1,758,686 3,542,656 33,950 18,800 877001 6,231,119
Additions AE 6,501 84,239 4910 4742 582,834 683,286
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 32)  WERHIBARI (H:232) 416,265 120,233 9712 2,04 9,863 558,174
Transfers &z 397,382 551,856 2,543 4763 (956,544) -
Disposals (Nofs 31) e (i 31) (7.809) (15.763) (130) (402) (14980)  (39.084)
Deprecition charges (Note 24)  FrEZH(KE2) (221300 (9829)  (810)  (5979) - (B674T)
Loss of control of subsidiaries REMELAFGIE - (10,710) - - (80grr)  (91,687)
Currency translation differences EREREE (13530) (2,106) (250) (53) - (15,939)
Closing net book amount EXEHFE 2,435,365 3,740,576 43,045 23913 #7223 6,660,122
At 31 December 2017 R=B-t§
tZp=1-A
Cost or valuation A bE 2,776,499 6,070,051 79,281 45,908 417223 9,388,962
Accumulated depreciaton 2itiE (41134) (2329475 (3626)  (21,99) - (2728840)
Net book amount BEFE 2,435,365 3,740,576 43,045 23,913 417223 6,660,122
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. V¥ BEERRZRE®
(Continued)
The analysis of the cost or valuation of the above FEBE ARG ES T
assets is as follows:
Machinery Furniture
and and Motor ~ Construction-
Buildings equipment fixtures vehicles  in-progress Total
BT RERRE  GHREE byt FRIE &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFL AREFR
At 31 December 2017 R-E-t5+ZR=1-H
At cost R 9782 6070051 79,281 45,908 M1 T4N,5
Atvaluation — 31 December 2017 BEE—R-E-tEt-A=t-B 19T - - - - 191,117
2,776,499 6,070,051 79,281 45908 417,223 9,388,962
At 31 December 2016 W=B-RETZAZ1-B
At cost TR - 5,381,795 63,132 37430 877,021 6,359,384
Atvaluation — 31 December 2016 REE-R-F-"ETZA=t-B 197717 - - - -
1911111 538179 63,132 37430 877,021 8,337,101

Buildings with net book amount of
RMB1,758,686,000 at 31 December 2016 were
stated at fair value, based on a valuation performed
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent firm of qualified valuers. The Group
did not revaluate such buildings as at 31 December
2017, because the net book amount of
RMB1,644,636,000 as at 31 December 2017 for
such buildings did not differ materially from which
would be determined using fair value.

The valuation performed as at 31 December 2016
was determined using the depreciated replacement
costs approach and was within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. Current gross reproduction costs
of the buildings are adjusted for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of
obsolescence and optimization.

The revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred
income tax liabilities, was regarded as other
comprehensive income and credited to revaluation
reserve in equity (Note 16).

R-ZE—ARE+-A=1t—BEm%E
B A R 1,758,686,000 7T 2 1 F iR &
By AERGEMBERITERARME
TZGE  BAFEYE - AEBEE
EGEZERFER _ZE—+E+-A8
=+—B2EE EAAXSEFN ==
—+E+ZA=+—BZEEEEAR
#1,644,636,000 T2 {F A A FEEE
ZBEERTK -

RZB—RE+TZA=+—HET2MH
BENRAFEEERREEE - LEA
RHEBRE=RA - BFHAHER
EHRACHERECRAERERE
{ERER A EL R -

ERBSNRERNEECHERAE
EREMEEKEY DT ABEANE
fhfE R (FIRE16) °
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188

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

If buildings were stated on historical cost basis, the
amounts would be as follows:

ME - BMERRKE®

W8 FIARE L AES AR - @5 K0
™

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AEEF T

Cost [B#N 2,755,946 1,957,163
Accumulated depreciation REITE (432,271) (317,085)
Net book amount SR SHE 2,323,675 1,640,078

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
depreciation of RMB624,451,000 (2016:
RMB489,521,000) was included in cost of sales,
RMB4,928,000 (2016: RMB4,229,000) was
included in selling and distribution costs and
RMB36,368,000 (2016: RMB37,506,000) was
included in general and administrative expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no
finance cost was capitalised as part of property,
plant and equipment (2016: finance cost of
RMB18,698,000 was capitalised at a rate of 4.33%
per annum) (Note 26).

As at 31 December 2017, property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB180,915,000
(2016: RMB116,548,000) were pledged as
collateral of the Group’s bank borrowings (Note
17).

Lease rental expense of RMB35,119,000 (2016:
RMB42,278,000), relating to the lease of buildings
and machinery, was included in cost of sales (Note
24).

The Group leases various machinery and
equipment under finance lease agreement. The
original lease terms are 3 to 4 years, and
ownership of assets lie within the Group (Note 19).

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A

REBEE-_ZT—+tF+_A=1+—HItF
- AR¥624,451,000T( =& —
£ AR 1489,521,0007T) WiTER
FTASHERA - ARK4,928,0007T(=
T—NF: AR#4,2290007T) 8947
ECTAHERSHEAIREARK
36,368,000 tL( — T —/NF: ARK
37,506,000 7T) M ITEE T A — R K& TT
KX o

REE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HLHF
B BEFBER(ZZ—XNF : UK
2 A K % 18,698,000 JT B 1% &F F &
433% ERNE)ERNELEME  BEK
Rz —3 5 (KisE26) °

RZE—tF+=-A=+—H8 9%
R M ek 4 AR % 180,915,000t (—
T —RNF: AR¥116,548,0007T) E
R AAEERITEENIRT S (M
17) »

FRMAEEFR#ENASATARE
35119,000t( — T —NF: ARK
42,278,000 7T ) 2 5T A 85 & ok A (Bt 5%
24) o

AEBERBEREHEHHEMBR TR
BEhRE e  REHEHR=2MF &
ERBEERNASE (HE19) -



fr e MR RME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—tHF+-_A=1t—BILFE

8. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 8. LUIRERZEIERNIKRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
The amounts recognised in the consolidated NTRERGEEERBERERNE
balance sheet are as follows: L
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT
Associates RN 179,583 87,761
Joint ventures BEE 3,206 11,588
At 31 December N+=—H=+—H 182,789 99,349
The amounts recognised in the consolidated NTRENGE KEXERN SR
income statement are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT
Associates N T (5,983) 12,672
Joint ventures aRhE (6,837) (1,996)
For the year ended 31 December #HZ+—-A=+—HIFE (12,820) 10,676
Investments in associates REEERRNRE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTFT
Share of net assets of DEIE LT E R A
unlisted associates BEFE 179,392 87,570
Goodwill RS 191 191
179,583 87,761
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190

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)
Movements of shares of net assets attributable to
the Group are as follows:

DEREIRNKRE &)

REEE A RNRE (&)
AEBRGEEEFEZFHNT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AREFT
Opening amount FHEE 87,570 63,483
Change of subsidiaries to R 2 2= 42 il e R BT JB8 12 )
associates with loss of control RN A 75,392 -
Acquisition i 26,855 19,971
Share of (losses)/profits based PEREEERAEZ
on equity held (B18),#F (5,983) 12,672
Step-acquisition from associates to HEE AR EH BRG] Z
subsidiaries 73 B B8 Uk B (14,631) -
Share of other comprehensive DELEEERTE 2
income/(losses) based on Hihz2ml A (EE)
equity held 10,189 (8,556)
Closing amount FREH 179,392 87,570

On 30 June 2017, Hongyan Vietnam Holdings
Limited, wholly owned by the Group by 30 June
2017, issued its shares to the Group and a third
party Hualida Vietnam Investment Development
Co., Ltd., respectively. After the issuance of the
shares in 2017, the Group owned 45% interest of
Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited and Hualida
Vietnam Investment Development Co., Ltd. owned
55% interest of Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited,
respectively. Accordingly, Hongyan Vietnam
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries became the
associates of the Group after the issuance of
shares in 2017. The Group’s shares of the fair
value of net assets of Hongyan Vietnam Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries on aggregation were
RMB75,392,000 on 30 June 2017.

On 30 September 2017, the Group acquired 11%
interest of Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd. for a
consideration of RMB26,855,000. As a result of the
acquisition, the Group controlled 48% interest of
Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd..

On 31 December 2017, the Group acquired the
rest 51% interest of Hang Chi Enterprise Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries, a group engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of textile and fabrics
products in China and Hong Kong, for a
consideration of RMB1. As a result of the
acquisition, the Group fully owned Hang Chi
Enterprise Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries.
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RZZBE—+HFRNA=TH  BEMEE
BRERRR(ZZE—tFXA=THA
HASEZEHR) BTERND FTAE
BEE=TENZREREERARA
A o BITRMIR - AEEEA SR
ERER R AIH45% R w - 12 F &
HEREEREGRARERRRESEE
BB IR A R 55% 2 o FE L - IR HE
BEEREGRARREMBARNR_-Z
—EFRMDETE  KAREEZHE
NA) - AREA KD EBEBEZERE
BARKEMBARN-E—LFA
ZtRZEEFEZATFERARE
75,392,000 7T °

RZZ—+FNA=+H  KEBEWE
FBRMHBIEREBRNBELERARZ
11% Kz - R{E A AR 26,855,000
T o W BB 1% - A B F A AT A
EBLHBAER AT 2 48% S ©

RZE—+F+A=+—H £&H
WHBELEXERARREMBARZ
BT 51% s - ZARFARPEEE
BRERERHEES B MNEAMER
RESARE1T - KBR  AEEZ
ERABELEBRRAARENBER
Al e
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8. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

Set out below are the associates of the Group as
at 31 December 2017 which, in the opinion of the
directors, are not material to the Group. The
associates as listed below have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held

8.

DEREIIRNKRE &)

REBERATNRE (B)

UNTAR-_ZE—+tF+_A=+—8 "
BERAHAEBRNTEE 2 AL
BAwE o NYBE AR ZRAEZEHLE B
ARAERK - WHASEBEZSS Ak
B S AMBERINAEEE L E D, -

directly by the Group; the country of incorporation
or registration is also their principal place of

business.

Nature of investments in associates as at 31

RZBE—+F+ZA=+—H REE

December 2017: NARENMLE -
Place and date of Particulars of
incorporation and issued share
Name of associate form of legal entity Principal activities capital  Interest held
MR K B
BENREN UREEERER TEXEH BRITRAFHE PR
Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd. ~ Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and salesof ~ RMB116,375,000 48%
11 September 2002, top-grade textile knitting
limited liability company products and garments
BROSEREESBFER  PEAEEE —TT-F SERHERRMBERR AR
A7 NA+—R BEREARR KX 116,375,000 7
Hongyan Vietnam Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in RMB166,167,000 45%
Limited 2 July 2015, British Virgin Islands
limited liability company
BESEERERAR ABERMESE —T-0F REBRZHSETRE AR
tAZH BREMERHA 2R 166,167,000 7
Subsidiaries of Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited
BREGEERERARZMEAT
— Lanyan Denim Garment Hong Kong, 2 June 2015, Investment holding in HKD100 45%
Vietnam Holdings Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
BRFRESEERERAR &% —2-RF AZH- REBETREZR 100787
BREELT
— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments ~ Vietnam, January 2016, Manufacturing of garments  VND39,870,000,000 45%
Limited Company limited liability company in Viethnam
ERE(WH) REEEERLAR #iE —T—7~5-AR- WA BER K 39,870,000,000
BEREAAH BHE
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8. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 8.

USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interests in the associates.

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.,
Hongyan Vietnam Holdings Limited and it’s
subsidiaries, and Hang Chi Enterprise Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries, which are accounted for using
the equity method.

Summarised balance sheet

DEREIRNKRE &)

REEEARNRE (&)
PEEAREEAF AR S AR ESAR
AR AIE -

TX#I RN BERERHERAER
AR BEUEERAR AR REME
REMEELERR AR RENERA]
(ARESEAR) W EREE

EERERRE

Nantong Textile

Hongyan Vietham

Hang Chi Enterprise

Group Co,, Ltd. Holdings Limited Co., Ltd. Total
BRGAEREEGAS
ARAH EREEEERERAT BRt¥ERAT @

017 2016 017
“E-tE ZRNF CE-iE
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ABRTR ABRFR ARETR

o6 007 16 017 2016
SRNE CE-LF CRAF CR-tF CE0E
RMB000
ARRTR ARRTRL ARBTR AEETT ARRTR

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

Current ik |

Cash and cash equivalents H£ IR ZEY 39,023 26633 8,487 = - 5383 48410 80466
Other current assets A8 AE

(excluding cash) (TafEs) WA 22240 46710 - - 34561 433881 506,801
Total current assets FHEELE 427004 298873 55197 - - T8I 482291 671267
Financial iabilties ERAR(TEE

(excluding trade BHENTE)

payables) (419,600)  (245,000) - = - (111105)  (419,600)  (356,105)
Other current liabilies ~ ZtiREI&E (B

(including trade payables) EZEMFE) (102185  (142633)  (33,690) - - (561981)  (135,875)  (104614)
Total curtent iabilles ~ FEI&{E%E (521,785)  (387,633) (33,690 - - (673086)  (555475) (1,060,719)
Non-current E ik

Assets BE 493520 450209 138,994 - - T3 632514 788022
Liabilties 8 (175,564) ~ (167,503) - - - (10833) (175,564)  (178336)
Net assets BEFE 23265 19403 160,501 = - 3198 383766 226234
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8. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 8.

DRRESRNIRE (4)
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued) REEQARNRE (&)
Summarised statement of comprehensive 2EHKNERFEE
income
Nantong Textile Hongyan Vietham Hang Chi Enterprise
Group Co., Ltd. Holdings Limited Co,, Ltd. Total
HENALRERGAR
BRAE BEAHERERLT EELEARAT a3t
217 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF BN ZE-tF ZBR-RF CE-tF ZB-RF CE-tF 2B
RVB000  RMB’000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RWB'000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB000
ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Revenue 0N 848,254 777583 39,243 - 617976 380583 1505473 1,158,166
Depreciation and MERES
amortisation (10322)  (50,362) (2,465 - (25493)  (15561)  (98,280)  (65,923)
Interest income HISHA 2510 578 8 - 809 654 33 1232
Interest expense MERZ (15129)  (25,013) - - (15474 (10,009)  (30,603)  (35,022)
Profiti(loss) before ~ FrSBiATER|/
income tax (F#) 35,105 30,107 (7,037) - (22,862) 8,905 5,206 39,012
Income tax expense FERRAx (5,876)  (7,647) - = (27) @ (6147 (7651)
Profitiloss) for the year  EE %7/ (5i8) 29209 2460 (7.09) - (133 8901 (941) 31,361
Other comprehensive ~ E42EUA/
incomel(losses) ) - - - - 0793 (17461) 20793 (17.461)
Total comprehensive ~ 2EUA /(%)
income/(losses) a5 2204 22460 (7,037) - (2340)  (8560) 19,852 13,900
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 8. LIREZZIRNERE @)
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued) REEQRNRE (&)
Reconciliation of summarised financial BEERBEELR
information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial RAEEFEBE NN ZREEY]
information presented to the carrying amount of EVHERBEHRE -
Group’s interests in the associates.
Nantong Textile Hongyan Vietnam Hang Chi Enterprise
Group Co., Ltd. Holdings Limited Co,, Ltd. Total
BEGAEREEGER
BRAF BREEERERAR  ERLEERAF @it
Summarised financial BEEREE
information 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-t+F ZB-XE “E-t+F -B-XE “E-tF -B-XE “E-tF -B-Af
RMB000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000
AEBTL ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT AREFZ
Closing net assets HREERE 223,265 194,036 160,501 - - 32198 383,766 226234
Interests in associates  FHE 4D AER
(2017: 48%, 45%, nil. ~ (ZE—+E:
2016: 37%, nil, 49%) ~ 48%* 45% & :
2
37% & - 49%) 107,167 71,793 12,225 - - 15777 179,392 87,570
Goodwil [ 191 191 - - - - 191 191
Carrying value BEE 107,358 71,984 12,225 - - 15777 179,583 87,761
Investments in joint ventures REELENRE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT  ARETT
Opening amount H¥&E 11,588 =
Newly set-up Eoi v - 3,004
Acquisition g - 10,580
Share of losses DEEE (6,837) (1,996)
Impairment of investment BERE (2,531) -
Share of other comprehensive DR AERTE L
income based on equity held HihZ2mEIA 986 -
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 3,206 11,588

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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8. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

The joint ventures listed below have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which is held

8.

LIEsSEDI RN E ()

REELENRE (F)
TXFINGEEENBRAERSL R
I AAKEEERS °

directly by the Group.

Nature of investments in joint ventures as

December 2017.

at 31 RZBE—+F+_A=+—HBEGZED®

ENREMNE -

Name of joint

Place and date of
incorporation and

Particulars of
issued share

venture form of legal entity Principal activities capital Interest held
MR ER A
REDEAR R EEERER TEXH BRITREFE igsy
Texhong Tan Vietnam, 30 June 2016, Cargo transportation VND 50%
Cang Logistics limited liability company by land and sea; other 20,000,000,000
Joint Stock Company assistant services;cargo
landing-over, storage,
management consulting
RIFTAMRRD AR Mg Z2—1F BEEMES  HiEE) 20,000,000,000
AA=TR - AREALRAE LR EMEE - f#iE - BEE
BT
Shelink Limited Hong Kong, 4 April 2005, Engaged in manufacturing ~ HKD55,692,000 50%
limited liability company and sale of knitted, dyed
and finished top-grade
textile products
KEBEBRAF BE “TTRENANA - HFHERHEHE 55,692,000 1
BREARA FERIEREA NS
Subsidiary of Shelink limited
KHERDANHERR
— Foshan Zhao Yue Foshan, Mainland China, Engaged in manufacturing ~ HKD80,000,000 50%
Textile Co., Ltd. 17 October 2005, and sale of knitted, dyed
limited liability company and finished top-grade
textile products
— RIS BAERAR PRIAMERL - —TTRF  KFHEREEHE 80,000,000 % 7T

TATLR AREMERA FERRHEHENK

Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock Company,
Shelink Limited and Foshan Zhao Yue Textile Co.,
Ltd. are private companies and there are no quoted
market price available for their shares.

Commitments and contingent liabilities in
respect of joint ventures

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures.
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8. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
Investments in joint ventures (Continued)
Summarised financial information for joint

ventures

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint
Stock Company, Shelink Limited and it's subsidiary,
which are accounted for using the equity method.

8.

DEREIRNKRE &)

REELENRE (F)
BELENIBERME

TXEFIRILFED RN AR - Ik
BRATRENMB A F CARREALR)
M EERBR -

Summarised balance sheet BEABEREE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Current TRE
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR EEY 4,596 2,918
Other current assets (excluding EmnghEE (TeERe)
cash) 43,621 50,071
Total current assets mEEERE 48,217 52,989
Financial liabilities (excluding cREETEEESHENKE)
trade payables) (25,500) (26,589)
Other current liabilities (including ~ H#)REH & & (BIEE 5 ER
trade payables) FKRIE) (19,301) (11,576)
Total current liabilities REAERE (44,801) (38,165)
Non-current FFE
Assets BE 8,058 8,352
Liabilities afE - -
Total non-current assets EmEEELRE 8,058 8,352
Net assets EEFE 11,474 23,176
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information

8. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 8. UEZRZEIERNKRE®)
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
Investments in joint ventures (Continued) REELENRE (&)
Summarised statement of comprehensive EHREREE
income
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT ARBFT
Revenue WA 42,669 7,358
Depreciation and amortisation I K 5 (4,681) (357)
Interest expense BRI (1,240) (107)
Interest income FLEWA 285 90
Loss before income tax FRi8BAIER (13,574) (3,992)
Income tax expense FTi8 iR (102) -
Loss for the year FEER (13,676) (3,992)
Other comprehensive income Hih2mEUWA 1,972 -
Total comprehensive Loss 2HEEAE (11,704) (3,992)
Reconciliation of summarised financial BEERBERR

E2JMBERNBERAEENSED
PR M AR E R HR

Reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented to the carrying amount of
Group’s interests in the joint ventures

Summarised financial information MBEERNRE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Closing net assets HIREEFE 11,474 23,176
Interests in the joint ventures (50%) WM& & %M (50%) 5,737 11,588
Impairment of investment HERE (2,531) -
Carrying value BRMEE 3,206 11,588
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 9. RERESINEMIA
CATEGORY

Assets at fair
value through

the profit Loans and
and loss receivables Total

BOFERA EXR
BRHOEE PEWFRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT ARETFT

31 December 2017 —E—+tF
+t=A=+-8

Assets as per balance sheet EE&EXFTFIEE

Trade and bills receivables ~ EWE 5 R EFHE

(Note 11) (HizE11) - 1,630,144 1,630,144
Derivative financial PTEeMITA

instruments (Note 18) (K5t 18) 134,350 - 134,350
Deposits and other e REAM EHER

receivables (Note 12) (Kfat12) - 15,603 15,603

Pledged bank deposits and ~ EEBRITEHREE K
cash and cash equivalents ~ BEE&ZEY

(Note 13) (Hat13) - 1,554,967 1,554,967
Total BET 134,350 3,200,714 3,335,064
Other
Liabilities at financial
fair value liabilities at
through the amortised
profit and loss cost Total
REHEMA
BRAFETA SRz it
BENEE cRBE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT AREFT

31 December 2017 —E—tF
+=A=+-8

Liabilities as per balance sheet EE & ERFTHIEE
Borrowings (Note 17) B8 (HE17) - 5,549,598 5,549,598
Derivative financial TESBRT A (K 18)

instruments (Note 18) 112,996 - 112,996
Trade and bills payables B8 5 REEFIE

(Note 21) (KizE21) - 2,961,729 2,961,729
Accruals and other payables  TE1Z% F J H i FEf

excluding deposits and ER (T aEre &

statutory liabilities (Note 22) :F & &) (Af:t22) - 337,682 337,682
Finance lease obligations REREAE

(Note 19) (Ktz19) - 7,210 7,210
Total HET 112,996 8,856,219 8,969,215
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9.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 9.
CATEGORY (Continued)

Assets at fair
value through

the profit Loans and
and loss receivables Total
BRTERA EXR
BaErEE FEWRIE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT AREFT
31 December 2016 —E-X"E+=A=t—H
Assets as per balance sheet EE&EXFFIEE
Trade and bills receivables ~ EUE 5 R EEFIE
(Note 11) (Kiax11) - 1,589,990 1,589,990
Derivative financial TESRMIA
instruments (Note 18) (Kt 18) 317,882 - 317,882
Deposits and other Ze REMEMRR
receivables (Note 12) (BizF12) - 6,592 6,592
Pledged bank deposits and 2 HEFHRITEANIBLE R
cash and cash ReSEM (KT 13)
equivalents (Note 13) - 1,994,409 1,994,409
Total Bt 317,882 3,590,991 3,908,873
Liabilities at  Other financial
fair value liabilities at
through the amortised
profit and loss cost Total
RE KA
BRFERA 518k 2 H At
BaErAE TRBE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT ARBEFT
31 December 2016 —E-XR"E+=ZA=t+—H
Liabilities as per balance sheet ZE&EXRHYIEE
Borrowings (Note 17) B8 (M7 17) = 6,109,294 6,109,294
Derivative financial TESRMTA
instruments (Note 18) (H17#18) 32,275 - 32,275
Trade and bills payables B8 5 REEFIA
(Note 21) (Hia£21) - 3,044,295 3,044,295
Accruals and other payables  TEIZE F o H it fE ff
excluding deposits and ER (T aERe R
statutory liabilities (Note 22) %5 & 1) (ff2#22) - 405,666 405,666
Total 4T 32,275 9,559,255 9,591,530
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10.

11.

200

INVENTORIES 10. F&
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARMFr
Raw materials R 2,600,507 2,168,041
Work-in-progress RS 279,705 117,580
Finished goods Sk 883,977 645,676
3,764,189 2,931,297

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to
RMB11,190,690,000 (2016: RMB8,651,839,000).

In 2017, the Group made an inventory provision of
approximately RMB177,000 (2016: reversal of
inventory provision of RMB7,253,000). These
amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in
the consolidated income statement (Note 24).

As at 31 December 2017, inventories with a total
net book amount of RMB261,236,000 (2016:
RMB393,000,000) were pledged as collateral for
the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 17).

BREBEABIAEERA | WEE
XA 4 55 A A R % 11,190,690,000 7T
(ZZE—X%F: ARK#¥8,651,839,000
JL) °

RZT—F  AEEFHETEERED
ARBE177,0000(ZF —RF : #E
FEREBARKET,253,0007T) - i%Z%
HEAAGARERZ [$HERAK] F
(Mf5E24) ©

N-ZZE—+F+-A=+—08 EEF
B # A A B #261,236,000T( — =
— N AR #393,000,0007T ) K17
BEEELR  MEAREEERFRITE
B2 (KEE17) -

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 11. EREZ REERE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT ARMFT
Trade receivables JEWE B FRTE 551,357 391,614
Less: provision for impairment B RE RS (7,141) (5,407)
544,216 386,207
Bills receivable R ZE IR SR TE 1,085,928 1,203,783
1,630,144 1,589,990

As at 31 December 2017, included in the trade
receivables were amounts due from related parties
of RMB3,019,000 (2016: RMB56,215,000) (Note
34).

The fair values of trade and bills receivables
approximate their carrying amounts.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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11. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 1. BRES REERE )

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, no bills receivable were
pledged (2016: bills receivable with a total net book
amount of RMB206,797,000 were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings) (Note
17).

The Group generally grants credit terms of less
than 90 days to its customers in Mainland China
and 120 days to its customers in other countries.
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills
receivables (including amounts due to related
parties of trading in nature) by invoice date is as
follows:

N-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H  #HEE
WERBEER(ZE—RF : REF
B+ A B % 206,797,000 7T H) FE YR =
BEELH  MEAKAEBERGRTE
B2\ (HFE17) ©

REERTEPRAERP 2EEH—
MRBOHEAR  METHBEREF 2
EEMR120B R - BIE 5 REEFN
H(BRMEEREWES/E 2 50R)
REZAMREOTNT

2017 2016

—E—+tF TR F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fx ARETFT

Within 30 days 308 1,171,995 788,378
31 to 90 days 31HZ90H 364,234 668,960
91 to 180 days 91HZ%Z180H 84,699 128,085
181 days to 1 year 181 HE1F 11,200 2,590
Over 1 year 1F A E 5,157 7,384
1,637,285 1,595,397

Less: provision for impairment B R E R (7,141) (5,407)
Trade and bills receivables — net  EWE 5 Kk Z=EFIE — /F5 1,630,144 1,589,990

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade and bills receivables, as the Group has a
large number of customers.

Trade receivables that are aged less than 90 days
in Mainland China and 120 days in other countries
are generally not considered impaired, which
amounted to RMB525,377,000 as at 31 December
2017 (2016: RMB367,278,000). As at 31 December
2017, trade receivables aged by more than 90
days in Mainland China or 120 days in other
countries of RMB18,839,000 (2016:
RMB18,929,000) are considered not to be
impaired. These relate to a number of customers
for whom there is no recent history of default.

HRAEEERASLES  HEWRES
REBFREETHEERR

R EKFERHTZ90 B RN HE M
RTR120 B 2 [BERE 57 IE—RTE
BERE R—T—+F+=-_A=1+—
HH 4% A ARE525377,000 T (=
T —XNF: AR¥367,278,0007T) °
R-ZT—+FE+-A=+—0 K8
BEREZFBRARERSRIPI0H L LR
HiFEREHI120 B A FEWE 5508
B AR 18,839,000 T ( —F — /N F ¢
AE#18,929,0007T) - ZEHERF R
BB RS 2R °
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11.

202

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
RMB7,141,000 (2016: RMB5,407,000) were
impaired and had been fully provided for. These
receivables relate to a number of customers,
including customers in unexpected difficult
economic situations. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

11.

EWE 5 R RERIE @)

R-Z—tF+-A=+—B EKE
SRBEARET141,000(=ZF — X
& : AR#%5,407,0007T) B RELE
ERHEEE - RFRUFBESREZER
FB8REERTARBLERENR
F o ZERUIAZ BRI -

o

2017 2016

—E—4F —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TFr AREFT

181 days to 1 year 181BE1F 1,984 -
Over 1 year 1FA F 5,157 5,407
7,141 5,407

Trade and bills receivables are denominated in the

AT EEIIRE B E 5 R EBRIEA

following currencies: R
2017 2016
—E—4tHF —T—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETFT AREFT
RMB AR 1,172,636 1,139,925
usD EyT 417,794 416,939
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) B (T 38,082 34,067
Vietnam Dong (“VND”) MEE(MEE]) 8,773 4,466
1,637,285 1,595,397

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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11.

12

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

11.

BRESREERE®)
FEWE 5B REREESHNT -

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AREFT

At 1 January n—A—H 5,407 7,995
Accrual/(reversal) of provision for ~ FEIE /(@) fEUY Z 5 3518

impairment of trade receivables B (K 24)
(Note 24) 1,734 (2,588)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 7,141 5,407

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in general and
administrative expenses. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are written off when there is no
expectation of receiving additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the fair value of trade and bills
receivables.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 12.
OTHER RECEIVABLES

1B KRR R E R R R E T SIA
—REITHRAX © B RHREWEES
R - EEERT IR BRI

RHE Y AEEEHNEAEER
B RREKE S RREFARFE -

ANRE RERHEMER
AR X

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFT

Prepayments for purchase of BEEMA A TENFE
raw materials 387,838 996,669
Value-added tax recoverable FERIEET 181,279 298,328
Prepaid income tax TRISFREH 30,734 -
Prepaid expenses TAfTR X 21,775 6,526
Deposits for operation =y kien 14,373 4,415
Other receivables FAth R AR X 1,230 2,177
637,229 1,308,115

The fair values of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximate their carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2017, no prepayment was due
from related party (2016: prepayments of
RMB35,780,000 were due from an associate) (Note
34).

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =Z—tFF#
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13.

204

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND SEFARTERAREREERES
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ZEY

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARFT AREFTT

Pledged bank deposits DIERIRITIER 88,249 181,201

Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY
— Cash at bank and in hand —iRITRFERE 1,466,718 1,813,208
1,554,967 1,994,409

As at 31 December 2017, the weighted average
effective interest rate on pledged bank deposits
and other deposits was 2.8% (2016: 1.1%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits have maturities
of 90 days at inception (2016: 90 days), and are
used for issuance of letters of credit for purchase
of raw material.

Pledged bank deposits and cash and cash

R-ZTE—+F+-A=+—8 oEH
RITIF R E M T7 58 2 INAE - BERRF
REFFE28%(ZT—RNE 1 11%) °
BEBIRITE R 2 TR AR B At
FFO0H(ZZ—"F :90H) r A&
BERAREEEEMR -

ATHIERES R EERBITER NI

equivalents are denominated in the following eRBSFEDOT
currencies:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRBETFT  ARETFT
RMB AR 1,020,562 898,178
usbD = 468,951 719,558
VND WA 38,848 34,618
HKD BT 21,394 306,372
Turkish Lira (“TRY”) THEHEEN([ER]) 2,034 2,865
European Dollar (‘EURO”) Bt ([BoTl) 1,084 31,771
New Taiwan Dollar (“NTD”) Fak(marl) 37 =
Others Hoh 1,723 1,047
1,554,967 1,094,409

Majority of the cash and cash equivalents are
deposited with banks in Mainland China and Hong
Kong. The conversion of the RMB denominated
balances into other currencies and the remittance
of funds out of Mainland China are subject to the
rules and regulations relating to foreign exchange
controls promulgated by the Mainland China
Government.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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14. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE 14. RERRGEE

PREMIUM
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
R E TER
(thousands) HKD’000
(FAR) FHET
Authorised: SERE ¢
Ordinary shares of HKD0.1 each #&R0.18TEER
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 R-FBE—XER-ZE—+t&
+=BA=+—H 4,000,000 400,000
Number of  Ordinary Share
shares shares  premium Total
REHAE ZER BROEE Mt
(thousands) RMB’000 RMB000  RMB’000

(THR) AEETIT ARETT AR®TT

Issued and fully paid: BEITRAE
Ordinary shares of BROABIEER
HKDO0.1 each
At 31 December 2015 RZE—HF
+=—HB=+—H 884,681 94,064 189,218 283,282
Proceeds from BT M ETEEIE
shares issued 30,319 2,645 244,559 247,204
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RFR
and 2017 —E—F
+-—A=+—8H 915,000 96,709 433,777 530,486
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15.

206

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 7
April 2014, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (“the Share Option Scheme”), which will
remain in force for a period of 10 years up to April
2024. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
Company’s directors may, at their sole discretion,
grant to any employee, director, supplier of goods
or services, customer, person or entity that
provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, shareholder
and adviser or consultant of the Group to subscribe
for shares in the Company at a price of not less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the offer of grant; or (ii)
the average closing price of shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of the share. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.
The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
adopted by the Group from time to time must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the
Company in issued from time to time.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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15. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, share
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 5,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company were granted to
two executive directors of the Company on 23
March 2015. The subscription price is HKD8.7 per
share. 1,670,000 share options are exercisable
over the period from 1 January 2016 to 22 March
2025, 1,670,000 share options are exercisable
over the period from 1 January 2017 to 22 March
2025 and 1,660,000 share options are exercisable
from 1 January 2018 to 22 March 2025. On 28
December 2015, Share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 1,500,000 ordinary share of the
Company were granted to one executive director of
the Company. The subscription price is HKD5.7
per share. 300,000 share options are exercisable
over the period from 1 January 2017 to 27
December 2025, 300,000 share options are
exercisable over the period from 1 January 2018 to
27 December 2025, 300,000 share options are
exercisable over the period from 1 January 2019 to
27 December 2025, 300,000 share options are
exercisable over the period from 1 January 2020 to
27 December 2025 and 300,000 share options are
exercisable over the period from 1 January 2021 to
27 December 2025. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
above options in cash. No options have been
exercised since the date of grant to 31 December
2017 .

The fair value of options granted on 23 March 2015
was determined using the Binomial Option-Pricing
Model. The significant inputs into the model
included the share price of HKD8.7 per share at
the grant date, exercise price shown above,
expected annual risk-free interest rate of 1.582%,
expected dividend yield of 1.45% and volatility of
49.80%. The total fair value of these options was
RMB17,154,000 and RMB2,424,000 was charged
to administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB5,796,000).

The fair value of options granted on 28 December
2015 was determined using the Binomial Option-
Pricing Model. The significant inputs into the model
included the share price of HKD5.7 per share at
the grant date, exercise price shown above,
expected annual risk-free interest rate of 1.623%,
expected dividend yield of 3.42% and volatility of
50.94%. The total fair value of these options was
RMB3,171,000 and RMB895,000 was charged for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB1,485,000).

15.

U BERSRE)
BRETE (2)
RIEBRESE AR _Z—RF
A T=HAMBRTESREA L
Al 72 8% 5,000,000 A% 2 A 7] 58 A% 2 B8
K- RBEAST RSTE To
1,670,000 15 BERRERI R =T — N F—
A—Bz_Z-_RA&%=A_-+_-_BHH
171 : 1,670,000 BB R IET R = F
—+tF—A—BE-_ZET-_RAE=H
—+ - BHIRTTE : & 1,660,000 15 i
EITR-_ZE—N\FE—A—HE-Z
—HRE=A -+ HERBTE - AAF]
RZZE—RAF+_A=+/\BHR—RBH
TEER M A AR EE 1,500,000 A% A
NEEBRNERE REBEERER
5.77%8 7T ° 300,000 BE AR E AT R =&
—+F—A—BE-_E-_AF+=A
—+-+ B EIRETT{E : 300,000 17 B A%
AR ZE—NF—F—HE=E_T A%
+=A=+-+tHEM77{ : 300,000
BREIN_Z—NF—F—RAE=Z
—hAF+ A=+t BHETE:
300,000 EEREITR T _TF—H
—HE_ZE-_AF+-_A=-+tHHH
171E ¢ 300,000 BRI = Z
—_—F—A—B&-_ZT-_AF+=A
Z -+t HEBETE o AEBEWEET K
WEEMTUNE B ORAEE il B
e AREAHE_ZT—+F+=- A
=+—8  BEERERTE -

R-ZE—RE=A=+=AFHER
HEZ A ETVRA - B EEEER
BT - ZBEAZERGABEBRENR
HBHZRESKS7ET - LilifTE
& BEHFEERMRFE1.582% - &
HARY B R 1.45% R 1849.80% ° Itk &
EREZAFERLRBEAARE
17,154,000 7 + M A R # 2,424,000 7T
EREBE_T—+tFt+-_A=+—H1t
FEZAOBRAIHIBR(ZZE—XRF: A
R #:5796,0007T) °

R-Z—AF+-_A-+\AHEHE
S HE 2 AN B Ty ERF — E = B T (B AR
RNETE - ZERNZEXHABIEEER
RHBEZRESKS. 78T - LiltfT
FE - BHFEEERRFE1.623%
T8 AR B % 3.42% K 18 50.94% ° itk
EEREZATERBAARY
3171000t MABE_T—tF
+_A=+—HLEFEHBKRARE
895000L( —F — N F: AR ¥
1,485,000 7T) °
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16. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED 16. HitEERRBEF
EARNINGS
(a) Other reserves (a) EHMfEE
Share-
based
Capital  compensation Statutory Revaluation Translation
reserve’) reserve reservest” reserve reserve Total
HRARER
EARR RREE EERET  BREE EXfif gt
RMB?000 RMB000 RMB?000 RMB?000 RMB000 RMB?000
ABBTT  AREFT  ARBTT  ARRFT  ARBTT ARKTR
At1 January 2016 RZF-~E-A-A 162,041 9,898 298,249 49223 (9.489) 509,922
Transferto statutory reserves ~ EEZAHE - = 214 = = 32,74
Employee share option ESEREE
scheme (Note 15) (it 15) - 7281 - - - 7,281
Share of other comprehensive ~ HEBREA A ABIE
losses of associates ARl EMEERR
accounted for using the
equity method
— share of currency -SRI ARR
franslation reserve - - - - (8,556) (8,556)
Currency translation differences  E¥AE =% - - - - 9%7 97
Surplus on revaluation of BffgF R4
buildings
—gross (Note 7) —BE(7) = = = 45,883 = 45,883
— eferred income tax — BiEmER ()
(Note 20 § - S %Y S %Y
Transfer from revaluation SEFENRAARELR
reserve o retained eamings  FEEZRZRAER
for buidings revaluation
— gross —% - - - (7.221) - 1.221)
— deferred income tax —BREHER
(Note 20) (W320) . - - 1,944 - 1,944
At 31 December 2016 jiuEyd
T-B=1-H 162,041 17119 330973 13475 (17,078) 566,590
At1 January 2017 R=Z-tE-A-A 162,041 17179 330973 13475 (17,078) 566,590
Transferto statutory resenves ~ EATEFHE - - 48,202 - - 48,202
Employee share option scheme  ESERiEs4
(Note 19) (hEn) - 339 - - - 3,319
Share of other comprehensive ~ ARERRZTARE
income of investments AR
accounted for using the equity
method
— share of currency — HMEER S hEE
translation reserve - - - - 1175 1175
Currency translation differences  EM#E =% - - - - (8,878) (8,878)
Transfer from revaluation SETENAERES
reserve fo retained eamings  FEEEAZRBLEA
for buildings revaluation
— gross -8 - - - (6,362) - (6,362)
— deferred income tax —BREHER
(Note 20 (W320) - - - 2328 - 2028
At 31 December 2017 RZT-tF
T2B=1-H 162,041 20,498 319175 69,441 (14,781) 616,374
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16. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED

EARNINGS (continued)

(a)

Other reserves (continued)
Notes:

(®

(i)

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the amount of share capital issued
and the net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired under a group reorganisation in
2004.

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland
China, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in Mainland China
are required to appropriate a portion of their
after-tax profit (after offsetting prior years’
losses) to statutory reserves, at rates
determined by their respective boards of
directors. Such transfer is not required when
the amount of the statutory reserve reaches
50% of the corresponding subsidiaries’
registered capital.

Statutory reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the corresponding
subsidiaries, to expand the corresponding
subsidiaries’ production operations, or to
increase the capital of the corresponding
subsidiaries. Upon approval by resolutions
of the corresponding subsidiaries’
shareholders in general meetings, the
corresponding subsidiaries may convert their
statutory reserves into registered capital and
issue bonus capital to existing owners in
proportion to their existing ownership
structure.

16. HitREERRB &R (&)

(a) HAbfEE(#E)
Fitst -

(i) AARRBEBIED BITRASEER
—EENFEESATRENR
RRAIMEEFENER -

(i) RIERBRERMG 2RO - KD
AIER B KRER S R &8 2 M B
RRIBRESAESEME 2
EEBI - 3R — 3B BB LR T (4
EHBAFEEB) EETRHE -
fisy % EfFE R SR E RN B
RRGEMEERD50% @ BlEE
R -

VA TE R R 12 7T A 1 5K AR BE T B
REEE - BERARNEARE
EREIENE AN E R R K
Ao BRSHBMHEQRRRER
BRRE LR RBE - 187
P 8 22 B0 B AT o EOATE e i
REMEAR @ WIRRBBRRAOF
P LE 91 [R) 12 2 B AT AL AR
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16. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED

210

EARNINGS (continued)

(b)

Retained earnings

16. HitREERRB &R (©)

(b) REER

RMB’000
AREFT
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—X~F—H—H 3,117,951
Profit for the year FE A 1,187,531
Transfer from revaluation reserve to HEGBEBERERERT
retained earnings
— gross — 458 7,221
— deferred income tax (Note 20) — RIEFTS L (KY7E20) (1,944)
4,310,759
Dividend relating to 2015 —T-RFEIZRE (89,155)
Dividend relating to 2016 —E-RFEZRE (137,235)
Transfer to statutory reserves B ATE e (32,724)
At 31 December 2016 R-E—XRNE+=-_A=+—H 4,051,645
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—HA—H 4,051,645
Profit for the year FERE A 1,151,862
Transfer from revaluation reserve to HEGFBBEERERE R
retained earnings
— gross — 4% 6,362
— deferred income tax (Note 20) — RIEFRISH (K17E20) (2,328)
5,207,541
Dividend relating to 2016 ZE-RFZRE (210,137)
Dividend relating to 2017 ZEtFIRE (185,935)
Transfer to statutory reserves BB ETFE R (48,202)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+E+=-A=+—08 4,763,267
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17. BORROWINGS 17. B&
2017 2016
—E—tF TR F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Current BIHA

Unsecured bank borrowings EIRIPIRITEES 583,814 173,334

Secured bank borrowings BEMBITEE (Wi (@)

(Note (a)) 464,674 602,748
Other bank borrowings (Note (b))  HbiR7T{EE (K2 (b)) 1,513,881 1,509,874
Notes payable (Note (c)) FERTRIR (K3t (c) - 1,263,713

2,562,369 3,549,669

Non-current FEENHA

Unsecured bank borrowings EIRIRIRITEES 1,359,688 1,105,822
Secured bank borrowings EEMIBITEE (FiFE @)

(Note (a)) - 55,496

Other bank borrowings (Note (b))  EsRITEE (K (b)) 1,627,541 1,398,307
2,987,229 2,559,625

Total borrowings BEAHE 5,549,598 6,109,294

Notes: HiaE -

(a) Bank borrowings of RMB464,674,000 (2016: (a) AR 464,674,000 0 (=ZF—NF : A
RMB658,244,000) were secured by the pledge of % 658,244,000 7T ) BV IR1TIE B AR
the Group’s land use rights with a net book amount BER_ZE—+F+_A=+—HHUT
of RMB26,687,000 (2016: RMB25,993,000) (Note SEEER: FEFERARYK
6); inventories with a net book amount of 26,687,000C( —ZF —NF: AR
RMB261,236,000 (2016: RMB393,000,000) (Note 25,993,000 7T ) &) £ #b {55 A 4 (P 5 6) :
10); property, plant and equipment with a net book R FEA AR 261,236,000 (=F
amount of approximately RMB180,915,000 (2016: —/~"F : AR#393,000,0007T) WFE
RMB116,548,000) (Note 7); and no bills receivable (M &E10): REFENAARE
(2016: RMB206,797,000) (Note 11), as at 31 180,915,000 t( —Z T — A< F: AR
December 2017. 116,548,000 7T ) B9 3 /= e ak 4 (Y

27 R EREBER(ZT—RF:
AR 206,797,000 70) (FizE11) °
(b)  Other bank borrowings of RMB3,141,422,000 (b) HMBRITEEUAAEEES THERFR

()

(2016: RMB2,908,181,000) were secured by cross
corporate guarantees provided by certain
subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2017.

At 31 December 2016, US$182 million senior notes
(“Hong Kong Notes”) were issued in April 2013,
with a principal amount of US$200 million, interest
bearing at a fixed rate of 6.5% per annum and
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The
Hong Kong Notes should be repayable in whole on
18 January 2019 and they were fully repaid on 18
January 2017 in advance.

(c)

HOR—T—+tF+-_F=1+—HBHE
AAREES,141,422,0007T( = —/<F ¢
AR #2,908,181,0007T) #9322 X A 7
IRVEHRHR o

IFs

RZBE—RE+-A=+—H " 1.82
ETEARER(EBZER) R = —
FUART ABER2EET  BE
F6.5% 2 EEFRTE - WEBBHR
et - BEZREER-_Z—NFE—A
+NBEREERER -2 —+t5—A
TN\ BIRATESREE -

[11 Zof
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17.

212

BORROWINGS (Continued) 17.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

BEE®)
EEMETEERIA T EEEE -

2017 2016
—E—4F —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARFT AREFT

RMB AR
HKD BT
USD ETT

2,298,080 2,923,494
2,241,191 209,313
1,010,327 2,976,487

5,549,598 6,109,294

The weighted average effective interest rates per
annum at year end are as follows:

REL B IEFHBRER XD

2016
—T—RF
HKD UsD RMB HKD
Er Ey AR BT

2017
“Z-tF
USD RMB
EY ARY
Bank borrowings ~ $R1T{EE 4.1% 4.5%

2.6% 3.8% 4.3% 3.3%

Notes payable AN - -

- 6.5% = =

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s borrowings
were repayable as follows:

RZB—+F+=A=+—H *&H
fEEMEIHAIT -

2017 2016

—B-tF _BAF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T

Within 1 year 15K

Between 1 and 2 years 152%F
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5%
More than 5 years 838 5 F

2,562,369 3,549,669

901,846 856,330
2,051,601 1,492,410
33,782 210,885

5,549,598 6,109,294

The fair values of the borrowings approximate their
carrying amounts as at the balance sheet date, as
the impact of discounting is not significant.

The Group has undrawn floating rates borrowing
facilities of approximately RMB1,182,007,000
(2016: RMB1,235,302,000) which will be expired
within one year. The facilities expiring within one
year are annual facilities subject to review at
various dates during 2018.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

18. {TEER I A

INSTRUMENTS
2017 2016
—E—tE ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT
Assets: BE
Forward foreign exchange RERINE S K (KT (a)
contracts (Note (a)) 117,580 317,882
Cross currency swap contracts RN EERR LX) (KaE (b))
(Note (b)) 324 -
Cotton future contracts (Note (c))  18EHAEA 4 (A5 (c)) 16,446 =
134,350 317,882
Liabilities: AR
Forward foreign exchange RERINE S K (HE (a)
contracts (Note (a)) 50,282 24,260
Cross currency swap contracts RX B EBEHK (B3 (b))
(Note (b)) 62,714 7,975
Interest rate swap contract FIREHE 4 (A3 (0)
(Note (d)) - 40
112,996 32,275

Non-hedging derivatives are classified as a current
asset or liability.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

The forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31
December 2017 comprised thirty-one contracts
with notional principal amounts totalling
RMB3,861,712,000 (2016: twenty contracts with
notional principal amounts totalling
RMB5,555,718,000).

The cross currency swap contracts as at 31
December 2017 comprised thirteen contracts with
notional principal amounts totalling
RMB1,630,025,000 (2016: three contracts with
notional principal amounts totalling
RMB626,150,000).

The cotton future contracts as at 31 December
2017 comprised four contracts with notional
principal amounts totalling USD7,103,000 (2016:
nil).

The interest rate swap contract as at 31 December
2016 comprised one contract with notional principal
amount of RMB173,425,000 and it has been due in
2017.

FEPTETEDBERARDEERE

f& o

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

R-B—+F+=-A=+—8 255
BENBE=1T—NE4 BEALE
@Mat A AR #3,861,712,000t( = &
—NE T RAEY . BEASEEH
A AR 5,555,718,000 7T) °

R-_ZE—t&E+=-_A=+—H XX&
MEEHANBET=MNEH  BEAS
Bt A AR 1,630,025,000 7T (=8
—REZHEHN BERASERTR
AR #626,150,0007T) °

RZE—tF+-A=+—8 " R{iEtH
BEANBRENEH  BBEASRMAG
737,103,000 €T (ZF —74F : ) ©

R-B—ARE+-_A=+—8 FxH
HENBERE—MEH BBEAEBAA
R ¥173,425,0007C° ER T — L&
F)HR o
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19. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS REHERE
The rights to the leased assets are reverted to the HASEEBREERE  MHEEEEZ
lessor in the event of default of the lease liabilities R EFELEA -
by the Group.
2017 2016
—E—t& —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBEF T
Gross finance lease liabilities RMEHEAREEE
— minimum lease payments — REMEEMK
No later than 1 year —FR 5,886 =
Later than 1 year and no later than —&%ZHER
5 years 1,628 -
Less: future finance charges on B BMEHREZRRFBEER
finance leases (304) -
7,210 -
The present value of finance lease FEHEEEZIREMT :
liabilities is as follows:
No later than 1 year —&R 5,623 -
Later than 1 year and no later than —F&E=RHFER
5 years 1,587 -
7,210 -
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20. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20. IEZLEFTEH
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred RERIEEEMRERIERE 2 S0
tax liabilities is as follows: ™
2017 2016
s+t —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFIT
Deferred tax assets: BEERIBEE
— Deferred tax assets to be — HBiB12E A& E 2
recovered after more than RERIB & B
12 months 45,713 47,145
— Deferred tax assets to be —FE12@ARKE 2
recovered within 12 months BT TBEE 61,845 69,859
107,558 117,004
Deferred tax liabilities: REFTBEE -
— Deferred tax liabilities to be — HBiB12@ A%t
settled after more than REFRIEAE
12 months (138,475)  (111,049)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be —EREAREZFZ
settled within 12 months RIERIAB A (10,697) (2,328)
(149,172)  (113,377)

The movements in deferred tax assets and

liabilities during the year are as follows:

RENEEHBEERAEZBNT

Deferred income tax assets: BEFTSTREE
Temporary
Tax losses differences Total
BiIgEE HiFER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AR¥TFT AR¥ T
At 1 January 2016 MNZE—RFE— 112,345 48,386 160,731
(Charged)/credited to the ~ M4RA MR ( ?DB?)/
consolidated income Bi
statement (44,451) 724 (43,727)
At 31 December 2016 R-EBE—XF
+=-—A=+—H 67,894 49,110 117,004
Acquisition of subsidiaries U EEHIE A7) (A17E32)
(Note 32) 14,510 - 14,510
(Charged)/credited to the ~ R4 & Uk zER (30 ),
consolidated income i
statement (30,252) 6,296 (23,956)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF
+—A=+—H 52,152 55,406 107,558
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BE—T—

20. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

216

tFE+—A=t—HLFE

20. ELFRSH ()

Deferred income tax liabilities: BLEMEHAE
Fair value Withholding
adjustments tax
on assets relating to
relating to unremitted
business  Revaluation earnings of
combinations of buildings  subsidiaries Total
BREREH BENBAR
ZEBEZ AEMBTIH
AVERR BFEMR il @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TTT ARETTT AE®TFTT AEMTTT
At 1 January 2016 22— 5~F¥-R—H 7,173 14,745 74,423 96,341
Reversal relating to *ﬁﬁ BIMTE 2 B[
additional depreciation - (1,944) - (1,944)
Taxation charged to equity FEHETRER
in relation to the Mk 28
revaluation of buildings - 16,354 - 16,354
Credited to consolidated 5t AF &Mz
income statement (503) - (28,933) (29,436)
Withholding tax relating to 7 BFf1 & 2 Bl RE(
unremitted earnings of RAMEMNR
subsidiaries - - 32,062 32,062
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+_ﬂ =+—H 6,670 29,155 77,552 113,377
Reversal relating to ABEIMTE 2 E
additional depreciation - (2,328) - (2,328)
Acquisition of subsidiaries YUK A E (A 32)
(Note 32) 36,330 - - 36,330
Credited to consolidated st AfF & MR
income statement (503) - (8,935) (9,438)
Withholding tax relating to  HEHIB AR RER
unremitted earnings of BF S FEI0H
subsidiaries - - 11,231 11,231
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+4F
+=ZA=+—H 42,497 26,827 79,848 149,172

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2017 and
2016, the Group has recognised the deferred
income tax assets for all tax loss carry-forwards.

Deferred income tax of RMB2,328,000 (2016:
RMB1,944,000) was transferred from other
reserves to retained earnings. This represents
deferred tax on the difference between the actual
depreciation on buildings and the equivalent
depreciation based on the historical cost of
buildings.
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21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

21. BERNEZREERE

2017 2016

—E—tF TR F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBTFIT

Trade payables B E B 5R0E 507,749 296,039
Bills payable EADESE7eE 2,453,980 2,748,256
2,961,729 3,044,295

As at 31 December 2017, included in trade
payables were amounts due to related parties of
RMB4,557,000 (2016: RMB4,341,000) (Note 34).

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables
(including amounts due to related parties of trading
in nature) is as follows:

R-ZE—+F+=-A=+—1H ENHZ
SHER B S REMEET KB A
R#4557000(ZF—RE: AR
# 4,341,000 7T) (FH7£34) -

RNEZEREFA(BREEREN
BHRET 2R ZIREDOMIT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#FT AREFT

Within 90 days 90HA 1,900,496 1,848,405
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 1,021,831 1,181,040
181 days to 1 year 181HE1F 31,981 9,347
Over 1 year 19600 F 7,421 5,503
2,961,729 3,044,295

Trade and bills payables are denominated in the

AT ERIIROENE S RFEBRIA

following currencies: LU
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETF T
usD S 2,616,097 2,360,899
RMB ARHE 225,695 532,412
VND =)= 110,944 68,030
EURO BT 8,270 15,944
HKD I 723 -
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) HE(RE]D - 67,010
2,961,729 3,044,295
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22. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

23.

218

22. AREAREMENERR

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR AREFT
Accrued wages and salaries FEFT T & K 3 B 247,548 182,943
Accrual of operating expenses JERTH =R 130,236 116,275
Payables for purchase of property, FEEY¥ - E LR E
plant and equipment FERTERFR 116,381 155,573
Deposits from customers BERE 95,677 99,567
Tax payables other than JERTFRIE (R EPTSTIRRIN)
enterprise income tax 60,544 33,482
Payables for acquisition of U B BT /&8 A &) 2 FE AN 5RIE
subsidiaries 31,749 42,624
Interest payable FERFILE 5,163 45,041
Other payables H b ETBR SR 54,153 46,153
741,451 721,658

As at 31 December 2017, no deposits from

customers were due to related

deposits of RMB541,000 were due to an associate)

party (2016:

R-ZT—+F+-FA=1+—08 - {HEE
NEEAZEFEE(ZT—RF: &
F—MEE R RES ARY541,0007T)

(Note 34). (FfizE34) ©
OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 23. HttlW AR H At (BE) W
(LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 0 R
2017 2016
—E—t& —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBF T
Other income EAbUA
Subsidy income (a) FREUA (a) 169,555 126,098
Other (losses)/gains — net Hih (B18),Wax — F5
Gains on acquisition of W B BT B8~ W e (M et 32)

subsidiaries (Note 32) 173,434 -
Gains on step-acquisition oAU EE— B A A R

of an associate HIWE Az W

and its subsidiaries 4,027 -
Gains on acquisition of WA N T RAEE

associates and joint ventures Wiz - 20,551
Derivative financial instruments at  #ZAFEFARBF 2

fair value through profit or loss: PTHESRITA :

— Realised profits — BEER R 19,725 43,383

— Unrealised (losses)/profits — RER(E18) 5 F (238,616) 111,476
Net foreign exchange losses bE 5 B85 88 (fY7E 27)

(Note 27) (38,497) (23,289)
Losses from Notes repurchase ZEEEEE - (291)
Others Hib 15,237 9,843

Total other (losses)/gains — net Hih (B18) s asE — F8 (64,690) 161,673

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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23. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 23. HWM AR EM(EE) K
(LOSSES)/GAINS, NET (Continued) o R
(@ The subsidy income were mainly related to (@) MW AEB AR ERH AR

24,

incentives for development in Xinjiang, Xuzhou,
Shandong, Changzhou and Shanghai, Mainland
China and comprised of grants provided by
municipal governments. The Group has received
all the subsidy income and there was no future
obligation related to these subsidy income.

EXPENSES BY NATURE

#oE - M LR BN R EE
BRIAESZEZREEATR
R H 220 - AEED W2
R - AR EEBZE
R A 2 RREALE

24.FAX (RUEE D)

2017 2016
—E—tE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT ARBFT
Raw materials and FERREME R EFED
consumables used 11,531,903 8,777,560
Changes in inventories of finished %5k @ R AER ATFSEF)
goods and work in progress (341,213) (125,721)
Employment benefit expenses EEBAFX (At 25)
(Note 25) 1,590,509 1,361,848
Depreciation and amortisation e RS (f76K7)
(Notes 6 and 7) 681,959 547,946
Losses on disposal of property, LEME - BE REZERM
plant and equipment and T RS 1R
land use rights (Note 31) (K17E31) 5,985 11,691
Office expenses WA 82,596 93,301
Utilities &) MRt 905,561 787,607
Transportation costs BRI 358,460 343,957
Auditor’s remuneration % IR B &
— Annual audit services — FEEZRE 3,900 4,100
— Audit services for potential — BEBESFETEZRSG
bond offerings 1,350 -
— Non-audit services — IEEIRTE 2,150 450
Rental expenses for buildings and = kg2 H &5 (A:77)
machinery (Note 7) 35,119 42,278
Net accrual/(reversal) of provision JEWE 5 FIBRERE 2
for impairment of trade FTIR(Bm) F8E
receivables (Note 11) (Kt 11) 1,734 (2,588)
Net accrual/(reversal) of provision  1F&RER R (EE)
for decline in the value of FEE(MtaE10)
inventories (Note 10) 177 (7,253)
Other expenses HEmAx 99,873 210,785
Total cost of sales, selling and HEKAR - HE XD HMAX
distribution costs and general DA R — g AT 2 42 %8
and administrative expenses 14,960,063 12,045,961
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25. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES

220

25. BEERAMX

2017 2016

—E—+tHF 2T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#FT AR¥ET T

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE& - #B &I 1,377,794 1,189,327
Pension costs — defined RIS TE R ET &

contribution plans (Note (a)) (KtaE(a)) 108,703 88,778

Other welfare benefits (Note (b)) H Al (K (b)) 51,498 43,520

Other employment benefits Efthig B2 A 52,514 40,223

1,590,509 1,361,848

(a)

Pension — defined contribution plans

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland China, the Group has participated
in state-sponsored defined contribution
retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China. The Group and the eligible
employees are required to contribute 14% to
22% and 7% to 8%, respectively, of the
employees’ basic salary (subject to a cap) at
rates as stipulated by the relevant municipal
governments. The Group has no further
obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group contributed
approximately RMB60,546,000 (2016:
RMB51,539,000) to the aforesaid state-
sponsored retirement plans.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Vietnam, the Group contributes to stated-
sponsored employees’ social insurance
scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The
Group contributes to the scheme at a rate of
20% of the employee’s salary. The stated-
sponsored social insurance scheme is
responsible for the entire obligations payable
to retired employees. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group contributed
approximately RMB46,920,000 (2016:
RMB36,867,000) to the aforesaid state-
sponsored social insurance scheme.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A

(a)

BiRE — REEFKEE
RIEPBARERBEERBEE -
AEEEAETEAEESRR
BRE R EERFURAKE -
AEBRAEREBESHIGE
B E RS M 14% 5 22% N 7%
8% ELHER(FIBE ER) ' 1t
EHBEEMBFERTE - RILES
EHERIN  AEBEHETAER
BRe S HERIKEEF BIEA
BIEEMREAE - RKEEWATE
BRE X HBHBEREBRAKE
BlAEE -NEE-Z—+F+—
A=1+—HBL%E A&£@EMHEL
MBI R & BRI E D B R A
A R #60,546,000 7T ( = — X
£ AR#51,539,0007T) °

RIBHmRRBMERBE A%
EEAEUEEERBEREND
EEHERBASERMER - X
EEREEFEM20%MZ:TE
T BRINMEB M FTE X H A
B RE B 2R BIRE -
REBE-_ZT—+FE+-_A=+—
BIEFE AEEELEAERE
B REFTEIHANDARE
46,920,000 T( —F— NF: A
R 36,867,0007T) °



R MBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—tHF+-_A=1t—BILFE

25. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension — defined contribution plans
(Continued)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in other
countries and regions, during the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group contributed
approximately RMB1,237,000 (2016:
RMB372,000) to the social insurance scheme
of those countries and regions.

Other welfare benefits

All of the Group’s employees in Mainland
China participate in employee social security
plans, including medical, housing and other
welfare benefits, organised and administered
by governmental authorities. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group
contributed approximately RMB51,498,000
(2016: RMB43,520,000) to these plans.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
three (2016: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis
shown in Note 36. The emoluments payable
to the remaining two (2016: two) individuals
are as follows:

25. EEEABEXZ®)

(a)

(b)

(c)

RkE — REMKEE(F)

RIFE MR KLt & A48 Bl Kok
BT AEEREE-_Z—+
FE+-A=+—HItFEBZE
Bl R Kbl 2 k& & F 5 8 L 3%
ANER#EA1,237,0007C (= F— X
& AR#372,0007T) °

Hi3zg A
AEERFPEAENTEREED
SEEBHSRETE - %8
BIEHRBTHEES M EER 5
B EEXHEMAEN BHE-Z
—+tF+-_A=1t—RHItFE "
AEBE R LA BHE RO AR
51,498,000t ( —ZF — /N F : A
R #43,520,000 7T) °

AfuBEFHMAL

RAFEE » AEE R K= M
ATEFR=F(ZE—XRF: =
i) REE - HES R 368
DITARI o A TR TRAL(Z
T—RF W) AT zBEm
™

2017 2016

—E—+F —ET—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT ARBTFT

Basic salaries and allowances HAFH & R, 2,016 1,613
Bonuses B4 1,920 2,413
3,936 4,026
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26. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

222

26. FBBAREH

2017 2016
—B—tF ZZEKF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT
Interest expenses — borrowings FERYE —EBE 270,868 257,709
Interest expenses — finance lease F|BFIx — R&A T E&IE
obligations - 8,406
270,868 266,115
Net exchange (gains)/losses on BMEFBAEER (k)
financing activities (Note 27) EBFRE (£ 27) (185,171) 165,750
Less: amount capitalised in W B MR
property, plant and BAReTE(HE7)
equipment (Note 7) - (18,698)
Finance costs — net MIEBA — F5 85,697 413,167
Finance income — interest income  B1 75U A — $R1777 F) S URA
on bank deposits (9,162) (9,752)
Net finance costs B 75 E F 5 76,535 403,415

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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27. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/ 27. ERWE (EE) 38
(LOSSES)
The exchange differences included in the Reralam Rt A ZERZEEEUT
consolidated income statement are as follows: BE :
2017 2016
—E—tF A S

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETT

Finance income/(costs) (Note 26) B %W A (&) (A1 26) 185,171 (165,750)

Other losses — net (Note 23) H b 518558 (M17£23) (38,497) (23,289)

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) [E ¥ Uiz (&518) ;58 146,674 (189,039)
28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 28. FiBHiMAYX

The amount of income tax charged to the RiFEWERNBRZAEHSEAT -

consolidated income statement represents:

2017 2016
ZE—LF  BAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFL  AREFT

Current tax on profits for the year £ #1| 2 BIHAR 18 175,273 250,531

Adjustment in respect of prior years @1{E 4 FHE (11,597) (1,149)

Deferred income tax (Note 20) EIEFTISTR (ATaE20) 23,421 46,353
187,097 295,735
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28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

224

(a)

(b)

(c)

Hong Kong profits tax

Subsidiaries established in Hong Kong are
subject to profits tax at rate of 16.5%
(2016:16.5%).

Mainland China enterprise income tax
(“EIT”)

Effective from 1 January 2008, the
subsidiaries established in Mainland China
are required to determine and pay the EIT in
accordance with the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC (the “New CIT Law”) as
approved by the National People’s congress
on 16 March 2007 and Detailed
Implementations Regulations of the New CIT
Law (the “DIR”) as approved by the State
Council on 6 December 2007. According to
the New CIT Law and DIR, subsidiaries
established in Mainland China are subject to
EIT at rate of 25% during the year (2016:
25%).

Vietnam income tax

Subsidiaries established in Vietham are
subject to income tax at rate of 20% (2016:
20%).

As approved by the relevant Tax Bureau in
Vietnam, the subsidiary acquired in Vietham
in 2017 is entitled to a preferential tax rate of
7.5% during the year and effective till 31
December 2018.

As approved by the relevant Tax Bureau in
Vietnam, the subsidiaries established in
Vietnam in 2016, 2014, 2013 and 2011 are
entitled to four years’ exemption from income
taxes followed by nine years of a 50% tax
reduction, commencing from the first
profitable year after offsetting the losses
carried forward from the previous years, and
are entitled to a preferential income tax rate
of 10% for 15 years, commencing from the
first year generating income from the
operation.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A

28. FIB®EiBEZ (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

EBFEHR
REBKRILIZHE R A AR
16.5% ( —ZF —/NF : 16.5%) Z
FRRBNF S -

FEARESERESH (LERSE
Bl
H-ZEEN\E—H— B KB
B AFER S 2 B AT - BIKER
EPEAARRERENR=_ZZLF
A+ BBBZFRECERS
BOR(TFERBRIAD » FIE
BRER_ZEEEF+ A At
2 AT RA IS0 E
Bl(MEpE A ]) - BE LK
MEEMBH - BREFCEME
FUA RGO EMAR) - ERER
AL 2 M B A IR E RES SR
EMEH HEAR2B5%(ZF
—NEE : 25%) ©

HMEEH

AR Ak 32 B BT BB A B 2B #2 20%
(ZB—X5F : 20%) 2 T R~
FrS®i o

LHERNEBHRIEBIE K=
T—tHFEHERBENHNER
Al BEERFREZZERH X
75% BRPE—_T—NF+=
A=+—H8-

BB RIE R
Z-RFE ZZ2—WHE T
—=FR-FT——FHEBEEKY
ME AR BRENEHEBES
ERAEENBEZBEEMNEE
B @S REE  ERAF
AR R EFFEE X HEH
EBELERAZEBFERER
BEMERHE10% ETIF
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28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(c)

Vietnam income tax

As approved by the relevant Tax Bureau in
Vietnam, the subsidiary established in
Vietnam in 2006 should separately calculate
income tax on its supplementary investments.
The initial investment of the subsidiary is
entitled to three years’ exemption from
income taxes followed by seven years of a
50% tax reduction and is entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% for 12
years. The first supplementary investment of
the subsidiary is entitled to three years’
exemption from income taxes followed by five
years of a 50% tax reduction based on the
income tax rate of 20% (2016: 20%). The
second supplementary investment of the
subsidiary is entitled to two years’ exemption
from income taxes followed by four years of a
50% tax reduction based on the income tax
rate of 20% (2016: 20%).

As approved by the relevant Tax Bureau in
Vietnam, the other subsidiary in Vietnam
should separately calculate income tax on its
supplementary investments. The initial
investment of the subsidiary is entitled to a
tax rate of 15%. The supplementary
investment of the subsidiary is entitled to a
tax rate of 20% (2016: 20%).

The applicable tax rates for the subsidiaries
in Vietnam range from nil to 20% during the
year (2016: nil to 20%).

28. TSR (®)

(c)

LR AT IS B
RBENARENERILE - —K
RZBRNFEB LA E
RE - AIREMAREBAE
PRt - 2B R AN TRE
BRRHPEN=5F  HE&RLF
AR ER BB YEES
XBEEMBHREI%ET =
FoZMBARMNBERMARE
BREREMER=F HERAF
RIE20% (—F—7XF : 20%) 0
PRSI R - AT R OB
BE - ZMBARKNE _EMHFR
BREBRLHMABHME - H
& MFRE20% (=T —<XF :
20%) M PTG TR TL X - AT PR 1S
BURAEE -

L MRS BILE - B
—REBENWNBAR  AIGE
R EB LT ERTER - %M
BRARIBNIZIREBEIA15% K
REEBATER - MM BAA
MEFTIEEERA20%(ZZ
— N 1 20%) MR R FT S
it o

FR EUEOHELRINER
BE NFEE20%(ZF—R
F:EFE20%) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =Z—tFF# 225



78 MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HILFE

28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
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(d)

Other income or profits tax

The Company was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law
of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands
income tax.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in
the British Virgin Islands were incorporated
under the International Business Companies
Acts or the Business Companies Acts, 2004
of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly,
are exempted from payment of British Virgin
Islands income tax.

The Company’s subsidiary established in
Macao is subject to income tax rate of 9%
(2016: 9%). No provision for Macao profits
tax has been made as the Group had no
assessable profit arising in or derived from
Macao during the year (2016: nil).

The Company’s subsidiary established in
Uruguay is subject to income tax rate of 25%
(2016: 25%). No provision for Uruguay profits
tax has been made as the Group had no
assessable profit arising in or derived from
Uruguay during the year (2016: nil).

The Company’s subsidiary established in
Turkey is subject to income tax at the rate of
20% (2016: 20%). No provision for Turkey
profits tax has been made as the Group had
no assessable profit arising in or derived from
Turkey during the year (2016: nil).

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A

28. Fr5

(d)

BEX®)

H A FF SR RIS 8
ARFIREHSHERFENE
SHESME T ARREARA
7 RS MR S B S FTESH -

ARRRRBER BB KL K
BRB TR AR R XA S ER
BELRER -_BEMEHER
BDEFEMARS - Rt E R LB
BRREBFEH

TRPIR L 2 Bt /B X R 242 9%
(ZB—RF  9%) ZHEHM A
BH - BRAKERFARELE
R P E A SRR P BRER B ER B
) - EUARE A R P R4S A5 4 M 3B
w=F—REFE:F)-

RERNERIZHBE AR AR
25% (=T — N4 : 25%) 2 i K
BSFTSR - EER SN EFSG
FeHRBE  AAREERFR
YN S EE LSRR
HA(CZ—RE:F) o

REBEERY ZH B R R AR
20% (= Z— 754  20%) 2 Fi R
BAEH - ERAEBRER
MEATFHEESSK T T HBR
I ERB SR W Eg tHE
FEREHBEBE (T —NF:

).

=
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28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(d)

Other income or profits tax (Continued)
The Company’s subsidiaries acquired in
Cambodia in 2017 and 2015 are subject to
income tax at the rate of 20%. No provision
for Cambodia profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profit arising in
or derived from these subsidiaries during the
year (2016: nil).

The Company’s subsidiary acquired in
Nicaragua in 2017 is subject to income tax at
the rate of 30%. As approved by relevant Tax
Bureau in Nicaragua, the subsidiary is
entitled to exemption from profits tax during
the year and effective till 31 December 2020.

The Company’s subsidiary established in
Taiwan in 2017 is subject to income tax at the
rate of 17%. Taxable income under NTD
120,000 is exempted from income tax. No
provision for Taiwan profits tax has been
made as the Group had no assessable profit
arising in or derived from Taiwan during the
year (2016: nil).

The Company’s subsidiaries acquired in
Samoa in 2017 are exempted from profits tax
during the year.

The tax on the Group’s profit before income
tax differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated
entities, as follows:

28. Fi5

(d)

B (2
HiFiERFEE (&)
R+ ER-—F REER
TR > B 1 71B1% 20% 2
BRENFER - AR AEEE
7O 3 4 B 3% B 2 ) R A S AT
HHORE SRR - SOMEAE 2t SR I
ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ«:@—ﬁiz

R-TE—tFERMTKE 2
BB R B Z81% 30% 2 Bl R B B
B - KEMNNEBRE DI
B ATIRNENER R
MAEH  BRIPE_T_ZTF
+=—A=+—H-

R-ZE—tFESEKL KB
NEBEAT% 2 B R B 15
e BERBRBRATERIH AR
120,000 ST EE 2 B S RS 75 -
ME G EF SR AT REE
AAEBRNFEANLTEREGEEL
R EERNERH SN (=
—NE ) o

R-T—tFHEEEDWE M
BRRINFERRPHNFIEH

7 £2 [ B FT 1S 750 Al ) 69 75 5% B
RIBEANER S B BE 6 I
FEHREAEZEREERTR -
EREWT

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARBFT

Profit before income tax, after B PS5 AlE A1 (4240

excluding share of profits of BRIEMG AR E AR

investments accounted for ZIFREEF])

using the equity method 1,374,642 1,486,132
Tax calculated at domestic tax ZiE AR EREN B A 7

rates applicable to profits of a2 & F R

the respective subsidiaries FTE A 236,520 317,595
Effect of tax exemption/reduction FHIBE R, H R 2 FE (41,765) (24,720)
Expenses not deductible for AR

tax purposes 1,643 880
Adjustment in respect of BEFEHE

prior years (11,597) (1,149)
Withholding tax relating to BB R B RER

unremitted earnings of BN TEE

subsidiaries 2,296 3,129

187,097 295,735
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28. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(d)

Other income or profits tax (Continued)
The weighted average applicable tax rate
was 17% (2016: 22%).

10% withholding income tax is generally
imposed on dividends relating to any profits
earned in PRC commencing from 2008 to
foreign investors, while for some PRC entities
held by companies incorporated in certain
places, including Hong Kong and Singapore,
preferential tax rate of 5% will be applied if
such companies are the beneficial owner of
over 25% of these PRC entities according to
PRC tax regulations.

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE

228

(a)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

28. Fr5

(d)

BEX®)
EHFRERREH (&)
BHEBMETHRER1T% (=
TN 1 22%) ©

FREMEMEREEIMCEEE
DIk =TT )\F R 2 & BRI F
RS — R 10% BER IS
HoMRETiR(BEEENR
IR FEMACL 2 R BT A
MREERME  MZEARR
BHREZRE G AZSTEE
REB25%ERCBESHEBA
AIZH5%NEERE

29. BREF

(a)

B%
SRRAEARFIA AR T AT
R FIROAE N BT EBRY
BTG -

2017 2016
—E—tF CZTKF
Profit attributable to owners of RAREEE ANEERF
the Company (RMB’000) (AR®Fr) 1,151,862 1,187,531
Weighted average number of BEITERER
ordinary shares in issue INRETF S (A F&F)
(thousands) 915,000 892,932
Basic earnings per share BRERZF]
(RMB per share) (FRARKT) 1.26 1.33

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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29. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. For the Company’s share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number
of shares that could have been acquired at
fair value (determined as the average annual
market share price of the Company’s shares)
based on the monetary value of the

29. BREBF (#)

(b)

By

SREERNERARETE
SheyE B INE P BETE - A
BREMEEMETEZEGELR
P - pLAR B Z BRET
5 ARFEREBERITEBRE
it 2 R 2 M ME - FTEBEA
BRAFE(BERAARENZ
FHEEME)BBENROEE -
EAFEREZBRMDEE BERR
BREETENRRT - B8T

subscription rights attached to outstanding AR S E LLER -
share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share
options.
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
Profit attributable to owners of RARER AR
the Company (RMB’000) (AE®FT) 1,151,862 1,187,531
Weighted average number of B R{TZER
ordinary shares in issue INEEE G B (A FEf)
(thousands) 915,000 892,932
Adjustments for: HE
— Share options (thousands) — M ARHE (A F&1) 1,317 555
Weighted average number of EREEEN 2 Tiwmk
ordinary shares for diluted NI E (U TF51)
earnings per share (thousands) 916,317 893,487
Diluted earnings per share g AR
(RMB per share) (BRARTT) 1.26 1.33
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30.

230

DIVIDENDS 30. KE

The dividend paid in 2017 were RMB396,072,000 RZZE—LF  BEXTRESEA/AAR
(2016: RMB226,390,000), being HKD 0.50 per #396,072,000( —ZT—RF: AR
ordinary share (2016: HKDO0.30 per ordinary # 226,390,000 7T ) © & A% & & A% 0.50
share). A proposed final dividend in respect of the BT (ZZT—RF  BREEARR0.30%
year ended 31 December 2017 of HKDO0.21 (2016: L) BE_ET—+F+-_A=+—H
HKDO.26) per share, amounting to a total dividend IFFEZHIRARBRE REKR0.21E
of RMB160,618,000 (2016: RMB210,137,000) is to TL(ZE—RF :0268L) r REAES
be presented for approval at the annual general 2= A K %160,618,000 (=T — /<
meeting of the Company on 26 April 2018. These F: AR¥210,137,0007T ) * # R K
financial statements do not reflect this as dividend RAZE—N\FEAZ+NHZREAE
payable. FRE LREIE - WEHBHREFILT

RERIARENRS

2017 2016
—E—+tF 2T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARMTFr

Interim dividend paid of
HKDO0.24 (2016: HKDO0.18)
per ordinary share

Proposed final dividend of
HKDO0.21 (2016: HKDO0.26)
per ordinary share

EfPHREER
LBAL0.24 BT
(ZZ—RF :018/87T) 185,935 137,235
R R AR B F A%
TEAR0.2158 T
—T N4 0.26/87T) 160,618 210,137

346,553 347,372

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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31. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Cash generated from operations

Iﬁ: kY2 /JIb *ﬁ'—
(a) MEFELZRS

The reconciliation from profit before income Bk BT 15 56 Al i ) B2 28 B EE AE M 3R
tax to cash generated from operations is as SEHERWT :
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFT
Profit before income tax B BTS84 B A 1,361,822 1,496,808
Adjustments for: AEREIER
— Amortisation and —HERITE
depreciation 681,959 547,946
— Share of profits less — EEAEREARR Z
losses of investments & N R E 1R
accounted for using
equity method 12,820 (10,676)
— Amortisation of share — BT B 8
option scheme 3,319 7,281
— Losses on disposal of —HEYE BER
property, plant and B R A
equipment and &8 (ftat24)
land use rights (Note 24) 5,985 11,691
— Finance costs — net — MBERFE 76,535 403,415
— Fair value losses/(gains) —PTHESRMITAREE
on derivative financial NEEEE (W)
instruments and assets 238,616 (111,476)
— Settlement on derivative — TSR TALE
financial instruments (19,725) (43,383)
— Gains on acquisition of = Hﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@ =4
associates and joint B2 W
ventures - (20,551)
— Gains on step-acquisition */Hlﬁlﬁﬁﬂé‘%%@
of an associate REMBA
and its subsidiaries ZWas (4,027) -
— Gains on acquisition of — BB A B 2 s
subsidiaries (Note 23) (Hta£23) (173,434) -
Changes in working capital EEESEY (KREKRE
(excluding the effects of BN ERH
exchange differences on FEIRIN)
consolidation):
— Inventories —EFE (562,215) (1,038,190)
— Trade and bills receivables = rﬂ&%%&xﬁiﬁﬁ 75,180 (558,211)
— Prepayments, deposits —FERFIE - EZER
and other receivables E{‘MEHSZEE/ 799,221 (854,543)
— Trade and bills payables — ENE S REERE (190,147) 817,801
— Accruals and other payables  — JEIRE R & H A FERS
BRX 107,394 156,219
Cash generated from operations &E&FEA RS 2,413,303 804,131
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31. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 31.

232

(@) Cash generated from operations
(Continued)

BEeERER (®)

(a) BEFELZRS ()

In the consolidated cash flow statement, RIEERERER  HEWE -

proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment include:

T 55 Ko 3R O FTAS 3R

HELE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBMTFT  ARETT
Net book amount — land use BRTEVFE — T e
rights (Note 6) (HtaEe) 16,580 9,408
Net book amount — property, REFE— Y BE
plant and equipment (Note 7) =t (HiaE7) 39,084 35,494
Losses on disposal of property,  HEWE - HE  RER
plant and equipment and T AR
land use rights (Note 24) (Kiat24) (5,985) (11,691)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - BE - BER
property, plant and equipment b 5 R REFT IS R
and land use rights 49,679 33,211

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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31. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 1. REeERER ()

(b)

Net debt reconciliation

(b) FEBEER

This section sets out an analysis of net debt ANETETF B2 5 8 R A FE TS
and the movements in net debt for each of DT RIFERES o

the periods presented.

Net debt

FEK 2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETFT

Cash and cash equivalents

Pledged bank deposits

Borrowings — repayable
within one year

Borrowings — repayable
after one year

Finance leases — repayable

Re kRS HEY 1,466,718 1,813,208
EHEIRRITIFN 88,249 181,201
fER — AR —FAEE

B

i3
B

(2,562,369)  (3,549,669)

B

B — AR —FRER

Bl

(2,987,229)  (2,559,625)
BMEHRE — AR —FA

within one year Bz (5,623) -
Finance leases — repayable REHE — BN —F%

after one year g (1,587) -
Net debt SFE (4,001,841) (4,114,885)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 1,466,718 1,813,208
Pledged bank deposits BIRERITER 88,249 181,201
Gross debt — fixed interest rates &7 — ElE H= (2,265,446)  (4,398,692)

Gross debt — variable interest

rates

RIER — ZEFE
(3,291,362)  (1,710,602)

Net debt

SEER (4,001,841)  (4,114,885)
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31.

234

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

31. RERER (&)

Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (b) BEBYERE)
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HftEE RERERDZER
Finance Finance
Cashand  Pledged leases leases Borrowings Borrowings
cash bank  duewithin  dueafter duewithin due after
overdrafts  deposits 1 year 1year 1 year 1year Total
BER BER R-ERIE R-FEIE R-ERIE R-5438
REER #OER  HWREEE  WREEE HiEx MR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETT  AEEFT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
Net debt as at RZB-~F
1 January 2016 -B-H
WEER 1940022 47663 (123500)  (35546)  (1547754)  (250530)  (2.24421)
Cash flows ) (126814)  (66462) 123500 235546 0276 (1980760)  (1.724,714)
Foreign exchange HERE
adjustments - - - - (178,562) 12,812 (165,750)
Other non-cash EFREEH
movements - - - - (1913629 1,913,629 -
Net debt as at R=%-rE
3 December2016  +=A=1-A
WEER 1813208 181,201 = - (35A9660)  (2559625)  (4,114:885)
Cash flows BEH (346,490  (92952) - - ATE (1630034 148072
Acquisitions — W — HRRE
finance leasesand ~ Reféx
borrowings - - (5,623) (1587)  (212,989) - (2201%9)
Foreign exchange HERE
adjustments - - - - 25,625 159,546 185,171
Other non-cash EtFRE%E
movements - - - - (1,042,884) 1,042,884 -
Net debt as at N=F-tf
31 December2017  +=A=1-A
WEER 1,466,718 88,249 (5,623) (1587)  (2562369)  (2987.229)  (4,001,841)

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On 1 May 2017, the Group acquired the entire
interest of bundled companies from Nien Hsing
Textile Co., Ltd. for a total consideration of
RMB440,691,000.

EBEO

R-FB—+FRA—B  FEEUAR
% 440,691,000 7T 2 14 {8 17 F B 45 4 %
PAERATWE— AR T2 R -

32.

Name of the bundled companies are as follows: ZANRIHBEAT
Place of
Name of companies incorporation Principal activities
AT BB kB 3L 3t B FEEK
Nien Hsing Garment (Vietnam) Vietnam Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd., garment products
g BUEREEm
Chu Hsing Garment (Cambodia) Cambodia Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd., garment products
RIHSE BUEIREEm
C Square Garment Finishing Co., Ltd. Cambodia Providing garment washing processing
services
SRR REAREE LI TARTS
Alpha Textil de Nicaragua, S.A., Nicaragua Manufacturing of garment fabrics products
fe oz I SUEERLE M
Zona Franca Mateare, S.A., Nicaragua An operational company of Export
Processing Zone Act
IEHEIIN —MRBHANTEREREEREZ A
C Square Investment Co., Ltd., Samoa A holding company
TERE T — R A A
Foster Capital Management Inc., Samoa A property management company
&R T —EmEEE AT

Considering the end market’s increase in demand
for functional apparel and the characteristics of the
fast fashion in stylish clothing, Nien Hsing Textile
Co., Ltd. reallocates the resources and reduces the
weight of denim clothing to decentralize the risk. As
of 1 May 2017, the Group signed the Sale and
Purchase Agreement with Nien Hsing to acquire
the bundled companies, which are mainly engaged
in manufacturing and sales of denim clothing.

As a result of the acquisitions, the Group is
expected to increase its presence in these markets.
It also expects to reduce costs through economies
of scale. The Group recognized gains of
RMB146,578,000 from the acquisitions primarily
arising from fair value gains on the underlying land
and buildings and the gains are included in ‘other
(losses)/gains-net’ in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2017.

ERERmTISHRINEERENFHIE
R BT AR A A ER AR BS 1 B - F R
B BERRREHDEEREBA
HFIRELE - LR ERBRETE - K=
E—+FRA—H AEEEFEET
BEEHEARBZAEARR X ER=E
P ELE MHERE -

HRZSERESE  AEEBHRZE
TIBBAER - WIEHE B RIRLER
B - NEEBZEWEBER-RK
= AR % 146,578,000 7T ° X E KB E
BT MAER 2 AT EK - BRI
Bt ABE_ZT—+t&+_A=1+—H
IFFEEZHRANER [Ha (BE), /I
EFEIA -
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

236

On 31 December 2017, the Group acquired the
rest 51% interest of Hang Chi Enterprise Co., Ltd.
for an aggregate consideration of RMB1; and Hang
Chi Enterprise Co., Ltd., with its subsidiaries are
fully owned by the Group.

Name of Hang Chi Enterprise Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries are as follows:

32.

¥KE6t @)

R-ZE—tE+=—A=+—0  ~&E
DR EARE 1 TIREELSSLER
NARER T 1%z - AEEESHE
BRATREMWEA DB AEERER

SR EERA R RN BAREHN

Il

Place of
Name of companies incorporation Principal activities
NEBHE SE 11 B 7 it B FTEXEK
Hang Chi Enterprise Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Trading, knitting and dyeing of
textile and fabric products and
investment holding
BEPERRAA B8 PMEmMENERES  HEBX

Taltex (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.

B SRR GR8) BRAF B
Wah Fung Kanitters Co., Ltd. Hong Kong
EIEFHER AT BB
Drago Textile International Co., Ltd. Hong Kong
TREOBERERAT £

Sky Keen Investments Co., Ltd. Hong Kong
ARRAKEBRAR B

The Group decided to enlarge its market share in
knitting and dyeing of textile and fabric products
business. The Group signed the Sale and
Purchase Agreement to acquire the rest 51%
interest of Hang Chi Enterprise Co., Ltd..

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected
to increase its presence in these markets. It also
expects to reduce costs through economies of
scale. The Group recognized gains of
RMB26,856,000 from the acquisition primarily
arising from fair value gains on the underlying land
and buildings and the gains are included in ‘other
(losses)/gains-net’ in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2017.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A

Mainland China

IRAMILE IR

Manufacturing and sales of
various kind of knitted fabric
and chemical fiber

SEREES B EEH B

e

Sales of textiles and investment
holding
SHE S B RIREER

Engaged in property investment

EEMERE

Engaged in property investment

CEMERKRE

AN = B R K R 4 Ak B TR EE
HE R ZREBNTISMNE NEBER
VEEWEAKBESLEGRARR
T51%#a ©

MRZKESE  AEEBHRZED
BEAER - WTEHEBREEERR
BRA - AEE B KEEERRAKEZAR
#26,856,0007T ' EEBREHEME L
Mgk A EWZ - BRAWZEE A
HE-Z—+E+-_A=+—HIEE
AR EM (EER), RS F 5]
qu
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 32.
The details of the fair value of assets acquired,
liabilities assumed at the acquisition date of these

¥KE6t )
RZEWREE WERE  CIES
B R AR B EA TEAS st

acquisitions are summarized on an aggregate W
basis as follows:
Fair value at
acquisition
date
KRz ATE
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Total consideration: BRE
— Cash —Re 440,691
Recognised amounts of identifiable FiT W B T B BB E R
assets acquired and liabilities assumed FIERREEZERIALE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEFEY 44,678
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) M - BB NERE (T 7) 558,174
Land use rights (Note 6) T b FARE (fYaE6) 189,586
Inventories TE 293,800
Trade and bills receivables JEWE 5 R EBKIA 115,334
Prepayments, deposits and TEfIFRIE - f2e REA
other receivables FEW FRIA 97,895
Deferred income tax assets (Note 20) BIEFRSTE E (Hat20) 14,510
Trade and bills payables FERTE 5 M EEBRIE (215,710)
Accruals and other payables TatR & A R H b BT I8 (206,425)
Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 20) RIEFTS T B & (A1aE20) (36,330)
Finance lease obligations B A A E A (7,210)
Borrowings BE (212,989)
Total identifiable net assets AR EEAETE 635,313
49% identifiable net assets of BELEBRAARE
Hang Chi Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Bt & A RlZ2 49% Al a4 Al
its subsidiaries BEFE (21,188)
Gains on acquisitions (Note 23) Wi E 18 2 Wz (e 23) (173,434)
440,691
Cash and cash equivalents in NI e =N
subsidiaries acquired ReMREFEY 44,678
Consideration for acquisitions settled in cash W EBELR & &N 2K (B (440,691)
Cash paid on acquisitions HBEFE N 2HE (396,013)

Acquisition related costs of RMB2,900,000 have
been charged to administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended

31 December 2017.

U B8 =B 1B AR B AK AR A R #5 2,900,000 7T
EREE=_ZE—+F+-_A=+—HL
FEMBAWRSR ZITRAX R -
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32.

33.

238

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 32. ¥¥a6t@)
The revenue included in the consolidated income BE-Z—tFRAA—BE=-_ZE—+tF
statement from 1 May 2017 to 31 December 2017 +TZA=1+—H" BZARR(R=Z
contributed by the bundled companies acquired —tFRA—HRFEKE) FTERZ
from Nien Hsing on 1 May 2017 was Bt AZAKRERNRABARE
RMB606,981,000. Those bundled companies also 606,981,000 7T ° % #4072 &) IR A [B) H 8%
made losses of RMB10,195,000 over the same 1SE 1B AR 10,195,000 7T °
period.
Had all the acquired companies been consolidated WEKELAREHE T —+F—H—
from 1 January 2017, the consolidated income BG A ARAEE  SGEKEREE
statement would show pro-forma revenue of BEEWRA AR 17,157,310,000 7T &
RMB17,157,310,000 and profit of A AR 1,145,634,000 7T °
RMB1,145,634,000.
COMMITMENTS 33. AiE
(a) Capital expenditure commitments (a) EARBEZEIE
Capital expenditures at the balance sheet REZANERREZ (BREE)
date that have not been incurred are as /N
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFr AR®T T
Property, plant and equipment L E N
Authorised but not BEIREERETL
contracted for 1,601,311 -
Contracted but not BERTAMEREE
provided for 148,954 258,048
Total capital expenditure BARRAT AR
commitments 1,750,265 258,048

As at 31 December 2017, the capital
expenditure commitments for property, plant
and equipment mainly represent the
expansion plan and investment budget in
Mainland China of RMB782,711,000, and in
Vietnam of RMB967,554,000.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A

RZE—tF+=-_A=+—H"
ME - BRE % R & AR S
BEXEARETRLBENIERT
FERRETEE  DRIBHAR
782,711,000 & A R
967,554,000 7T °
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33. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

33. EiE#®)

The Group leases various land, offices and
warehouses under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as at the

balance sheet date are as follows:

(b)

REAERRE
AEERBETAIHELEHER
EMEETRN L  BAE
BE - RETHBHELEHEER
HBEHZRRKEREFREHE
s

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFT
No later than 1 year —FR 27,248 17,980

Later than 1 year and —FRERFR
no later than 5 years 59,325 32,220
Later than 5 years BBARF 106,820 50,410
193,393 100,610

Relating to: B

Land use rights + i {5 A AE 22,818 24,630
Property, plant and equipment L EN N 170,575 75,980
193,393 100,610

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =Z—tFF# 239



78 MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HILFE

34.

240

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties are those as defined under Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 24 and include key
management of the Group. General speaking,
parties are considered to be related if one party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, control the
other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control.

The Group is controlled by New Green Group
Limited (incorporated in BVI), which directly and
indirectly owns 59.5% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 40.5% of the shares are widely
held. The ultimate parent of the Group is Texhong
Group Holdings Limited (incorporated in Cayman
Islands). The ultimate controlling party of the Group
is Mr. Hong Tian Zhu.

The related parties that had business transactions
with the Group are as follows:

34.

BEEBLTNXS

BT REA S EAF 24MAMER
F O UWHBRAEETIREERE - A
ME @ WEP - E R MEES 5
—IREMBREBEBRETAH ST
TTEEANTZE S - AR SR T - W
WESZ KRS - RS A -

7N £ [E /i New Green Group Limited (72
EBEZESEMK)ES - REE
REEREARDRRD 2 59.5% © AR
AN BA TN 2 40.5% B S H - A&
B 2 & & & 1 7] & Texhong Group
Holdings Limited ( 7 5 2 & & £ fft Ak
) o AREEZ RS T RERTE
A o

EAREEETHERZNEH T

Name of related party
B BB

Relationship with the Group
BARK B HRIR

Nantong Textile Group Co., Ltd.
B IR EE S A ER AT

Foshan Zhao Yue Textile Co., Ltd.
IR BB R A R

Texhong Tan Cang Logistics Joint Stock Company
RALFAB YRR 1 A

Texhong Industrial Park Vietnam Limited
RET THE AR AR

Hualida (Vietnam) Garments Limited Company
EFE (B REETERAA

Hang Chi Enterprise Co., Ltd.

BELEERAR

Taltex (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.

SR KRB BRAR

Wah Fung Knitters Co., Ltd.

FIEFTEAER AT

(i) On 31 December 2017, the Group acquired the
rest 51% interest of Hang Chi Enterprise Co., Ltd.

and its subsidiaries, including Taltex (Zhuhai) Co.,
Ltd. and Wah Fung Kanitters Co., Ltd.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A

Associated company

N

Joint venture

BEhx

Joint venture

BEhE

A company controlled by the chairman of

the Group

A B F RS 2 R A

Associated company

Bk A%

i ‘= Al

Associated company up to

30 December 20170
E—tF+—A=THAABERTO

Associated company up to

30 December 20170
E—tF+—A=F+HAABERTO

Associated company up to

30 December 20170
E—tF+—A=FTHAABERTO

(i) RZZE—+tF+=ZA=+—H ' &K
SERBEELEBRA R KK
BATIEAR51% e - 0I5 A
(KB ERAR REBIBEAR

NI
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34. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34, EHEBINRS &)
(Continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EERAEEFSHIRS
2017 2016
— S ZTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTT AREFT
Sales of goods HESMm
— Taltex (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. — BRI (55
BRAF 104,985 76,720
— Wah Fung Knitters — ERHBERAA
Co., Ltd. 42,982 27,456
— Foshan Zhao Yue Textile — BTk
Co., Ltd. BRAH 3,297 3,074
— Nantong Textile Group —ERHBEREES
Co., Ltd. BABRRA 2,022 =
— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments —EME (M) RERE
Limited Company BRARF 518 -
153,804 107,250
Purchases of land use rights BE LI MEHAE
— Texhong Industrial Park — Rl T B[R #E
Vietnam Limited BRAT 29,767 108,684
Purchases of goods EEEm
— Nantong Textile Group — EBRSRERERS
Co., Ltd. BABRRA 16,221 13,591
— Foshan Zhao Yue Textile — Il Tk AR A
Co., Ltd. BRAF 337 1,149
— Taltex (Zhuhai) Co.,Ltd. — B ORE)
BRAOHE 102 -
16,660 14,740
Purchases of property, plant BEWME  BE K&E
and equipment
— Foshan Zhao Yue Textile — BTk
Co., Ltd. BRAOHE - 9,127
Purchases of water BB MK
— Texhong Industrial Park — R TEER #r
Vietnam Limited BRAT] 383 -
— Foshan Zhao Yue Textile — Il Tk AN A
Co., Ltd. BRAF 101 -
484 -
Purchases of electricity EEE
— Texhong Industrial Park — Rl T B[R
Vietnam Limited BRAHA 79,051 57,352
Purchases of steam BEZRA
— Texhong Industrial Park — RUI TEER #r
Vietnam Limited BRATR 3,189 =
Purchases of wastewater treatment 88 & /57K iE 18 iR 7%
service
— Texhong Industrial Park — R TEER
Vietnam Limited BRAR 219 =
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34. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. EHEBINRS &)
(Continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EEREEANRZ (&)
(Continued)
2017 2016
—E—t& —TRF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Purchases of services EE R
— Texhong Tan Cang Logistics — RUFAWRRD AR
Joint Stock Company 23,114 -
— Taltex (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. — B ERR RE)
BRAR 21,758 =
— Foshan Zhao Yue Textile — LIk A A
Co., Ltd. NG 1,801 -
46,673 -
In the opinion of the Company’s directors and ARRAEEFRAEENBTEER
the Group’s management, the above related R EDMEEETNR SR EE
party transactions were carried out in the F 5B B ARR AR A 0k e 5
ordinary course of business, and in AR/ HEABAEFEHNEE
accordance with the terms of the underlying HEAT -

agreements and/or the invoices issued by the
respective parties.

242 TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI##&EBAERA A
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34. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

34, BEHEBIAINR S (#)

(Continued)
(b) Balance with related parties (b) EEEREEA MAEER
2017 2016
—E—4tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Trade receivables W E 5 3IE
— Nantong Textile Group — RS EEREE
Co., Ltd. HEBEERRA 2,366 -
— Hualida (Vietnam) Garments — ERE (R RERME
Limited Company BRAT] 653 -
— Taltex (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. — BEB L (HE)
BRAT - 30,817
— Wah Fung Knitters — EEHBER AT
Co., Ltd. - 22,278
— Foshan Zhao Yue Textile — BRIk A A
Co., Ltd. BRAF - 3,120
3,019 56,215
Prepayments TR RIE
— Hang Chi Enterprise — BECEERAF
Co., Ltd. - 35,780
Trade payables [ERN B 55008
— Texhong Industrial Park — KUl T2 B[R R
Vietnam Limited BRAT 4,066 4,021
— Nantong Textile Group — EBRSBEREES
Co., Ltd. BABR AR 491 320
4,557 4,341
Deposits from customer BF&Ze
— Taltex (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. — B RE)
BRAF - 541
(c) Key management compensation (c) FEEEEFHMH
2017 2016
—E—t& —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT
Salaries, wages and bonuses HE - TERIEA 25,020 20,539
Pension costs — defined RS KRR ERE S
contribution plan 659 658
Other benefits HAh @R 132 955
25,811 22,152
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35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 3. ARFIvEEEBEBRNGE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 25
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (a) FTLAFZEERER

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+—H
2017 2016
e A

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment M - BB RRE 15 112

Investments in subsidiaries RETE R RRIRE 3,263,040 3,270,327
3,263,055 3,270,439

Current assets REBEE

Trade and bills receivables JEULE 5 & B FIE 320,742 1,491,081

Prepayments, deposits and TBRIE - Be REAMEK

other receivables BRI 18,185 33,369

Due from subsidiaries e NN O 2,994,274 2,995,312

Derivative financial instruments 744 @ T A 51,876 119,439

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 8,930 277,890
3,394,007 4,917,091

Total assets HWEE 6,657,062 8,187,530

EQUITY BRR R

Equity attributable to KARFEBAEBERR

owners of the Company =

Share capital: nominal value f&A : EE 96,709 96,709

Share premium 1D mE 433,777 433,777

Other reserves B e 192,817 189,498

Retained earnings R 5 F 1,019,227 1,691,098

Total equity R RRER 1,742,530 2,411,082

LIABILITIES =L

Non-current liabilities kFRBEE

Borrowings BE 2,596,210 1,093,160

2,596,210 1,093,160
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35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE /5. XARRIZEERBEREHFE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY BE(2)
(Continued)
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) (a) FTRARZEEEEBR(E)

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMTFT

Current liabilities REBAE
Bills payable FEH R FIE 1,878,833 1,907,194
Accruals and other payables TEIRE M &AM FE AR K 49,408 164,080
Due to subsidiaries JFEASHBT B R B kI8 15,990 869,739
Borrowings e 372,811 1,742,275
Derivative financial instruments TEemIA 1,280 =
2,318,322 4,683,288
Total liabilities wWaE 4,914,532 5,776,448
Total equity and liabilities mERERRAE 6,657,062 8,187,530
The balance sheet of the Company was RAAREEBBEREN-_T—
approved by the Board of Directors on 9 ¢_HHEZ¥%$AHW§ I
March 2018 and was signed on its behalf by: TIEERKEFGES
Hong Tianzhu Zhu Yongxiang HRH KK
Director Director EF EF
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35. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

246

(Continued)

35. ARRzEERERKRE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY BE (@)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) ALATFZEEEE
Other Retained

reserves earnings

Hin A R R F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETRT
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—H—H 182,217 571,303
Profit for the year FE T = 1,346,185
Employee share option scheme & 8 it 7,281 =
Dividend relating to 2015 —E-RFEZRE - (89,155)
Dividend relating to 2016 —E—RNEZRE = (137,235)
At 31 December 2016 RZTE—RF
+=-—A=+—H 189,498 1,691,098
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—A—H 189,498 1,691,098
Loss for the year FEFBE - (275,799)
Employee share option scheme (& 8 B fEst 2 3,319 -
Dividend relating to 2016 —E-REZRE - (210,137)
Dividend relating to 2017 —E—tEFRE - (185,935)
At 31 December 2017 RZT—tF
+=—A=+—8H 192,817 1,019,227
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36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

(a)

36. EEwEANRER

Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) ESBRTHEAZM:
emoluments
The Group does not have a chief executive NEBRAEIRABKEARATES
who is not also a director of the Company. BITTIRAREL -
The remuneration of every director is set out B FEMNESOMEWT :
below:
For the year ended 31 December 2017, Bz_Z—+%+=-_A=+—H
emoluments paid or payable in respect of a IEFE - EAEFESRHER
person’s services as a director, whether of B(TmARTHEMBRAT)E
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking: ek ERB -
Estimated ~ Employer's
money value  contribution
Discretionary Housing ofother  to benefit
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses allowance benefits scheme Total
EtRR EXEA
£ ng e Bisid fRRE  2ffHEE B 58 it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFL  ARETT  ARETL  ARETR  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ
Executive Directors: EGEER
Hong Tianzhu HRR - 1,009 1,796 57 - 1 2,863
Zhu Yongxiang kit - 1,404 4,489 - 16 8 5,996
Tang Daoping AET - 1,028 4,500 - 16 87 5,631
Hui Tsz Wai e - 3,160 309 - - 316 3,785
Ji Zhongliang AR - 648 480 - 2 59 1,209
Independent BUFHIES:
non-executive Directors:
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen  TRi8 251 - - - - - 251
Cheng Longi BER 125 - - - - - 125
Tao Xiaoming [FELS 151 - - - - - 151
521 7,249 11,574 57 54 550 20,011
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36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

36. EEREARES )

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EBRITHARME (&)
emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016, HE-_T—X~"F+-A=+—8
emoluments paid or payable in respect of a IEFE - REAETESRER
person’s services as a director, whether of B (TwmANTREMBART)E
the company or its subsidiary undertaking: Tk EREE -
Estimated ~ Employer's
money value  contribution
Discretionary Housing of other to benefit
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses allowance benefits scheme Total
EfpH  EEEA
EEd ks ¥ BEEL GBI ZfAHEE  HEER st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT  AREFT ARETr AREfr ARETr  AREfr  ARETT
Executive Directors: EEER
Hong Tianzhu AR - 1,002 1,855 684 - 1 3542
Zhu Yongxiang Rk - 1,425 960 - 14 85 2484
Tang Daoping rche - 1,045 4,500 - 14 85 5,644
Hui Tsz Wai HTE - 3220 895 - - 322 4437
Ji Zhongliang TAR - 648 1,00 = 20 57 1825
Independent BUiEES:
non-executive Directors:
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen  TR8 268 - - - - - 268
Cheng Longd EER 134 - - - - - 134
Tao Xiaoming [GEL 161 - - - - _ 161
563 7,340 9,310 684 48 550 18,495
(b) Directors’ retirement and termination (b) ESRERKLEAEF
benefits
None of the directors received or will receive FR - BEESEDHNEESFEM
any retirement benefits or termination REBASARIEERABH o
benefits during the year.
(c) Consideration provided to third parties for (c) HRERHESERBERE=SFRMHEZ
making available directors’ services KB
The Group did not pay consideration to any FRN - AEEBERREESR
third parties for making available directors’ BRERME=ZFZRNZRE -
services during the year.
(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and (d FERAUES  HFEZERNAE

248

other dealings in favour of directors,
bodies corporate controlled by or entities
connected with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
were made available in favour of directors,
bodies corporate controlled by or entities
connected with such directors subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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36. BEN

EFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(e)

37. SUB

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

SIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Group’s principal

36. EEEANRES B

() EBRXS - REHESHZEKX
e
RRABRERT T BAKEELH
B MARRERERIERE
BEARER BRFRAFRNEM
BRFELEARS RERA
# o

37. HEAREHR
TRIFAEER -E—LF+_ A

subsidiaries, all of which are unlisted, at 31

=+t HONEAMBAR(HRIEL

December 2017: ) :
Place and date of Particulars of issued
incorporation and Principal activities and share capital or
Name of subsidiary form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
HELTER AMALBSR AEREEERER IERBREENE BRIRAIHANRAGE fitsks
Directly held:
ERER:
Texhong Textile Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100%
26 May 2004, limited liability company British Virgin Islands of USD1 each
RAGHERERAR EBRRHE REBRRBERALR 100 R BRI ZTEBR
ZTEMERACTAR  ARRAAT
Sunray International Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Investment holding in 1 ordinary share 100%
21 January 2005, limited liability company British Virgin Islands of USD1 each
FHERERERAR ERERHE NEBRREERERR 1RER1 X EAR
ZERRE-AT-H AREAAR
Texhong Vietnam Investment Limited ~ British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 50,000 ordinary 100%
6 September 2006, limited liability company British Virgin Islands shares of USD1 each
REHRERRAR ABRAES NEBRRHBRERR 50000 i1 T E R
ZEEENARR  BRELAR
Indirectly held:
BERE:
Jiangsu Century Texhong Textile Co., Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of yams, ~ USD15,000,000 100%
6 June 2000, limited liability company grey fabrics, dyed clothes and
dress; processing of cotton in
Mainland China
Tt ERIGEBRAT RN RPEARRERHEDS 15,000,000 %72
Z2RRERARR  BREAAR S5 - o Bl  IRIEAT
Nantong Century Texhong Textile Co., Ltd. Nantong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of yams, ~ USD5,500,000 100%
7 June 2002, limited liability company grey fabrics and dyed fabrics in
Mainland China
BRtERIGEERAA hEEE RPEARRERHEDS 550000057

“$E-ERALE  BREENA

SR A
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37. BARER (&)

Place and date of Particulars of issued
incorporation and Principal activities and share capital or
Name of subsidiary form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
HEARER EUEAREYEENEI IREBREENE BRTRAIHANRARE fiisigs
Xuzhou Texhong Yinfeng Textile Co., Ltd. Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of yams, ~ USD7,800,000 100%
12 May 2004, limited liability company grey fabrics, clothes and
dyed fabrics in Mainland China
BHRIREHEERAR B RPEARHERHEDR 7,800000%7
“TERFRATR ARERAR 5 - T Rt
Xuzhou Texhong Times Textile Co., Ltd.  Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of USD43,000,000 100%
29 December 2004, limited liability company ~ top-grade yams, thread,
grey fabrics, textile knitting
products, and garments in
Mainland China
FHAIERSEARAR R RPEABRERHERRYR - 430000005
ZERMETZACTAR EREALA & S HREREEGRAKX
Texhong (China) Investment Co,, Ltd. ~ Shanghai, Mainland China, Investment holding and trading o USD100,000,000 100%
21 June 2005, Limited liability company texile products in Mainland China
RI(hE)REERAT hE Lg REBRRNPEAEEESEER 10000000057
ZERRENACT-R BREEAR
Xuzhou Texhong Yinlian Textile Co., Ltd. ~ Xuzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing top-grade yarns, USD20,500,000 100%
30 March 2006, limited liability company thread, grey fabrics, dresses, in
Mainland China
MR ERGAERAR AN RPEARRERRYE & 20500,000%%
ZEENEZA=TH ARERAR i R ek
Sunray Macao Commercial Offshore Macao, Trading in Macao MOP$100,000 100%
Limited. 19 December 2005, limited liability company
HERMRFHRREERAA sl NRMES 100,000 2%
“ERRFT-ATAR AREEAH
Texhong Textile (Hong Kong) Limited. ~ Hong Kong, Investment holding in Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary 100%
11 May 2006, limited liability company share of HKD1 each
RIG%(BE)ERAT (3 NERETREARR 10,000 R BH 1 AT R
2R ERAT-H  ERELAR
Changzhou Texhong Textile Co., Ltd. ~ Changzhou, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of textile, ~ RMB32,145,000 100%
1 January 1979, limited liability company decoration and garment in
Mainland China
FHRIHRERAR hEEN MEAERERMESER .  ARBRU500T
“NtNE-A-B EREEAA HRaRAK
Sunray Trading (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, Trading, investment and 10,000 ordinary 100%
16 February 2005, limited liability company corporate services in Hong Kong ~ shares of HKD1 each
HHE5 (B8 ARAA & NERETES RERRLE 10,000 kB 1 AT LR
ZERRE- AT ARERAR XS
Texhong Renze Textile Joint Stock Vietnam, Manufacturing of yarn in Vietham ~ USD30,000,000 100%
Company 24 October 2006, limited liability company
RICEGEROERAR #E REBREYS 30,000000£7

ZEERETAZTER  ARAAT
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37. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. MEARER (&)

Place and date of Particulars of issued
incorporation and Principal activities and share capital or
Name of subsidiary form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
HEARER AMA LR ARRERR R IEXBREENE BRTRAIHANRARE Fiis
Texhong Textile (Hong Kong) Holdings  Hong Kong, Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited 24 October 2007, limited liability company HKD1 each
RiTGi%(EE) ARARAA B4 NERETRERR 100 5B R BBk
ZERLETAZTRE - ARARAA
TVN (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100%
4 December 2007, limited liability company HKD1 each
TUN (Hong Kong) Limited EE REBETREER 100 ER1 B EBk
ZEtET-ARA - BRAFAR
Shanghai Texhong Trading Co., Ltd. Shanghai, Mainland China, Trading of textile products in USD500,000 100%
11 August 2008, limited liability company Mainland China
HERHIESERAR hE LS EPEARE S ERE 50000057
ZZENFNAT-H ERERAR
Texhong Yinlong Technology Ltd. Vietnam, Manufacturing of yam in Vietham ~ USD40,000,000 100%
11 April 2012, limited liability company
RIBEMRARAA #E RERSEYR 40,000000% 70
Z2-ZEMAT-H ERELAR
Shandong Texhong Texile Co., Ltd. Shandong, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of yams in -~ RMB700,000,000 100%
1 May 2004, limited liability company Mainland China
WRRISHEERAR G EPEAERERHEYR AEE700,000,00070
ZZEMERA-R BRERLA
Shanghai Hong Hui Investment Shanghai, Mainland China, Investment holding in Shanghai RMB20,000,000 90%
Management Consulting Co., Limited* 20 January 2014, limited liability company
S ERAERHEAERAT hE LS R EEETREARR ARH20,0000007T
ZZ-MF-A=1A ARERAR
Texhong Galaxy Investment Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding in Hong Kong ~ HKD100 100%
15 January 2014, limited liability company
RIBTRERRAR (5 NERETRERR 100%7
ZZ-ME-ATRA ARERAR
Texhong Galaxy Technology Limited Vietnam, Manufacturing of yarns, USD20,000,000 100%
13 September 2014, limited liability company ~ grey fabrics,garments and
dyed fabrics in Vietnam
RIRAHRERAR i NEBREYR £ KRR 20,000,000%%
ZZ-MEAATZH  AREMAR #
Celestial Ease Holdings Limited British Virgin slands, Investment holding in USD11,964,916 90.2%
27 May 2015, limited liability company British Virgin Islands
REARARA £BRNHE NEBRARBEGRERK 11,964 916 %70
ZE-RERACTHR BREALT
Shandong Lanyan Textiles Co., Ltd. Shandong, Mainland China, Manufacturing of yams, grey fabrics, USD3,000,000 100%
21 August 2015, limited liability company garments in Shandong
LRREGARERRAR hELR NURBEYR  Fh - KK 3,000000%7
ZZ-RFN\A=t-R BREAAF
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37.

252

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

37.

BB D "1 E R ()

Place and date of Particulars of issued
incorporation and Principal activities and share capital or
Name of subsidiary form of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital Interest held
HEARER AfE AR AR R ERR R IREBREENE BRTRAIHANRARE fiisigs
Xinjiang Texhong Foundation Texile Xinjiang, Mainland China, Manufacturing of yarns in Xinjiang ~ RMB398,700,000 90%
Co,, Ltd* 4 July 2015, limited liability company
HERIAXGARRAR" hEHE MTBREYR AR 398,700,000
ZT-RECANA  BRERAT
Taltex (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. Zhuhai, Mainland China, Manufacturing and sales of various  USD60,180,000 100%
27 April 1994 limited liability company kind of knitted fabric and
chemical fiber
BRER(KE)ERAT hERE HERFEXENRAHREG4 601800005
“NNBERAZ LA - ARREAA
Wah Fung Knitters Co., Ltd. Hong Kong, Sales of textiles and HKD6,000,000 100%
7 November 2008 limited liability company investment holding
ZEHAERAT & HENBRRRARR 6,000,000/ 7C
ZEENET-AtH ARERAR
Jovial Global Investments Limited British Virgin slands, Investment holding in British Virgin -~ USD100 100%
9 January 2017, limited liability company Islands
MERHREBRRAA £BRRHEE REBRABRBEGRERK 10057
Z2tE-ANR BREAAA
Texhong Fashion Industrial Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding in Hong Kong ~ HKD100 100%
February 2017, limited liability company
RIEHESEERRAT B% “T-tE-R BREMAA NERETRARR 10047

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

* represents sino-foreign equity joint venture. All
other subsidiaries established in Mainland China
are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

Texhong (China) Investment Co., Ltd. is a wholly
foreign owned investment holding company
incorporated in Mainland China.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in
issue at any time during year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: None).

The English names of certain subsidiaries
established in Mainland China represent the best
effort by the Group’s management to translate their
Chinese names, as they do not have official
English names.
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